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Chairman’s Statement and Management Discussion and Analysis

TEREREEBARR DN

The board of directors (“Board”) of Eminence
Enterprise Limited (“Company”) is pleased to
announce the audited annual results of the
Company and its subsidiaries (collectively the
“Group”) for the year ended 31 March 2016
together with comparative figures. These annual
results have been reviewed by the Company’s
audit committee.

FINAL RESULTS

For the year ended 31 March 2016, the Group
recorded a turnover of HK$103,439,000,
representing a decrease of HK$89,050,000 or
46.3% from HK$192,489,000 for the year 2015.

Loss attributable to owners of the Company
for the year ended 31 March 2016 amounted to
HK$69,268,000 (2015: profit of HK$31,086,000).
The loss was mainly attributable to the loss on
fair value changes of investment properties in
Hong Kong of approximately HK$33,399,000,
the impairment loss recognised in the Project
Inverness which is a property under development
for sale is HK$15,511,000 and the fair value losses
on investment held for trading, bonds and equity
linked notes.

The basic loss per share for the year ended 31
March 2016 was HK$0.14 (2015: basic earnings
per share was HK$100.04).

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board does not recommend the payment of

final dividend for the year ended 31 March 2016
(2015: nil).
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Chairman’s Statement and Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

ITEREREEENwWE D Ma)

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND
ANALYSIS

BUSINESS REVIEW

During the year, the Group was principally
engaged in the property investment, comprising
the ownership and rental of investment properties,
property development, garment sourcing and
export businesses, securities investment and loan
financing business.

Geographical Analysis of Turnover

During the year, the turnover from garment
sourcing and export businesses was mainly
derived from customers in the US. Rental income
from the investment properties were derived from
properties located in Hong Kong, Singapore and
the People’s Republic of China (“PRC”).

(i) Property Investment

Turnover from the property investment
segment increased by 23.5% to
HK$23,786,000 for the year ended 31 March
2016 (2015: HK$19,256,000). The increase in
turnover is primarily attributed to the addition
of the investment properties, the effect of
tenancy renewal, periodic rental adjustments
under the clauses of the existing tenancy
agreements and new tenants.

The additional investment properties are
referred to the Company’s acquisitions
in November 2015 in which a total of 11
properties comprises 6 residential units (3
units in Hong Kong and 3 units in Singapore),
5 industrial units were acquired by the
Company for a total consideration of HK$240
million.

BEEENWRDN

E e

RERN AEEBTELZYERE
(BREREARHERENE) WXHE
B RBMOAOKKES  EFRE
FEFREES -

ERFHBBEEDN

RER - KBROORKER =%
BIBERAXBEZEF - REWEM
BZHEWAKRBURES « #I0K
FHREARKME(THE]) 2P

(i) MERE

H 220163 A31H IEFE -
MERKREDH 2 ZEEEEMN
23.5% % 23,786,000/ 71(2015
F 19,256,000 7 ) ° & ¥ 58
HEMETZERREBRENE B
- BEREHERZERMIE
MBHEHEeARUALHERD
TR -

IR EYE - A2 ER2015
FABAGHI1EYE &
heEAEEEMBRELNEE
RIEMAFT ML) R5EIT¥E
fiz - #8484 240,000,000 T °

Wi ¥ERAT 2015/16 FiR

it



Chairman’s Statement and Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)
FERENEEEBENWR I

(ii)

The Group has 9 blocks of factory premises
and 4 blocks of dormitories with a total gross
floor areas of approximately 95,379 sg.m. in
Huzhou, PRC.

Property Development
Project Matheson

The Company had filed an application to the
Lands Tribunal in December 2015 for an order
to sell all the undivided shares in a building
located at Nos. 11 and 13 Matheson Street,
Causeway Bay, Hong Kong aimed at to
acquire the last unit (“Remaining Unit”) of the
building for redevelopment purpose. It is in
the mediation process between the Company
and the owner of the Remaining Unit and
the sale order may be granted in late 2016
but it depends on, amongst other things, the
response time by the owner of Remaining Unit.

Project Inverness

The Project Inverness is a property
development project located at No. 14, 16,
18 and 20 Inverness Road, Kowloon Tong,
Kowloon, Hong Kong. The general building
plan and application for the land exchange
were submitted to Buildings Department and
Lands Department respectively in January
2016. The foundation work was commenced
in January 2016 and is scheduled to be
completed in September 2016; the launch of
the sale is expected in year 2018.
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Chairman’s Statement and Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

ITEREREEENwWE D Ma)

(iii) Garment Sourcing and Export Businesses

For the year ended 31

of customer orders.

(iv) Securities Investment

The Group has maintained a securities
portfolio with a strategy of diversification
to reduce effects of price fluctuation of any

single securities.

For the year ended 31 March 2016, the Group
held trading securities in the amount of
HK$5,944,000 as compared to HK$91,557,000
representing a 93.5%
decrease. It was derived from: (1) the disposal
of trading securities during the year which had
a cost or fair value as at 31 March 2015 of
HK$99,532,000; and (2) purchase of trading
securities of HK$20,251,000 during the year;
and (3) net decrease in market value in the
amount of HK$6,332,000 of the trading
securities. This segment recorded a loss of
HK$11,354,000 during the year (2015: profit of

as at 31 March 2015,

HK$43,853,000).
(v) Loan Financing

For the year ended 31 March 2016,

increase comparing with the year 2015.

March 2016,
this segment recorded a turnover of
HK$75,208,000 (2015: HK$172,082,000)
representing 56.3% decrease comparing
with year 2015, and recorded a loss of
HK$8,067,000 (2015: loss of HK$3,660,000).
This is mainly due to the decrease in sales
volume with the major customers, the intensive
competition in terms of pricing and transferring

this
segment recorded a turnover of HK$4,445,000
(2015: HK$1,151,000) representing 286.2%
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Chairman’s Statement and Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)
FERENEEEBENWR I

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Turnover

Gross profit

Gross profit margin

Distribution and selling
expenses

Administrative expenses

Finance costs

(Loss) profit before taxation
Taxation

(Loss) profit for the year and
attributable to owners of
the Company

Net (loss) profit margin

(Loss) earnings per share
Basic

B
7

7%
B A
GGE
BERA

BrBiAl (B 1R )EH
TR

FRARREBEREE
(B8)RA

(i) A

ZREE) B
AR

5 % 120 R

Year ended 31 March
BZ3A3MHLEE
2016 2015 Change

=

HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000
FET T8 TAT

103,439 192,489 (89,050)

36,438 37,317 (879)
35.2% 19.4% 15.8%
(1,762) (4,582) 2,820
(30,429)  (31,181) 752

(15,099) (6,541) (8,558)

(61,238) 35,118  (96,356)
(8,030) (4,032) (3,998)

(69,268) 31,086  (100,354)
(67.0)% 16.1%  (83.1)%

(HK$0.14) HK$100.04 (HK$100.18)

Revenue

Group revenue for the year ended 31 March 2016
reduced by 46.3% to HK$103,439,000 compared
with last year. The decrease in revenue was
largely caused by the decrease in sales volume in
garment sourcing and export businesses, which
offset the increase in the rental income of property

investment segment.
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Chairman’s Statement and Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

ITEREREEENwWE D Ma)

Gross Profit/Margin

Gross profit for this year was HK$36,438,000, a
slight decrease of HK$879,000 or 2.4% compared
to the HK$37,317,000 in last year. Gross profit
margin for this year increased from 19.4% to
35.2%.

Loss before Taxation

Loss before taxation for the year ended 31 March
2016 was HK$61,238,000, as compared with last
year profit before taxation of HK$35,118,000. It
was mainly due to loss on changes in fair value
of investment properties, impairment losses on
properties held for development for sale and fair
value loss on investment held for trading, bonds
and equity linked notes.

Selling and distribution costs declined from
HK$4,582,000 to HK$1,762,000, a decrease
of 61.5% compared with the last year. It was
mainly attributable to the reduction of turnover of
garment sourcing and exporting businesses.

Administrative expenses were HK$30,429,000,
a slight decrease of 2.4% over last year of
HK$31,181,000.

During the year under review, there was an
increase of 309.6% in the loss on changes in fair
value of investment properties to HK$33,399,000
(2015: loss of HK$8,155,000).

Finance costs was HK$15,099,000, increased
by HK$8,558,000 or 130.8% for the year from
HK$6,541,000 in 2015, of which HK$8,290,000
is the effective interest expense on convertible
notes.
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Chairman’s Statement and Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

FRGEREEENR®R DM

(Loss) Profit Attributable to Shareholders and
(Loss) earnings per Share

Loss attributable to shareholders of the
Company for the year ended 31 March 2016 was
HK$69,268,000, as compared to last year profit of
HK$31,086,000. Net loss margin is increased from
67.0% as compared to net profit margin last year
of 16.1%.

Taxation charges increased from HK$4,032,000 in
last year to HK$8,030,000 in this year.

Basic loss per share for the year 31 March 2016
were HK$0.14 as compared to basic earnings per
share HK$100.04 in last year.

Liquidity and Financial Resources

As at 31 March 2016, total assets of the
Group amounted to HK$2,574,086,000 (2015:
HK$1,919,181,000). In terms of financial resources
as at 31 March 2016, the Group’s total bank
balances and cash was HK$465,279,000 (2015:
HK$204,234,000), of which, approximately RMB50
million (equivalent to approximately HK$60 million)
was tied up in the PRC as investment capital.

As at 31 March 2016, the capital base has
been strengthened because of an aggregate net
proceeds of HK$831,000,000 was raised from
(1) the completion of issuing the rights shares
in April 2015 and November 2015 for a total of
HK$326 million and HK$505 million respectively;
and (2) the completion of issuing a convertible
note in June 2015 (“2015 Convertible Note”) for a
principal amount of HK$86 million.

As at 31 March 2016, the Group has total
bank borrowings of HK$100,087,000 (2015:
HK$293,925,000). The Group’s gearing ratio, which
is calculated as a ratio of total bank borrowings to
shareholders’ equity was approximately 0.04 (2015:
0.19). As at 31 March 2016, the Group’s current
ratio was 9.1 (2015: 5.4).
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Chairman’s Statement and Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)
FRGEREEEN®R DM

The Group financed its operation primarily with
recurring cash flow generated from its operation,
proceeds raised from the capital market and bank
financing.

Capital Reorganisation

On 6 August 2015, the Company announced
the Board proposed to effect the capital
reorganisation (the “Capital Reorganisation”)
involving:

(a)

share consolidation: that every ten issued and
unissued then existing shares of HK$0.01 each
be consolidated into one consolidated share
of par value HK$0.10 each (the “Consolidated
Share”);

capital reduction: that (i) the issued share
capital of the Company be reduced by the
cancellation of the paid-up capital of the
Company to the extent of HK$0.09 on each
of the then issued Consolidated Shares
such that the par value of each issued
Consolidated Share be reduced from HK$0.10
to HK$0.01; (ii) the authorised share capital
of the Company be reduced by reducing the
par value of all Consolidated Shares in the
authorised share capital of the Company from
HK$0.10 each to HK$0.01 each, resulting in
the reduction of the authorised share capital
of the Company from HK$200,000,000 divided
into 2,000,000,000 Consolidated Shares to
HK$20,000,000 divided into 2,000,000,000
ordinary shares of par value HK$0.01 each
(the “Adjusted Shares”); and (iii) the credit
arising from the reduction of the issued share
capital of the Company be transferred to the
Company’s contributed surplus account; and
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Chairman’s Statement and Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

EERERE

(c) authorised capital increase:

Shareholders’

BEEN®WED e

that the
authorised share capital of the Company
be increased from HK$20,000,000 divided
into 2,000,000,000 Adjusted Shares to
HK$200,000,000 divided into 20,000,000,000
Adjusted Shares.

approval for the Capital

Reorganisation has been obtained at the special
general meeting of the Company held on 7
October 2015 and the Capital Reorganisation
became effective on 8 October 2015. Further
details of the Capital Reorganisation are set out in
the Company’s circular dated 14 September 2015.

Fund Raising

(1)

(i)

On 12 June 2015, the Company completed
the issue of 2015 Convertible Note in an
aggregate principal amount of HK$86,000,000
to Madian Star Limited, an independent third
party. The net proceeds of HK$86,000,000
raised from the issue of the 2015 Convertible
Note is intended to be applied for the general
working capital of the Group.

For the net proceeds, it has been fully utilized
for (1) HK$25.7 million for the acquisition of
the ground floor of No. 15 Matheson Street,
Causeway Bay, Hong Kong; (2) HK$55.9
million for the securities investment; and (3)
HK$4.3 million for the settlement of trade
payable.

On 6 August 2015, the Board proposed, upon
completion of the Capital Reorganisation, to
raise a gross proceeds of HK$510,000,000 by
way of the rights issue of 1,063,437,940 rights
shares at a subscription price of HK$0.48
per rights share on the basis of twenty rights
shares for every one Adjusted Share held on
the record date (the “Rights Issue”).
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Independent shareholders’ approval for the
Rights Issue has been obtained at the special
general meeting of the Company held on 7
October 2015 and the dealings of fully paid
rights shares was commenced on 9 November
2015. Further details of the Rights Issue are
set out in the Company’s prospectus dated 14
October 2015.

The net proceeds of the Rights Issue was
approximately HK$505 million of which (1)
HK$240 million were intended to purchase
the sale shares and sale loan of a properties
group; (2) HK$139 million for the repayment of
bank loan; (3) HK$30 million to be earmarked
as deposit for the acquisition of the remaining
unit at ground floor of No. 11 Matheson Street,
Causeway Bay, Hong Kong or for potential
investment; (4) HK$70 million to be applied
for the segments of securities investment and
loan financing; and (5) the remaining HK$26
million as general corporate purposes.

As at the date of this report, all the net
proceeds raised from the Rights Issue have
been fully utilised except the amount of
HK$30 million earmarked for the acquisition
of the remaining unit in Matheson Street
has not been utilised. The actual use of the
net proceeds is utilized according to the
intended use, of which (1) HK$240 million for
the purchase of the sale shares and the sale
loan of a properties group; (2) HK$139 million
for the repayment of bank loan; (3) HK$24.5
million for the securities investment; HK$45.5
million for loan financing business; (4) HK$10.3
million for settlement of trade payable; HK$2
million for daily operating expenses and
HK$13.7 million for repayment of bank loans
and finance cost.

Chairman’s Statement and Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)
FRGEREEEN®R DM

$ ‘Taﬁam5¢1aﬁ75$

172 R BRYIRE
WLHT&ZME &@Eh%
TR DS RN2015E11 A9 H
FIREE - AR cE— s
BENARAHEA2015F10
A14BZHIRER -

HREAMEREBFEDLDAR
505,000,000/ 7@ % #(1)
240,000,000 8 THERIEEE W
EAEHMEERMHMEEER
(2) 139,000,000/% 7T A 1 B &
FITEE B (3) 30,000,000/5
Hﬁf’ﬁﬂ&ﬁ%uﬁé B 7 & )
iﬁzﬁ&ﬂhﬁiﬂzﬁﬁ‘? 8 {7 5%
ETBEMEREZES
70,000,000 7T #% A X B FH &%
ELERMED D &(5)%*»%E
26,000,000 8 TRIEAR 2 —K
LERR o

Hl A\ﬁ

§

5

=S

RARERR  2HHERES
Fﬁ?%wé/ﬂaa,%%zﬁﬁﬁ M
30,000,000 7 7T A 1E U BE 70 0 2
TR TEM 2 RBRARER 1R
BRTARERFER2MENRE
JFE8 - HFPA14E (1) 240,000,000
BTAEEENEAEGNLER
M REEER (2) 139,000,000
BITRHEERRITE X ()
24,500,000 8 T AEEHIKE
45,500,000 TR 1EE K @ &
¥£7%(4) 10 300,000;‘%7_5%{4E
“EE 5N KA 2,000,000
BTHERAREERY UK
13,700,000 B T A{EEBRTE
AN ERA o

SILEEAMRAT 2015/16 FiR

it

13



14

Chairman’s Statement and Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

ITEREREEENwWE DM a)

As at 31 March 2016, the total number of
issued ordinary shares of the Company was
1,116,609,837 shares (31 March 2015: 25,319,951
shares).

Details of 2014 Convertible Note

Particulars of the 2014 Convertible Note are
summarized as follows:

Holder of the Convertible Note
RBEEEFEA

Outstanding principal amount as at the date of
_this report
REAHERR s AERLR S

|SSL_Je date
17T H H

Maturity date
FIERH

Conversion price as at the date of this report

RASE BH LR E

Goodco Development Limited is interested in
363,781,194 shares of the Company, representing
approximately 32.58% of the issued share capital
of the Company as at the date of this report.
880,281 shares shall be issued by the Company
to Goodco Development Limited upon conversion
of the 2014 Convertible Note in the aggregate
principal amount of HK$20,000,000 in full at the
prevailing conversion price of HK$22.72 per share.

Details of 2015 Convertible Note

On 12 June 2015, the Company completed the
issue of 2015 Convertible Note in an aggregate
principal amount of HK$86,000,000 to Madian Star
Limited, an independent third party, at an initial
conversion price of HK$0.85 per share.
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Chairman’s Statement and Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

FRGEREEEN®R DM

Pursuant to the adjustment provisions in the terms
and conditions of the 2015 Convertible Note, (i)
adjustment has been made to the conversion
price of the 2015 Convertible Note from HK$0.85
per share to HK$1.81 per share with effect
from 14 October 2015 as a result of the Capital
Reorganisation and the Rights Issue; (ii) further
adjustment was made to the conversion price of
the 2015 Convertible Note from HK$1.81 per share
to HK$0.33 per share with effect from 7 January
2016 as a result of the entering into the deed of
amendment to revise the conversion price and the
same was approved by Shareholders on 7 January
2016.

Particulars of the 2015 Convertible Note are
summarized as follows:

Holder of the Convertible Note

AR ERA A

Outstanding principal amount as at the date of
this report

RARERHZREERS T

Issue date
217HH

Maturity date
PR

Conversion price as at the date of this report

RAHmE Rz KRB
Charge on Assets

As at 31 March 2016, the Group had bank
loans amounting to HK$100,087,000 (2015:
HK$293,925,000) which were secured by the
investment properties of the Group with an
aggregate net book value of HK$208,196,000
(2015: HK$713,027,000).
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2015 F AR RBFISHA LT -

: Madian Star Limited

: HK$86,000,000

86,000,000 /& 7T

: 12 June 2015

20156 A12H

: 12 June 2017

2017F6 A12H

: HK$0.33 (subject to adjustment)
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Chairman’s Statement and Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

FRGEREEENR®R DM

Material Acquisitions and Disposals

On 6 August 2015, the Company entered into 4
sets of sale and purchase agreements in relation
to the purchase of the sale shares and sale loans
of the properties group for a total consideration
of HK$240 million from a connected party. The
properties group has 11 properties comprises
6 residential units (3 units in Hong Kong and 3
units in Singapore) and 5 industrial units. These
transactions were approved by independent
Shareholders on 7 October 2015 and the
completion date of these transactions was 11
November 2015.

Save as disclosed above, the Group had no
material acquisitions or disposals of subsidiaries
or associated companies for the year ended 31
March 2016.

Exposure on Foreign Exchange Fluctuations

Most of the Group’s revenues and payments are in
US dollars, Hong Kong dollars, Singapore dollars
and Renminbi. During the year, the Group did not
have significant exposure to the fluctuation in
exchange rates and thus, no financial instrument
for hedging purposes was employed. The directors
considered the risk of exposure to the currency
fluctuation to be minimal.

Contingent Liabilities

The Group did not have any significant contingent
liabilities as at 31 March 2016 (2015: nil).

Capital Expenditure and Capital Commitments
Capital Expenditure

For the year ended 31 March 2016, the Group
invested HK$90,000 (2015: HK$183,000) in the
purchase of property, plant and equipment, and
spent HK$214,936,000 (2015: HK$291,619,000)
on addition of investment properties. These
capital expenditures were financed from internal
resources and funds from previous fund raising
activities of the Company.
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Chairman’s Statement and Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

FRGEREEEN®R DM

Capital Commitments

As at 31 March 2016, the Group had capital
commitments in respect of capital expenditure
contracted for but not provided in respect of
investment properties of HK$5,241,000 (2015:
HK$764,000).

EMPLOYEES

As at 31 March 2016, the Group had 40
employees (2015: 39). Staff costs (including
directors’ emoluments) amounted to
HK$16,501,000 for the year under review
(2015: HK$15,982,000). The Group remunerates
its employees based on their performance,
experience and prevailing industry practice. The
Group has set out the Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme for the Hong Kong’s employees and
has made contributions to the state-sponsored
pension scheme operated by the PRC government
for the PRC employees. The Group has a share
option scheme to motivate valued employees.

EVENTS AFTER THE END OF THE
REPORTING PERIOD

Skill Master Investment Limited as purchaser, a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, and an
independent third party as vendor, entered into a
sale and purchase agreement and a supplemental
agreement on 13 June 2016 and 20 June 2016
respectively. Pursuant to the agreements, the
purchaser has conditionally agreed to acquire
and the seller has conditionally agreed to sell
the entire issued share capital and shareholder’s
loan of Treasure Arts International Group
Limited (“TAI”) at an aggregate consideration
of HK$51,981,900. Details of this transaction is
published on the Company’s announcement dated
13 June 2016. The completion of this transaction
is subject to Shareholders’ approval at the special
general meeting of the Company which is to be
held in August 2016; and upon completion TAI
will become a subsidiary of the Company. TAI
has entered into 20 provisional sale and purchase
agreements with the property owners of 20 units
of Fung Wah Factorial Building, Nos. 646, 648 &
648A Castle Peak Road, Kowloon, Hong Kong in
early June 2016.
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Chairman’s Statement and Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

ITEREREEENwWE DM a)

PROSPECTS

The China economy had been grown at a slower
rate than the government target of 7% in 2015,
the continuous sliding of the Chinese and Hong
Kong stock markets in the past months, the
financial uncertainties about the pace of increase
in interest rates in the United States and the
instabilities in the European economy, which are
expected to cloud the global economic outlook.
As Hong Kong’s economic performance hinges on
global economic and financial conditions, these
uncertain factors may affect property market
sentiment in the months ahead. However, we
expect the market to remain buoyant with more
projects coming onto the market at competitive
pricing levels and strong end user demand driving
sales.

The Group will continue to closely monitor market
changes, continue to adhere to its principle of
steady development and endeavor to improve the
development of the Project Inverness so as to
increase the asset turnover rate. Meanwhile, the
Group strives to improve the debt structure, adjust
the project’s management system in respect of
management models and construction cost in
order to enhance the profitability of the Group.

The turnover of the garment and sourcing export
businesses continues decreasing due to the
transferring of customer orders, shrinking profit
margins and declining sales, the Board is now
further evaluating this business segment and shall
take appropriate action.

Eminence Enterprise Limited 2015/16 Annual Report

RE

PEEER2015F 2 ERBEHT R
B2T7% B RERFERTRB
EHARETE  XBNESKEE
NRER 1 &= M BN E B RE
BHETELREENS - ARER
RERRARREENBHRRE S
e ZETHAERIITERR
BAMEMSHRR - A BE
ELHMIAEARBRFNRNERELT
5 URIMERE KRG HEHE - T
BHTSE RSB -

AEEKEETYRIT S #
BERBIEENERA BNREL
NERLTBEAZER tMiESEE
BAEEE - fE  AEESNNER
B N EERAMERKARN
REBEBEMEERS  URTAEHE
HY 2 )88

FBREARKERNE L RS
T BRAEFITEEE MR
T8 EERTEE—STHEE
% e RREE T -



Chairman’s Statement and Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

FRGEREEEN®R DM

For the Project Matheson, it is now in the
mediation process with the owner of the
remaining unit in the Land (Compulsory Sale for
Redevelopment) Ordinance; and the sale order
may be granted by the court in about September
2016. For the Project Inverness, the foundation
works has commenced and to be completed
in September 2016; and it is expected to be
launched in the year 2018.

For the securities investment business, the
Company reviews the performance of its existing
investment portfolio and evaluating the investment
potentials of other investment opportunities
available to the Company. The Company shall
make suitable investment decisions which
broadens and diversifies its investment portfolio
with a view of realizing and/or optimizing the
expected return and minimizing the risks.

Looking forward to 2016/17, the Group shall
emphasize the business segments of property
development and securities investment; and to
explore further quality investment opportunities to
enhance its shareholders wealth.

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, | would like to extend my
sincere gratitude to our staff and fellow directors
for their contribution to the Group’s development
and cordial thanks to the continuing support of
our customers, suppliers, business associates and
shareholders.

Kwong Jimmy Cheung Tim
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 23 June 2016
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Biographical Details of Directors

EECER

MR. KWONG JIMMY CHEUNG TIM
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Mr. Kwong, aged 73, is an executive director,
chairman, chief executive officer and authorised
representative of the Company and chairman of
the Executive Committee. He is also an executive
director, president, chief executive officer and
authorised representative, and chairman of the
Executive Committee of Easyknit International
Holdings Limited (“Easyknit International”). Mr.
Kwong graduated from The University of Hong
Kong in 1965 and was admitted as Barrister-at-
Law in the United Kingdom in 1970 and in Hong
Kong in 1973 respectively. He has over 30 years
of experience in the legal field. He serves as
director of various subsidiaries of the Company
and Easyknit International. Mr. Kwong was
appointed to the Board as an independent non-
executive director in 2003, and was subsequently
re-designated as an executive director in 2007. In
2007, Mr. Kwong was appointed as chairman and
chief executive officer of the Company.

MS. LUI YUK CHU
Deputy Chairman

Ms. Lui, aged 58, is an executive director and
deputy chairman of the Company and a member
of the Executive Committee. She is also an
executive director and vice president, and a
member of the Executive Committee of Easyknit
International. Ms. Lui has been involved in
the textiles industry for over 30 years and has
extensive experience in design, manufacturing,
marketing and distribution of apparel. She serves
as director of various subsidiaries of the Company
and Easyknit International. Ms. Lui was appointed
to the Board as an executive director in 2003 and
was appointed as deputy chairman in 2006. She
is also the mother of Ms. Koon Ho Yan Candy, an
executive director of the Company. Ms. Lui is also
the paternal sister-in-law of Mr. Lai Law Kau, a
non-executive director of the Company.
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Biographical Details of Directors (continued)

EECER®

MS. KOON HO YAN CANDY

Ms. Koon, aged 31, is an executive director and
authorised representative of the Company and is
a member of the Executive Committee since 2010.
She is also an executive director, authorised
representative and a member of the Executive
Committee of Easyknit International. Ms. Koon
obtained a Bachelor of Arts degree in Economics
and Politics from the University of Durham,
England in 2007. She also received her Bachelor
of Laws degree and Legal Practice Course
qualification in 2009 from the College of Law,
England. Ms. Koon is the daughter of Ms. Lui,
the deputy chairman of the Company. She is also
the niece of Mr. Lai Law Kau, the non-executive
director of the Company.

Mr. Tse Wing Chiu Ricky

Mr. Tse, aged 58, is a non-executive director of
the Company. He is also a non-executive director
of Easyknit International. Mr. Tse obtained a
Master’s Degree in Business Administration
from Adam Smith University of America in the
United States in 1996. He has more than 30
years of experience in garment manufacturing
and merchandising. Mr. Tse was appointed to the
Board as an executive director and vice chairman
in 2005, and was subsequently re-designated from
vice chairman to chairman and appointed as chief
executive officer in 2006. In 2007, Mr. Tse was re-
designated from an executive director to a non-
executive director of the Company and resigned
as chairman and chief executive officer.
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Biographical Details of Directors (continued)

EECER#®

MR. LAl LAW KAU

Mr. Lai, aged 55, is a non-executive director of
the Company since 2013. He has been involved
in the textiles industry over 20 years and has
extensive experience in design, manufacturing,
marketing and distribution of apparel. He is also
a non-executive director of Easyknit International.
Mr. Lai is a paternal brother-in-law of Ms. Lui, the
deputy chairman of the Company, and he is also
an uncle of Ms. Koon, an executive director of the
Company.

MR. KAN KA HON

Mr. Kan, aged 65, is an independent non-
executive director of the Company since 2003.
He is also a member and chairman of the Audit
Committee, a member of the Remuneration
Committee and Nomination Committee. He holds a
Bachelor’s Degree in Science from The University
of Hong Kong and is a fellow member of The
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants
and a member of The Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. He has over 30
years of experience in accounting and finance. Mr.
Kan is also an independent non-executive director
of Victory City International Holdings Limited
(Stock Code: 0539).

MR. LAU SIN MING

Mr. Lau, aged 54, is an independent non-
executive director of the Company since 2004.
He is also a member and chairman of the
Remuneration Committee, a member of the Audit
Committee and Nomination Committee. He is a
fellow member of The Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants and a member of The Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. He
has over 30 years of experience in accounting and
auditing and is now working as a tax consultant.
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Biographical Details of Directors (continued)

EECER®

MR. FOO TAK CHING

Mr. Foo, aged 82, is an independent non-
executive director of the Company since 2007. He
is also a member and chairman of the Nomination
Committee, a member of the Audit Committee
and Remuneration Committee. He is currently a
Partner of Messrs. Liu, Choi & Chan, a firm of
solicitors and notaries in Hong Kong and has
been practising in the legal field for more than 30
years. He obtained his LLB from the University
of London in the United Kingdom in 1968 and a
diploma in Chinese Laws from the University of
East Asia in Macau in 1987. Mr. Foo was admitted
as a solicitor in England and Wales in 1972 and
in Hong Kong in 1973 and admitted as a barrister
and solicitor in the State of Victoria, Australia
in 1982. He is a Notary Public and a China
Appointed Attesting Officer.
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Corporate Governance Report

TERERRSE

The Board of Directors of the Company (“Board”)
is committed to achieving high standards
of corporate governance by emphasizing
transparency, independence, accountability,
responsibility and fairness. The Board strives to
ensure that effective self-regulatory practices exist
to protect the interests of the shareholders of the
Company and to enhance long-term shareholders’
value.

COMPLIANCE WITH CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE CODE

The Company has applied the principles
and complied with all the code provisions of
the Corporate Governance Code as set out
in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities (“Listing Rules”) on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock
Exchange”) during the year ended 31 March 2016,
with the exception of the following deviation.

Code Provision A.2.1

Chairman and chief executive should not be
performed by the same individual

The Company does not have separate appointments
for chairman and chief executive officer. Mr.
Kwong Jimmy Cheung Tim holds both positions.
The Board believes that vesting the roles of
both chairman and chief executive officer in the
same person enables the Group to have a stable
and consistent leadership. It also facilitates the
planning and execution of the Company’s strategy
and is hence, for the interests of the Company
and its shareholders.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)
TEERRE

THE BOARD
Board Composition

The Board currently comprises 8 Directors, with
3 executive Directors, 2 non-executive Directors
and 3 independent non-executive Directors
(“INEDs”). The Board has in its composition a
balance of skills and experience necessary for
decision making and fulfilling its business needs.
The participation of non-executive Directors in
the Board bring independent judgment on issues
relating to the Group’s strategy, performance,
conflicts of interest and management process to
ensure that the interests of all shareholders of the
Company have been duly considered.

Each of the non-executive Directors has entered
into a service contract for a term of 3 years and
is subject to termination by either party giving not
less than one month’s prior written notice to the
other.

The Board considers that all of the independent
non-executive Directors are independent and
has received from each of them the annual
confirmations of independence required by the
Listing Rules.

The composition of the Board during the year and
up to date of this report is set out as follows:

Executive Directors:
Mr. Kwong Jimmy Cheung Tim
- Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
Ms. Lui Yuk Chu - Deputy Chairman
Ms. Koon Ho Yan Candy

Non-executive Directors:

Mr. Tse Wing Chiu Ricky
Mr. Lai Law Kau
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Independent non-executive Directors:

Mr. Kan Ka Hon
Mr. Lau Sin Ming
Mr. Foo Tak Ching

The biographical details of all Directors are set out
in pages 20 to 23 of this annual report. Among
members of the Board, Ms. Koon Ho Yan Candy is
the daughter of Ms. Lui Yuk Chu. Mr. Lai Law Kau
is the paternal brother-in-law of Ms. Lui Yuk Chu
and the uncle of Ms. Koon Ho Yan Candy. Save
as disclosed herein, to the best knowledge of the
Company, there is no other financial, business,
family or other material or relevant relationships
among the members of the Board.

The Board is responsible for the approval and
monitoring of the Group’s overall strategies and
policies, approval of business plans, evaluating
the performance of the Group and oversight of
management. It is also responsible for promoting
the success of the Company and its businesses
by directing and supervising the Company’s
affairs.

The Board focuses on overall strategies and
policies with particular attention paid to the
growth and financial performance of the Group.

The Board delegates day-to-day operations of
the Group to executive Directors and senior
management of every business segment, while
reserving certain key matters for its approval.
Decisions of the Board are communicated to the
management through executive Directors who
have attended Board meetings.

The Company had arranged for appropriate
liability insurance for the directors of the Group
for indemnifying their liabilities arising from the
corporate activities.

Eminence Enterprise Limited 2015/16 Annual Report

BAFHTES:

e b
gEHTE
Bistestst

TREZINFABRES N AEHE 20
E23H - EFENEF  BAMKL
REEURR LT 2R - BERTER
EERKLT CEBRBRMZ L2
Lo RAREAMBEREN - HARF
FRA > ERGK 8 ZHIEEME
%%Z A REBSREME KRNI

%%2@?%&& CRAREE B
HQ&E& ﬁt/ﬁ%j‘% uJFEU n¥ E$
EEVRENEEEEB - EFEN
QELLE%&WA$ GESEYE
ERRBIREER 2K -

EEQIINEBER
EEAKECERK

SRS M EK - LHE
BRI -

EEERAEECRREEIHY
TEERBEBOIH ERERER
2 FEEREHETIZESHELE
ﬁZ%ﬂ EEQURTHLERES
El = nﬁZ#ﬂ?T%%ﬁ-yL EB EEF

ARBERASECEERBER
f&%ﬁ'uﬁﬁiﬁﬁié@ﬁﬁ
2 BEERHERE



Corporate Governance Report (continued)
TEERRE 2

All Directors have been provided, on a monthly
basis, with the Group’s management information
updates to give them aware of the Group’s affairs
and facilitates them to discharge their duties
under the relevant requirements of the Listing
Rules.

Professional Development

The Company provides regular updates on the
business development of the Group. The Directors
are regularly briefed on the latest development
regarding the Listing Rules and other applicable
statutory requirements to ensure compliance and
upkeep of good corporate governance practices.
In addition, the Company has been encouraging
the Directors to enroll in professional development
courses and seminars relating to the Listing
Rules, companies ordinance and corporate
governance practices organized by professional
bodies or chambers in Hong Kong. All Directors
are requested to provide the Company with their
respective training records pursuant to the Code.

All Directors, namely, Mr. Kwong Jimmy Cheung
Tim, Ms. Lui Yuk Chu, Ms. Koon Ho Yan Candy,
Mr. Tse Wing Chiu Ricky, Mr. Lai Law Kau, Mr.
Kan Ka Hon, Mr. Lau Sin Ming and Mr. Foo Tak
Ching, have participated in appropriate continuous
professional development to develop and refresh
their knowledge and skills during the year. Such
professional development was completed either
by way of attending briefings, conference, forum,
courses and seminars and self-reading which are
relevant to the business or directors’ duties.
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Attendance record of Directors and Committee Members in 2015/16

N5H6EERESRZE R BHRLR

215 General
AGM meetings

2015

RagEEre R&Ae
Number of meetings EEIN 1 5
Executive Directors yf1gs
Kwong Jimmy Cheung Tim BRA 1/1 5/5
Lui Yuk Chu ZTh 0/ 0/5
Koon Ho Yan Candy BAm 0/ 0/5
Non-executive Directors FuinEs
Tse Wing Chiu Ricky i i 5/5
Lai Law Kau BER 11 5/5
Independent BUFHTES

Non-executive Directors

Kan Ka Hon BES 11 5
Lau Sin Ming =4 i 5
Foo Tak Ching R 0/ 5

Accountability and Audit

The Board is responsible for overseeing the
preparation of annual financial statements which
give a true and fair view of the Group’s state
of affairs, results and cash flows for the year.
Management provides the Board with management
accounts and updates on a monthly basis, with
a view to giving a balanced and understandable
assessment of the Group’s performance, financial
position, and prospects to enable the Board as a
whole and each Director to discharge their duties.
In preparing the financial statements for the year
ended 31 March 2016, the Board:

(@) adopted HKFRS, which conform to the

International Financial Reporting Standards in
all material respects;
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)
TEERRE

(b) selected suitable accounting policies and
applied them consistently;

(c) made prudent and reasonable judgements and
estimates; and

(d) ensured that the financial statements were
prepared on a going concern basis.

In 2015/16, the annual and interim results
were published within 3 months and 2 months
respectively after the end of the relevant periods
to provide shareholders with transparent and
timely financial information.

The responsibilities of the Company’s external
auditors, Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, on the
financial statements are set out in the section
headed “Independent Auditor’s Report” in this
annual report.

Internal Controls

The Board has overall responsibility for the
system of internal controls of the Company and
for reviewing its effectiveness. The Board is
committed to implementing an effective and sound
internal control system to safeguard the interest
of shareholders and the Group’s assets.

During the year ended 31 March 2016, the
Company conducted reviews on the effectiveness
of the internal control system. The Audit
Committee reviewed the internal control report. No
major issue has been identified during the course
of review.
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TEERRSE

Corporate Governance Functions

The Board is responsible for performing the
following corporate governance duties:

(@)

(e)

to develop and review the Company’s policies
and practices on corporate governance and
make recommendations to the Board;

to review and monitor the training and
continuous professional development of
directors and senior management of the
Group;

to review and monitor the Company’s policies
and practices on compliance with legal and
regulatory requirements;

to develop, review and monitor the code
of conduct and compliance manual (if any)
applicable to employees and Directors; and

to review the Company’s compliance with
the Code and disclosure in the Corporate
Governance Report.

During the year ended 31 March 2016, the Board
had performed the above-mentioned corporate
governance functions by reviewing the Company’s
policies and practices on corporate governance
and compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)
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DELEGATION BY THE BOARD
Board Committees

The Board has delegated authority to 4
standing Committees with specific roles and
responsibilities. Their terms of reference and
composition are reviewed and updated regularly
to ensure that they remain appropriate and reflect
changes in good practice and governance. The
terms of reference of each of the Committees
are available on the Company’s website. The
attendance record of the Committee members is
shown on page 28 of this Annual Report.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee, comprising 3 INEDs,
namely Mr. Kan Ka Hon (chairman of the Audit
Committee), Mr. Lau Sin Ming and Mr. Foo Tak
Ching, held 2 meetings for the year ended 31
March 2016.

The principal functions of Audit Committee
include:

— to oversee the relationship with the Auditor;

— to review the interim and annual financial
statements before publication; and

— to oversee the Group’s financial reporting
system and internal control procedures.
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During the year ended 31 March 2016, the
Audit Committee (i) reviewed the reports
from the Auditor, accounting principles and
practices adopted by the Group, management
representation letters, and management’s
response in relation to the annual results for the
year ended 31 March 2015 and the interim results
for the six months ended 30 September 2015;
and (ii) reviewed the financial reports for the year
ended 31 March 2015 and for the six months
ended 30 September 2015 and recommended the
same to the Board for approval.

Auditors’ Remuneration

The fees in relation to the audit service provided
by Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, the external
auditor of the Company, for the year ended 31
March 2016 amounted to HK$2,080,000 (2015:
HK$1,385,000), and those in relation to non-
audit services amounted to HK$724,000 (2015:
HK$1,682,000).

Review of 2015/16 Consolidated Financial
Statements

The Audit Committee reviewed the 2015/16
consolidated financial statements in conjunction
with the external auditor of the Company. Based
on this review and discussions with management,
the Audit Committee was satisfied that the
consolidated financial statements were prepared
in accordance with applicable accounting
standards, and fairly present the Group’s financial
position and results for the year ended 31 March
2016.
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Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee, comprising 4
members, including Mr. Lau Sin Ming (chairman
of the Remuneration Committee), Mr. Kan Ka Hon
and Mr. Foo Tak Ching who are INEDs, and Mr.
Kwong Jimmy Cheung Tim who is an executive
Director, held 1 meeting for the year ended 31
March 2016.

The principal functions of the Remuneration
Committee include:

— to recommend to the Board on the Company’s
policies and structure for the remuneration of
the Directors and senior management of the
Group;

— to recommend to the Board on the
remuneration package of all executive
Directors and senior management of the
Group;

— to review and approve the management’s
remuneration proposals with reference to
corporate goals and objectives by the Board
from time to time.

The primary objective of the Company’s
remuneration policy is to attract, retain and
motivate the personnels by providing fair reward
for their contributions to the Group’s performance.
In this context, the remuneration policy is to set
the overall remuneration package at a competitive
level and in a form that permits additional
remuneration to be earned for high performance
over a sustained period. The remuneration
packages are determined with reference to the
time commitment and responsibilities of each
individual, the Company’s performance and the
prevailing market conditions.
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During the year ended 31 March 2016, the
Remuneration Committee reviewed the
remuneration policies and structure for the
Directors and senior management of the Group.

Senior management’s remuneration payment of
the Group for the year ended 31 March 2016 falls
within the following bands:

Remuneration

e

Nil to HK$1,000,000
£%1,000,0007%5 7T

HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000
1,500,001 /& L £ 2,000,000 /& 7T

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee, comprising 4
members, including Mr. Foo Tak Ching (chairman
of the Nomination Committee), Mr. Kan Ka Hon
and Mr. Lau Sin Ming who are INEDs and Mr.
Kwong Jimmy Cheung Tim who is an executive
Director, held 1 meeting for the year ended 31
March 2016.

The principal functions of the Nomination
Committee include:

— to review the structure, size and composition
(including the skills, knowledge and
experience) of the Board;

— to identify and nominate suitable candidates
of directors for the Board’s consideration; and

— to assess the independence of the independent
non-executive directors.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)
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The Board adopted a nomination policy which
set out the approach to achieving board
diversity in the Company in order to enhance
the effectiveness of the Board and its corporate
governance standard. The Company recognizes
the importance of having a diverse team of
board members, which is en essential element
in maintaining a competitive advantage. The
Nomination Committee has been delegated the
authority to review and assess the diversity
of the Board and its skills and experience by
way of consideration of a number of factors,
including but not limited to, gender, age, cultural
and educational background, and professional
experience. The Nomination Committee will give
consideration to the policy when identifying and
selecting suitably qualified candidates. The Policy
will be reviewed on a regular basis.

During the year ended 31 March 2016, the
Nomination Committee (i) reviewed the structure,
size, composition and diversity of the Board; and
(i) assessed the independence of independent
non-executive directors.

Executive Committee

The Executive Committee currently comprises
all the executive Directors, namely Mr. Kwong
Jimmy Cheung Tim (chairman of the Executive
Committee), Ms. Lui Yuk Chu and Ms. Koon Ho
Yan Candy.

It meets as and when required between regular
Board meetings of the Company, and operates as
a general management committee under the direct
authority of the Board. Within the parameters of
authority delegated by the Board, the Executive
Committee is committed to the implementation of
the Group’s strategy set by the Board, monitors
the Group’s investment and trading performance,
funding and financing requirements, and reviews
the management performance.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

The company secretary assists the Board by
ensuring good information flow within the Board
and that the Board policy and procedures are
followed. Mr. Lee Po Wing, the company secretary
of the Company, has taken not less than 15 hours
of relevant professional training during the year.

COMPLIANCE WITH MODEL CODE OF THE
LISTING RULES

The Company has adopted the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Issuers (“Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10
to the Listing Rules as its own code of conduct
regarding directors’ securities transactions.
Having made specific enquiry of all directors, the
Company was not aware of any non-compliance
with the required standard as set out in the
Model Code regarding securities transactions by
directors throughout the year ended 31 March
2016.

MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS

During the year ended 31 March 2016, the
Group entered into certain transactions with
“related parties” as defined under the applicable
accounting standards. Details of the material
related party transactions are disclosed in note
15 to the consolidated financial statements of this
Annual Report.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS
Convening a special general meeting

Special general meetings may be convened upon
receipt of the written request submitted by any
shareholder(s) of the Company not less than one-
tenth of the share capital of the Company carrying
the rights of voting at general meetings of the
Company. Such written requisition must state
the purposes of the meeting, and signed by the
requisitionist(s) and deposited at the principal
place of business of the Company at Block A,
7th Floor, Hong Kong Spinners Building, Phase
6, 481-483 Castle Peak Road, Cheung Sha Wan,
Kowloon, Hong Kong (for the attention of the
Company Secretary).

Putting enquiries to the Board

Shareholders may send their enquiries and
concerns to the Board by addressing them to the
Company Secretary and deposit at the Company’s
principal place of business in Hong Kong or by
e-mail to info@eminencehk.com.

Putting forward proposal at general meeting

Shareholders can submit a written requisition to
move a resolution at the general meeting. The
number of shareholders shall represent not less
than one-twentieth of the total voting rights of
all the shareholders having at the date of the
requisition a right to vote at the general meeting,
or shall not less than one hundred shareholders.

The written requisition must state the resolution,
accompanied by a statement with respect to the
matter referred to in any proposed resolution
or the business to be dealt with at the general
meeting. It must also be signed by all of the
shareholders concerned and be deposited at
Company’s principal place of business in Hong
Kong for the attention of the Company Secretary.
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The shareholders concerned must deposit a
sum of money reasonably sufficient to meet the
Company’s expenses giving the notice of the
resolution and circulating the statement submitted
by the shareholders concerned under applicable
laws and rules.

SHAREHOLDER RELATIONS

The Company has adopted a Shareholders’
Communication Policy in March 2012 reflecting
mostly the current practices of the Company
for the communication with its shareholders.
Information will be communicated to shareholders
through:

— continuous disclosure to the Stock Exchange
of all material information;

— periodic disclosure through the annual and
interim reports;

— notices of meetings and explanatory materials;

— the annual general meetings and other general
meetings; and

— the Company’s website at
www.eminence-enterprise.com.

The Board endeavours to maintain an on-going
dialogue and meetings with shareholders. The
Board is grateful to Shareholders for their views,
and welcomes their questions and concerns raised
in relation to the management and governance of
the Group.

2015 Annual General Meeting

The Board and the management are committed
to the constructive use of the AGM as a forum to
meet with Shareholders and to hear their view and
answer their questions about the Group and its
business.
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The Chairman and a majority of other Directors
along with key executives and the external auditor
attended the 2015 AGM and addressed concerns
raised by Shareholders about the resolutions
being proposed and the Company’s business.

At the 2015 AGM, the Company continued its
practice of proposing separate resolutions on each
substantially separate issue. All resolutions were
passed by way of poll verified by the registrar
scrutineer. The poll voting results are available on
the Company’s website.

Matters resolved at the 2015 AGM

— received the audited financial statements for
the year ended 31 March 2015 together with
the Reports of the Directors and the Auditor

— re-election of Mr. Kwong Jimmy Cheung Tim
and Mr. Kan Ka Hon as Directors

— re-appointment of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
as Auditor of the Company and authorization to
the Directors to fix the Auditor’s remuneration

— approval of a general mandate for the
Directors to repurchase shares of an amount
not exceeding 10% of the aggregate nominal
amount of the Company’s issued share capital
as at the date of 2015 AGM

— approval of a general mandate for the
Directors to allot and issue of new shares
of an amount not exceeding 20% of the
aggregate nominal amount of the Company’s
issued share capital as at the date of 2015
AGM
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2016 Annual General Meeting

All Shareholders are encouraged to attend the
2016 AGM and exercise their rights to vote.
They are invited to ask questions related to
the business of the meeting, and will have an
opportunity to meet with the Directors following
the conclusion of the meeting.

Apart from normal business at the 2016 AGM, the
Board has proposed general mandates for the
repurchase of Company’s shares and the issue of
the Company’s shares. Further details of business
to be conducted at the 2016 AGM will be set out
in the circular to Shareholders to be sent together
with this Annual Report and posted on the
Company’s website.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the year ended 31 March 2016, the
Company has not made any changes to its Bye-
Laws. A consolidated version of the Memorandum
of Association and Bye-Laws of the Company is
available on the website of the Company.

CHANGES AFTER CLOSURE OF FINANCIAL
YEAR

This report takes into account the changes that
have occurred since 1 April 2016 to the date of
approval of this report.
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Directors’ Report
EESHRE

The Directors present their annual report and the
audited consolidated financial statements for the
year ended 31 March 2016.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company.
The principal activities of the Company’s
subsidiaries are set out in note 36 to the
consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS

The results of the Group for the year ended
31 March 2016 are set out in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income on page 61.

SHARE CAPITAL

The details of movements in the Company’s share
capital during the year are set out in note 29 to
the consolidated financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

During the year, the Group spent HK$90,000 on
acquisition of property, plant and equipment.
The details of movements in property, plant
and equipment of the Group during the year are
set out in note 16 to the consolidated financial
statements.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

The Group’s investment properties were revalued
as at 31 March 2016 by independent professional
property valuers and the loss arising on changes
in fair value of investment properties, which had
be charged directly to profit or loss, amounted
to HK$33,399,000. Details of these are set out in
note 17 to the consolidated financial statements.
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PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

The details of the Company’s principal
subsidiaries as at 31 March 2016 are set out in
note 36 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the
Company and the Group during the year are set
out in the consolidated statement of changes in
equity.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE
COMPANY

The Company’s reserves for the distribution to
shareholders at 31 March 2016 were as follows:

Contributed surplus

ONE

Under the laws in Bermuda, the contributed
surplus account of a company is available for
distribution. However, the Company cannot
declare or pay a dividend, or make a distribution
out of contributed surplus, if:

(@) it is, or would after the payment be, unable to
pay its liabilities as they become due; or

(b) the realizable value of its assets would thereby
be less than the aggregate of its liabilities and
its issued share capital and share premium
accounts.
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DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company during the year and
up to the date of this report were:

Executive directors:

Mr. Kwong Jimmy Cheung Tim
(Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)

Ms. Lui Yuk Chu (Deputy Chairman)

Ms. Koon Ho Yan Candy

Non-executive directors:

Mr. Tse Wing Chiu Ricky
Mr. Lai Law Kau

Independent non-executive directors:

Mr. Kan Ka Hon
Mr. Lau Sin Ming
Mr. Foo Tak Ching

In accordance with the Company’s Bye-Law 99,
Ms. Lui Yuk Chu and Ms. Koon Ho Yan Candy
and Mr. Foo Tak Ching will retire from office at
the forthcoming annual general meeting of the
Company by rotation and, being eligible, have
offered themselves for re-election.

The Company has received annual confirmations
from each of the independent non-executive
directors as regards their independence to
the Company and considers that each of
the independent non-executive Directors is
independent to the Company.

No Director proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has
an unexpired service contract which is not
determinable by the Company or any of its
subsidiaries within one year without payment of
compensation, other than statutory compensation.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS

Biographical details of the Directors are set out on
pages 20 to 23 of this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS
OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in the sections headed
“Connected Transaction” and “Continuing
Connected Transaction”, there was no contract of
significance, to which the Company or any of its
subsidiaries was a party and in which a director
of the Company had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisting at the end of the
year or at any time during the year.

CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS’
INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in the sections headed
“Connected Transaction” and “Continuing
Connected Transaction”, there was no contract
of significance between the Company or any of
its subsidiaries and a controlling shareholder or
any of its subsidiaries subsisting during or at the
end of the year, and there was no contract of
significance for the provision of services to the
Company or any of its subsidiaries by a controlling
shareholder or any of its subsidiaries.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 March 2016, the interests or short
positions of the Directors and chief executives
of the Company in the shares, underlying shares
and debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of
Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(“SFO”)) which were notified to the Company
and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(“Stock Exchange”) pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8
of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short
positions which they were taken or deemed to
have under such provisions of the SFO), or which
were recorded in the register required to be kept
by the Company under Section 352 of the SFO, or
which were required, pursuant to the Model Code
for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Issuers (“Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10
to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
(“Listing Rules”) on the Stock Exchange, to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange,
were as follows:

Number
of ordinary
shares held
Name of Director Capacity (long position)
REEER
RBEE
EStR 5% (#8)
Lui Yuk Chu Beneficiary of a trust 457,330,692
(note i)
E ERREANR)
Koon Ho Yan Candy Beneficiary of a trust 457,330,692
(note ii)
BT ERIBAWZ)

EERFRITHRAERKRD - 18
ROREER 2ER
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{H%XV$%7&%8“4€ﬂ§$
NARBE %éx%%ﬁ@ A ([ B
xﬁnm% 150X B (B ISR IR
“%&%fhw % R R R
BEREZERIAE)  HLEHR
RRALE %&%TMH%%NWE
FEZERMANERIOKE R
15 B Q%ﬂ%imﬁwqtmﬁﬂn
MEk+FrEl s FhEBEITAZEEHITH
HFRXGHZESTE([ZESFA ])E
MERRA BRI ERIORE DN
T

Number of Approximate
underlying percentage
shares held Total of interest
HERE E&ZBY
Rir&E st R4
880,281 458,210,973 41.04%
880,281 458,210,973 41.04%
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Notes:

()  These Shares are respectively registered in the name of and are
beneficially owned by Landmark Profits Limited and Goodco
Development Limited, both are wholly-owned subsidiaries of Easyknit
International Holdings Limited (“Easyknit International”). Sea Rejoice
Limited is interested in approximately 21.95% of the issued share
capital of Easyknit International and it is wholly-owned by Ms. Lui
Yuk Chu. Magical Profits Limited (“Magical Profits”) is interested
in approximately 36.74% of the issued share capital of Easyknit
International. Magical Profits is wholly-owned by Accumulate More
Profits Limited which in turn is wholly-owned by The Winterbothom
Trust Company Limited (“Winterbothom Trust”) as trustee of The
Magical 2000 Trust (the beneficiaries of which include Ms. Lui Yuk
Chu and her family members other than her spouse).

(i) ~ Ms. Koon Ho Yan Candy, the daughter of Ms. Lui Yuk Chu and a
director of the Company, is deemed to be interested in the shares by
virtue of her capacity as one of the beneficiaries of The Magical 2000
Trust.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2016,
none of the Directors or chief executives of the
Company had any interests or short positions in
the shares, underlying shares and debentures of
the Company or any of its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which
would have to be notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and
8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or
short positions which they were taken or deemed
to have under such provisions of the SFO), or
which were recorded in the register required to
be kept by the Company under Section 352 of the
SFO, or which were required to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
Model Code.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES
OR DEBENTURES

At no time during the year was the Company or
any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement
to enable the directors of the Company to acquire
benefits by means of acquisition of shares in, or
debentures of, the Company or any other body
corporate, and none of the directors or any of
their spouses or children under the age of 18, was
granted any right to subscribe for the equity or
debt securities of the Company or any other body
corporate nor had exercised any such right.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’
INTERESTS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES

As at 31 March 2016, the persons (other than the
directors or the chief executives of the Company)
who had an interest or a short position in the
shares and underlying shares of the Company
which would fall to be disclosed to the Company
under the provisions of Division 2 and 3 of Part
XV of the SFO, or which were recorded in the
register required to be kept by the Company
under Section 336 of the SFO were as follows:

FERRREOREBRD 2R

R2016E3 A31H  RARAKRN
SEERNFHEEREESFNBE K
FIEEXVELE 2 R B30 EBE KA M
ARABEBESLENARAIRESF K
HIEIEHIE 33618 ETFE 2 ELMR
MEZIABRZAL(ARAIES
TETBRAERIMNET

Number
of ordinary Number of Approximate
Name of substantial shares held underlying percentage
shareholder Notes ~ Capacity (long position)  shares held Total of interest
RREER BERE Ba2BY
TERF4R Wi At RtHA(72) ot it Eps
Koon Wing Yee a  Interest of spouse 457,330,692 880,281 458,210,973 41.04%
EkE REER
Landmark Profits Limited a&b  Beneficial owner 93,549,498 - 93,549,498 8.38%
EREA
Goodco Development Limited a&b  Beneficial owner 363,781,194 880,281 364,661,475 32.66%
ERERRRAT ERiAA
Easyknit International a&b Interest of controlled corporation 457,330,692 860,261 458,210,973 41.04%
KEER REHEE R
Magical Profits adc  Interest of controlled corporation 457,330,692 860,281 458,210,973 41.04%
REHAE R
Accumulate More Profits Limited a  Interest of controlled corporation 457,330,692 860,281 458,210,973 41.04%
RN B ER
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Name of substantial
shareholder

FERRER

Winterbothom Trust

Winterbotham Holdings Limited

Markson International Holdings
Limited

Christopher Geoffrey Douglas
Hooper

Ivan Geoffery Douglas Hooper

Madian Star Limited

Lung Chung Chi
3iva

Hu Rong
s

Notes
Wi

a&d

Capacity
it

Trustee
A

Interest of controlled corporation
RBHEE R

Interest of controlled corporation

ReHim2Es

Interest of controlled corporation
REHAE R

Interest of controlled corporation
REHAE R

Beneficial owner

BEEAA

Beneficial owner

BEEAA

Beneficial owner

BalAA

Number

of ordinary
shares held
(long position)
HREER
RA#E (78
457,330,692
457,330,692
457,330,692
457,330,692

457,330,692

145,700,000

84,000,000
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Number of
underlying
shares held
BERE
RH#E
880,281
880,281
880,281
880,281

880,281

260,606,060

Total
it

458,210,973

458,210,973

458,210,973

458,210,973

458,210,973

260,606,060

145,700,000

84,000,000

Approximate
percentage
of interest

R B8

BAtt

41.04%

41.04%

41.04%

41.04%

41.04%

23.34%

13.05%

7.52%
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Notes:

(@)

In the 475,330,692 shares, 93,549,498 shares and 363,781,194 shares
are registered in the name of and beneficially owned by Landmark
Profits Limited and Goodco Development Limited respectively, both
are the wholly-owned subsidiaries of Easyknit International. Goodco
Development Limited was also interested in 880,281 underlying
shares (subject to adjustment) to be issued upon the full conversion
of the 2014 Convertible Note. Sea Rejoice Limited is interested
in approximately 21.95% of the issued share capital of Easyknit
International and it is wholly-owned by Ms. Lui Yuk Chu. Magical
Profits is interested in approximately 36.74% of the issued share
capital of Easyknit International. Magical Profits is wholly-owned
by Accumulate More Profits Limited which in turn is wholly-owned
by Winterbotham Trust as trustee of The Magical 2000 Trust (the
beneficiaries of which include Ms. Lui Yuk Chu, a director of the
Company, and her family members other than her spouse). Ms. Koon
Ho Yan Candy, the daughter of Ms. Lui Yuk Chu and a director of
the Company, is deemed to be interested in the shares by virtue of
her capacity as one of the beneficiaries of The Magical 2000 Trust.
Mr. Koon Wing Yee, being the spouse of Ms. Lui Yuk Chu, is deemed
to be interested in the 475,330,692 shares and 880,281 underlying
shares by virtue of the SFO.

Mr. Kwong Jimmy Cheung Tim and Ms. Lui Yuk Chu, being directors
of the Company, are also directors of Landmark Profits Limited,
Goodco Development Limited and Easyknit International. Ms. Koon
Ho Yan Candy, being a director of the Company, is also a director of
Easyknit International.

Ms. Lui Yuk Chu, being a director of the Company, is also a director
of Sea Rejoice Limited and Magical Profits.

Winterbotham Trust is the trustee of The Magical 2000 Trust (the
beneficiaries of which include Ms. Lui Yuk Chu and her family
members other than her spouse). Winterbotham Trust is owned as to
75% by Winterbotham Holdings Limited (“Winterbotham Holdings”)
and 25% by Markson International Holdings Limited (“Markson”)
respectively. Winterbotham Holdings is owned as to approximately
99.99% by Mr. Christopher Geoffrey Douglas Hooper. And Markson
is owned as to 60% by Mr. Christopher Geoffrey Douglas Hooper and
40% by Mr. Ivan Geoffrey Douglas Hooper respectively.

the noteholder of a convertible note issued by the Company to
Madian Star Limited on 12 June 2015 in the aggregate principal
amount of HK$86,000,000 for a term of 2 years and conferring
rights to convert Shares on the basis of the then conversion price of
HK$0.33 per Share.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2016,
the Company had not been notified by any
persons (other than Directors or chief executives
of the Company) who had interests or short
positions in the shares and underlying shares of
the Company which would fall to be disclosed
to the Company under the provisions of Division
2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were
required to be recorded in the register kept by the
Company under Section 336 of the SFO.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

On 29 June 2012, a new share option scheme
(the “Scheme”) was adopted and approved by
the shareholders of the Company for a period
of 10 years commencing on the adoption date.
Since the adoption date, the Board, may at its
discretion, grant share options to any eligible
person to subscribe for the shares in the
Company subject to the terms and conditions as
stipulated in the Scheme. During the year ended
31 March 2016, no share option was outstanding,
granted, exercised, cancelled or lapsed under the
Scheme. Particulars of the Scheme and details
of the movements during the year in the share
options of the Company are set out in note 30 to
the consolidated financial statements.

CONNECTED TRANSACTION

Save as abovementioned connected transaction,
the Company or its subsidiaries did not have
any material connected transactions which were
subject to the requirements of the Listing Rules
during the year ended 31 March 2016.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTION

On 26 August 2015, Easyknit Worldwide Company
Limited (an indirectly wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company) as tenant entered into a tenancy
agreement with Wellmake Investments Limited (a
wholly-owned subsidiary of Easyknit International
which is a substantial shareholder of the Company)
as landlord in relation to the formal renewal of
the tenancy of a premises at Block A, 7th Floor,
Hong Kong Spinners Building, Phase 6, 481-483
Castle Peak Road, Cheung Sha Wan, Kowloon,
Hong Kong (the “Premises”) for a period of 2 years
from 1 September 2015 to 31 August 2017 at a
monthly rental of HK$208,000. The annual cap is
HK$2,496,000, being the aggregate annual rental
for the Premises based on the monthly rental of
HK$208,000. Details of the formal agreement are
set out in the Company’s announcement dated 26
August 2015.
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Directors’ Report (continued)
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Annual review of the continuing connected
transaction

Pursuant to Rule 14A.38 of the Listing Rules, the
Company has engaged the Company’s auditor
to perform certain review procedures in order
to report on the Group’s continuing connected
transaction in accordance with Hong Kong
Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000
“Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits or
Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and
with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s
Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions
under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. The auditor has reported the review
procedures to the Board and confirmed that the
continuing connected transaction for the year
ended 31 March 2016 (i) has received approval
of the Board; (ii) is in accordance with the pricing
policies of the Group, where applicable; (iii) has
been entered into in accordance with the terms
of the agreement governing the transaction;
and (iv) has not exceeded the cap amounts for
the year ended 31 March 2016. The auditor has
issued his unqualified letter containing his findings
and conclusions in respect of the continuing
connected transaction disclosed by the Group in
this annual report in accordance with Rule 14A.38
of the Listing Rules. A copy of the auditor’s letter
has been provided by the Company to the Stock
Exchange.
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Independent non-executive Directors have
reviewed the Group’s continuing connected
transaction and the report of the auditor and
confirmed that the continuing connected
transaction is (i) in the ordinary and usual course
of business of the Group; (ii) either on normal
commercial terms or on terms no less favourable
to the Group than terms available to (or from)
independent third parties; and (iii) in accordance
with the agreement governing them on terms
that are fair and reasonable and in the interests
of the shareholders of the Company as a whole.
Announcement was published regarding the
Group’s continuing connected transaction. The
Directors confirm that the Company has complied
with the disclosure requirements in accordance
with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules in so far as
they are applicable.

Save as disclosed above, the significant related
party transactions that did not constitute
connected transactions under the Listing Rules
made during the year were disclosed in note 15 to
the consolidated financial statements.

MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

During the year, the 5 largest suppliers of the
Group accounted for 100% of the Group’s
purchases and the largest supplier accounted for
approximately 34% of the Group’s purchases.

The 5 largest customers of the Group accounted
for approximately 79% of the Group’s turnover
and the largest customer accounted for
approximately 65% of the Group’s turnover.

None of the directors, their associates and
shareholders of the Company (which to the
knowledge of the directors of the Company, own
more than 5% of the Company’s share capital)
have an interest in the 5 largest suppliers or
customers of the Group.
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Directors’ Report (continued)
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PROPERTY VALUATION

Property valuations in respect of the Group’s
investment properties in Hong Kong and PRC have
been carried out by Vigers Appraisal & Consulting
Limited and Knight Frank Petty Limited as at
31 March 2016 and 2015, both are independent
qualified valuers. For the investment property in
Singapore, the valuation as at 31 March 2016
was carried out by DTZ Debenham Tie Leung
(SEA) Pte Limited, another independent qualified
professional valuer. Their valuations were based
on investment method and/or direct comparison
method as the valuation methodologies and were
used in preparing 2015/16 final results.

The Group’s investment properties were valued
at HK$1,333 million (2015: HK$925 million), an
increase over 2015 after adjusted for the exchange
adjustments additions of investment properties.
The decrease in fair value of approximately
HK$33 million was recognized in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income for the year.
Development properties and non-investment
properties of the Group were stated at cost less
impairment, if any, in these consolidated financial
statements.

The decrease in fair value of approximately HK$33
million was mainly attributable to decrease in
fair value of investment properties, while most
of the remaining investment properties showed a
decrease in fair value of properties in Hong Kong
as a result of rental rates of certain retail business
sectors have shown indications of reaching their
peaks.
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PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Group is exposed to various risks in its
businesses and operations. Through internal
control systems and procedures, the Company has
taken reasonable steps to ensure that significant
risks are monitored and do not adversely affect
the Group’s operations and performances. The
relevant risks are managed on an ongoing basis.
A non-exhaustive list of principal risks and
uncertainties facing the Group is set out below.

Market Risk

The Group’s revenue is principally derived from
Hong Kong and PRC. The conditions of the
economy as a whole and the property market may
have significant impact to the Group’s financial
results and conditions.

Compliance Risk

The Group’s operations require compliance with
local and oversea laws (including those of PRC,
Bermuda, Singapore and British Virgin Islands)
and regulations, including but not limited to
property sale, management and construction
as well as companies and securities laws. The
Group has constantly monitored its compliance
with relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the Group.
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Directors’ Report (continued)
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY

Bye-law 178 of the Company’s Bye-laws provides
that, among other, every director and other
officers of the Company shall be indemnified and
secured harmless out of the assets and profits of
the Company from and against all actions, costs,
charges, losses, damages and expenses which
they or any of them shall or may incur sustain
by or by reason of any act done, concurred in or
omitted in or about the execution of their duty,
or supposed duty, in their respective offices and
related matters provided that the indemnity shall
not extend to any matter in respect of any fraud
or dishonesty which may attach to any of them.
In this connection, the Company has arranged
directors’ and officers’ liability insurance coverage
for the directors and officers of the Company
during the year.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND
PERFORMANCE

The Group remains firmly committed to operating
as a socially-responsible company in all of its
business operations. In its property development,
the Group aims to efficiently use materials and
resources. The Group’s property management
division promotes environmental awareness and
takes steps to save energy and ensure efficient
use of resources. The Group has formed a task
group comprising of staff members from human
resources and administration, finance and
legal and is in the process of establishing and
enhancing its environmental policies, procedures
and performances.
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ACCOUNT OF KEY RELATIONSHIP

The Group adheres to the standards of business
ethics, this underpins how we conduct business
with our customers, suppliers and contractors.

Employees

We value our employees who are the Group’s
most important assets. We reward our staff
with competitive remuneration packages and
benefits. We are committed to fostering a
conducive, harmonious and discrimination-free
working environment. We have training budget to
subsidize the employees’ continued professional
development.

Occupational health and safety is the top priority
across our operations. Safety guidelines are
established to safeguard the employees from any
occupational hazards.

Customers

We strive to provide high quality and reliable
services to our customers. The privacy of our
clients’ information is well protected through a
privacy policy. Any complaints from customers
are handled and investigated in a thorough and
efficient manner.

Suppliers
We are committed to forging collaborative
partnership with our suppliers and have a

database of approved suppliers and vendors who
are assessed on a regular basis.
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Directors’ Report (continued)
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PURCHASE, SALE AND REDEMPTION OF
SHARES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the
Company’s listed securities during the year ended
31 March 2016.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy of the employees of the
Group is set up by the executive directors of
the Company on the basis of their performance,
experience and prevailing industry practice.

The emolument of the directors of the Company
is determined by the Board after recommendation
from the Remuneration Committee, having regard
to the time commitment and responsibilities of
individual directors, the Company’s performance
and the prevailing market conditions.

The Company has adopted a share option
scheme as an incentive to directors and eligible
employees. Details of the scheme are set out in
note 30 to the consolidated financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights
under the Company’s Bye-Laws or the laws in
Bermuda which would oblige the Company to
offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing
shareholders.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available
to the Company and within the knowledge of
its directors as at the date of this report, the
Company has maintained a sufficient public float
as required under the Listing Rules for the year
ended 31 March 2016.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has established an audit committee
in accordance with the requirements of the Listing
Rules and the Corporate Governance Code as
set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules. The
primary duty of Audit Committee is to review
and supervise the financial reporting process
and internal control systems of the Group. The
Audit Committee comprised of 3 independent
non-executive Directors.

The Audit Committee has reviewed the audited
financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 31 March 2016.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company’s Corporate Governance Report is
set out on pages 24 to 40.

EVENTS AFTER THE END OF THE
REPORTING PERIOD

Details of the significant event occurring after the

end of the reporting period are set out in note 37
to the consolidated financial statements.

AUDITOR

A resolution will be submitted to the annual
general meeting to re-appoint Messrs. Deloitte
Touche Tohmatsu as auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

KWONG JIMMY CHEUNG TIM
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 23 June 2016
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Independent Auditor’s Report

18 3 % BLEN R

TO THE MEMBERS OF EMINENCE ENTERPRISE LIMITED
(FORMERLY KNOWN AS EASYKNIT ENTERPRISES HOLDINGS
LIMITED)

(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Eminence
Enterprise Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 61 to 157, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
March 2016, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in
equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine
is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the
Bermuda Companies Act, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report. We conducted our audit
in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those
standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements are free from
material misstatement.

FELEXARAAZBRE
(FIEKEEXERAA])

(REFREEMRILZBRAF)

AZEE(ATEBIERM])EEZINENFE61E
157TESUCEERAR(ERT ) RENBR
RAIAEIEEEDNREMBHRE  UWERAY
BHRRBIEN2016F3 A1 B 2GR M BN
x BEEZBUEFEZGABEzREMEEMK
Tk BARZEHRIGERERER UK
ERSHBRMEREMREER -

EERAEMBBRRAREZER

BEARERRAERBELESHMAGRMHZE
BRBHRELARFED AR HEZRFE
EEMATZHEAMBHRE  GEEERESER
RAAZNREE  UEMRHE 2 EEMBRER
NEERREGFRERME R EAHERRA -

BB zEE

ZACEERRBERAZERHZSRAMHR
RELER  YRRAREQRFEF O KEME
BERELRSE BRI AREHIEE A B
B FMPERARENTAEMEMALE £
RAEEMEE - RACREEFESHMASR
Mz EBETENETER I - BLERER
RAETEERS  UHRARNTER UG E
HEUFEaMBRREES NFAERBRRAL

Wi ¥ERAT 2015/16 FiR

it

59



60

Independent Auditor’s Report (continuea)
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the financial position of the Group as at 31 March
2016, and of its financial performance and cash flows for the year
then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards and have been properly prepared in compliance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

23 June 2016
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

GeBRsRkEMEEKRER

For the year ended 31 March 2016

BZ2016 3531 HILFE
Notes 2016 2015
s HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET
Turnover EXRE 7 103,439 192,489
Cost of goods sold SHE AN (67,001) (155,172)
Gross profit S 36,438 37,317
Other income H AU A 12,048 9,254
Other gains and losses H b =5 K 518 9 572 176
Other expenses Hinf% (1,067) (1,621)
Distribution and selling expenses FCETZ) RN (1,762) (4,582)
Administrative expenses TEFEX (30,429) (31,181)
Loss on changes in fair value of REMEZ A TE
investment properties SEEiE 17 (33,399) (8,155)
Impairment loss on properties held for — F{EHEXREYE 2 FHEE
development for sale B 20 (15,511) -
(Loss) gain on fair value changes of RIEEBREZ A TEEE
investments held for trading (&8 = (2,540) 40,040
Gain on fair value change of financial BATEFAERZ2/E
assets designated as at fair value EZATEZE K=
through profit or loss = 411
Loss on fair value change on bonds EH 2 AN TEZEEE (2,193) -
Loss on fair value change on equity BREHBRE 2 ATEE
linked notes B8 (8,296) -
Finance costs BE A 11 (15,099) (6,541)
(Loss) profit before taxation B Al (B548 ) i Al (61,238) 35,118
Taxation i1 12 (8,030) (4,032)
(Loss) profit for the year attributable to  ZK/A A% 5 FE (S
owners of the Company REE (BE )T 13 (69,268) 31,086
Other comprehensive (expense) Hi2m(BAX) WA
income
Items that may be reclassified BE# AR ERT AR IR
subsequently to profit or loss: HH -
Change in fair value of available-for-sale A {tH&ERE 2
investments NEEZE) (10,931) (533)
Exchange differences arising on MEFINEBRITBREZ
translation of financial statements of EHER
foreign operations (6,478) 576
Other comprehensive (expense) income N4 E HAh 2 &
for the year (AZ) WA (17,409) 43
Total comprehensive (expense) income AN &) f% 5 fE (5
for the year attributable to owners of rEFE2AEAL)
the Company WA B8 (86,677) 31,129
(Restated)
(&%)
(Loss) earnings per share G (EE) R
Basic AR 14 (HK$0.14) HK$100.04
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
e BN R

At 31 March 2016

R2016 43531 A
Notes 2016 2015
Hiit HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment EIN e 16 531 637
Investment properties HEYE 17 1,333,316 924,510
Loans receivable BRER 18 57,500 11,500
Available-for-sale investments AEHERE 19 133,034 17,152
1,524,381 953,799
Current assets mMENVEE
Properties held for development for RIEHEEENE
sale 20 524,000 560,914
Deposits and prepayments for BARBELESRMEL
acquisition of properties held for ®Be MENR
development for sale - 84,848
Trade and other receivables 2 5 M E M R FIE 21 35,982 10,820
Bills receivable W =& 22 - 869
Loans receivable EWE X 18 18,500 12,140
Investments held for trading BEBBERE 23 5,944 91,557
Bank balances and cash SRITEBRNIE S 24 465,279 204,234
1,049,705 965,382
Current liabilities mEaE
Trade and other payables ’é’%&ﬁﬁlﬁﬁ A 25 27,108 26,272
Tax payable eI 9,131 6,909
Convertible note gEE 27 74,705 —
Secured bank borrowings BiEHERTIEE 26 4,993 146,140
115,937 179,321
Net current assets MEEETFE 933,768 786,061
Total assets less current liabilities BELBRLDAE 2,458,149 1,739,860
Non-current liabilities FREEE
Convertible note QESNES: 27 12,379 11,153
Deferred tax liabilities BIERIARE 28 26,232 18,277
Secured bank borrowings BEARITEE 26 95,094 147,785
133,705 177,215
2,324,444 1,562,645
Capital and reserves BER KR
Share capital LN 29 11,166 253
Reserves s 2,313,278 1,562,392
2,324,444 1,562,645

The consolidated financial statements on pages 61 to 157 were ZEZ=@201646 /323 H it/ REEERKF61
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 23 & 157 7480 %5H%  WH NMIESAREE
June 2016 and are signed on its behalf by:

Kwong Jimmy Cheung Tim Lui Yuk Chu
3 EE%k

DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
EE EE

Eminence Enterprise Limited 2015/16 Annual Report



Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
mEEREER

For the year ended 31 March 2016

HZ 20163731 HIFF/E
Convertible
note Investment ~ Property
Share Share equity Capital Contributed  Exchange revaluation revaluation Accumulated
capital  premium reserve reserve surplus reserve reserve reserve profits Total
TARSE REEfE  NEER
Ba  RGEE  EREE  RARE  HARR  ERER 4 BE  EnEi 5
HKS000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS000
FAT FAT FAT FAT FAT FAT 7AT FAT FAT FAT
At 1 April 2014 R014E4A1R 2,966 631,701 37,903 53,194 294,027 25,924 (740) 40,624 3749 1,123,094
Change in fal value of avallable- ~ A& HERE 7
for-sale investments NEES = - - - - - (539) - - (539)
Exchange differences arising A= 80 881G H
on translation of financial BRENER
statements of foreign operations - - - - - 576 - - - 576
Profit for the year TEERT - - - - - - - - 31086 31,08
Total comprehensive income ~~~ AEEZARA
(expense) for the year (Fx)88 - - - - - 576 (539) - 31086 31,129
Issue of new shares 7R 593 355,379 - - - - - - - 3132
Transaction costs attibutableto ~ Z/Hk R ZAA
issue of new shares - 2,330) - - - - - - - 2,330)
Issug of shares on conversion o~ EETIEFERR
convertible note Bilkh 1229 18,771 (36,599) - - - - - - 43,401
Reduction of share capital upon ~ RAEAE 2K
capital reorganisation I (9.879) - - - 9875 - - - - -
Set-off contributed surplus against £ AZE A HE;t
accumulated losses Els - - - - (42776) - - = 9776 =
Deferred tax liabilty on recognition 24 ARZ
of equity component of A 2 ERERA
convertible note gf = - 6,039 = - = = = = 6,039
At 31 Mrch 2015 H15E3A 518 By 10RE1 TMB BRI L6 A0 (1279 84 11T 156266
Change in fair value of avallable- A ERE L
for-sale investments NEEY - - - - - - (10931 - - (10931
Exchange diferences arising ~~~ AZENEERE K
on translation of financial HR/EHER
statements of foreign operations - - - - - (6.478) - - - (6.478)
Loss for the year T5EER - - - - - - - - (69268 (69.268)

Total comprehensive expense for  AEE2TE

the year EigE - = - - - b4y (0% - (66T
Issue of new shares Bk 15608 823911 - - - - - - - 839,609
Transaction costs attibutableto ~ E/HRe R AAA

issue of new shares - (4.971) - - - - - - - (4971)
Reduction of share capital upon ~ RAEAE 2k

capital reorganisation Al (4785) - - - 4785 = = = = =
Set-off contributed surplus against £\ B A 2st

accumulated losses BE - - - - (4,785 - - - 4,785 -
Recognition of equity component of A ARZ i

convertible note %) - - 16,573 - - - - - - 16,573
Deferred tax liability on recognition BE7H kSRR

of equity component of B ZBRHE

convertible note L - - 2,739) - - - - - - (2,7%)
At 31 March 2016 R2016E3A318 11,166 1,882,461 21,181 53,194 261,126 20,022 (12,204) 40,624 46,874 2,324,444
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity (continued)

HEEZEEH R

For the year ended 31 March 2016
#HE2016 F3 431 HILFE

The capital reserve of the Group represents the credit arising from
the reduction of share capital of the Company in March 2004 and
September 2005 and can be applied in the future for distribution to
the shareholders.

The contributed surplus of the Group represents the credit arising
from the reduction of share capital of the Company in February
2003, October 2009, December 2012, November 2013, October
2014, March 2015 and October 2015, part of which was applied
to set off against accumulated losses of the Company in October
2009, December 2012, November 2013, October 2014, March 2015
and October 2015. The balance may be utilised by the directors in
accordance with the Company’s Bye-laws and all applicable laws,
including to eliminate the accumulated losses of the Company.

The property revaluation reserve of the Group represents the gain
on revaluation of certain leasehold properties and prepaid lease
payments of the Group when these leasehold properties and
prepaid lease payments were transferred to investment properties.

Eminence Enterprise Limited 2015/16 Annual Report

REBZBRAFBERRARARNR2004F38 K
2005F 9 B A EIm AR AN AT EE £ 2 #E Bk - AT S 2R
DR TR o

AEBEZHARBREARDBR2003F2 A4 -
20094 10AH - 2012412 A - 2013F 11 A -
201410 A+ 20153 A K&2015F 107 #l A
BARMEEZER 2 ER2009F10A
2012412 A - 2013411 A - 2014410 A + 2015
FIAK015F10 A AEREAR A Z BT E
B EZNREARAERAREMBERZE
BIFAERAZES  BEAUNKEARRR 2 R5
B8 -

AKEZHXEGRRARASESRLEN R
FENHEREERBENMEHEGRSE THEDX
RENBEFIR W



Consolidated Statement of Cash

= S =
mERERER
For the year ended 31 March 2016
BZE2016 3 A 31 HILFE

Operating activities
(Loss) profit before taxation
Adjustments for:

Interest income

Interest expense

Depreciation

Unrealised loss (gain) on fair value
changes of investments held for
trading

Dividend income from listed
investments

Gain on disposal of property, plant
and equipment

Gain on fair value change of
financial assets designated as at
fair value through profit or loss

Loss on changes in fair value of
investment properties

Impairment loss on properties held
for development for sale

Loss on fair value change of bonds

Loss on fair value change of equity
linked notes

Operating cash flows before movements
in working capital

Decrease in properties held for
development for sale

Increase in trade and other receivables

Decrease (increase) in bills receivable

Increase in loans receivable

Decrease in investments held for trading

Decrease in trade and other payables

Cash from operations
Dividend received from investments

Net cash from operating activities

BAT (&R )i A

MEBA

MBFX

e

BEEERECAFE
By RERER
(Yzs)

LHREZBEKRA

HENE - BE&&E
i &
BAFEFABRLE
BMEEZATEE
W zs
REMEZ X VEED
BB
FEHEERMEZR
EEE
EHZAFEEZHER
BRABRE AFE
2HER

At BB BRI 2 KE
ReRE
RIELEERNFRD

B 5 KA b R I
PR R (3B 40)
FEARE TRIE I
REEERERD

25 REM RN KA

KEEEZRS
REREZEKRES

REREXB LIRS TR

Flows

2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
(61,238) 35,118
(4,869) (5,565)
15,099 6,541
179 152
6,332 (32,247)
(4,115) (3,447)
- (13)
- (411)
33,399 8,155
15,511 -
2,193 -
8,296 -
10,787 8,283
21,403 -
(23,559) (1,318)
869 (869)
(52,360) (6,140)
79,281 27,592
(2,047) (982)
34,374 26,566
4,115 3,447
38,489 30,013

it
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Consolidated Statement
HEBEERER®)

For the year ended 31 March 2016
BZE2016 3 A 31 HILFE

Investing activities
Net cash outflow on acquisition
of assets and liabilities through
acquisition of subsidiaries
Addition of investment properties
Acquisition of financial asset

designated as at fair value through

profit and loss

Purchase of available-for-sale
investments

Purchase of property, plant and
equipment

Utilisation of (payment for) deposits
and prepayments acquisition of
property held for development for
sale

Interest received

Addition of properties held for
development for sale

Redemption of financial assets

designated as at fair value through

profit or loss
Purchase of bonds
Proceeds from disposal of bonds
Proceeds from disposal of property,
plant and equipment

Net cash used in investing activities

of Cash Flows (continued)

Note
k=3
REERD
F B E D AR A
BERABGZHERE
HEE 32
REREME
BARLTEFABRRZ
TRIEE
BARHLEERE

BAME - BB REE

BAREHERRMEZ
BRENBENRZBA
(2ft)

B AR
RERFHERRYE

BORATEFARR
TREE

BARES
HERFAEHR
HENE  BERREZ
SRR

ARRERS RS FR

Eminence Enterprise Limited 2015/16 Annual Report

2016 2015
HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET
(22,284) (339,931)
(214,924) (287,686)
(80,000) -
(55,109) (1,546)
(90) (183)
84,848 (77,725)
3,459 5,845
- (228,156)

- 29,033
(29,125) -
26,932 -
- 13
(286,293) (900,336)




Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (continued)

HEBEERER®)

For the year ended 31 March 2016
BZE2016 3 A 31 HILFE

Financing activities

Proceeds from issue of new shares

Proceeds from issue of convertible
note

Repayment of bank borrowings

Interest paid

Transaction costs attributable to issue
of new shares

Bank borrowings raised

Net cash from financing activities

Net increase (decrease) in cash and
cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning
of the year

Effect of foreign exchange rate changes

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the
year, represented by bank balances
and cash

BEED

BITHIRZ FAEFIA

EDELES P
IR

BERTEE
ENFE

BITHBZ X HHA

EERTEE
RERERD IR FE
ReMERRE2EMOR

L) EE
FNZRELFRARE

NEERED 2 BB

FR2BESNERAS
ERTESLIAS

2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
630,544 361,312
86,000 -
(193,838) (6,977)
(7,210) (6,034)
(4,971) (2,330)
- 139,000
510,525 484,971
262,721 (385,352)
204,234 589,458
(1,676) 128
465,279 204,234

it
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GENERAL

The Company is incorporated in Bermuda as an exempted
company with limited liability and its shares are listed on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”).

Pursuant to a special resolution of the Company passed on 22
February 2016, the name of the Company was changed from
Easyknit Enterprises Holdings Limited to Eminence Enterprise
Limited with effect from 23 March 2016.

As at 1 April 2015, Easyknit International Holdings Limited
(“Easyknit International”) had 40.96% of the issued share
capital of the Company. In addition, Easyknit International
held convertible note issued by the Company which can
convert into shares of the Company at any time from its
issuance date on 27 March 2014 to its maturity date which
enables Easyknit International to increase its shareholding
of the Company to 45.03% upon exercise of the conversion
option based on the capital structure of the Company. Taking
into account the relevant facts and circumstances, particularly
the size of Easyknit International’s holding of voting rights,
including potential voting rights arising from conversion of
the convertible note, relative to the size and dispersion of
holdings of other vote holders, the directors were of the
opinion that the Company was a subsidiary of Easyknit
International.

On 12 June 2015, the Company issued a convertible note
with an aggregate principle amount of HK$86,000,000 to
an independent third party. Upon the full exercise of the
conversion rights attached to the convertible note, there will
have the effect of diluting Easyknit International’s percentage
shareholdings in the Company. Easyknit International’s
percentage share of the issued share capital of the Company
will be diluted from 40.96% to 34.41%. The directors of the
Company are of the opinion that the Company will no longer
be a subsidiary of Easyknit International, under the definition
of control and the related guidance set out in HKFRS 10
“Consolidated financial statements” issued by Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”). As such,
the Group becomes an associate of Easyknit International.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars (“HK$” or “HKD”) which is also the functional
currency of the Company.

The Company is an investment holding company. The
principal activities of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are
set out in note 36.

Eminence Enterprise Limited 2015/16 Annual Report

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e SRR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2016
BZE2016 3 A 31 HILFE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continueq)

mEMBEHRRMT )

For the year ended 31 March 2016
BZE2016 3 A 31 HILFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

In the current year, the Group has applied, for the first

time, the following amendments to HKFRSs and Hong Kong

Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) (hereinafter collectively

referred to as the “new and revised HKFRSs”) issued by the

HKICPA.

Amendments to HKAS 19 Defined benefit plans: Employee
contributions

Annual improvements to
HKFRSs 2010 — 2012 cycle

Amendments to HKFRSs

Amendments to HKFRSs Annual improvements to

HKFRSs 2011 — 2013 cycle

The application of the amendments to HKFRSs in the current
year has had no material impact on the Group’s financial
performance and positions for the current and prior years and/
or on the disclosures set out in these consolidated financial
statements.

The Group has not early applied the following new and revised
HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective:

HKFRS 9 Financial instruments'

HKFRS 14 Regulatory deferral accounts®

HKFRS 15 Revenue from contracts with
customers'

HKFRS 16 Leases’

Amendments to HKFRS 11 Accounting for acquisitions of
interests in joint operations®

Clarifications to HKFRS 15
“Revenue from contracts with

customers”’

Amendments to HKFRS 15

2.

AREE - AEBERERTEGFNAE
B2 ATREMBREENARBT LG E
BITEB S ER D ATRBRIERE
BRI BB BRELER ) ZERTA -

ERETEA RERAE S -

ERCLACHEN) EEHEK

BB RS 2R 20104 — 2012
(87T &) FIRMBEEI T
SRBZEE

PG
B BB %2R 20114 — 2013
CHES) FRPEBIHE
RSB FEE

Bigid

AEERAEBMGREEAZETRER
SEATERBEFEZMBRR IR R
SERNEERBREFBZBBLREAY
2=,

AEEYEIRAER T2 BMAERRER
ZHBREET 2 BRAMBRE R

EEMBREENEIR LSRIA
EAMBREENE 145 BERENA®
EAMBREENE 15K RATFAOKR'

BEUBRELRE 6% HE®
BAMBRSEAE 1S WBBoKEREL
(B3 A) 5’
BAMBREEAE5S BREEMBREE
SCHEN) AIE1BSEIRER
Patiga]
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continueq)

e KB RME

For the year ended 31 March 2016
BZE2016 3531 HILFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSSs”) (continueq)

Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure initiative®

Amendments to HKAS 16
and HKAS 38

Clarification of acceptable
methods of depreciation and
amortisation®

Annual improvements to
HKFRSs 2012 — 2014 cycle®

Amendments to HKFRSs

Amendments to HKAS 16
and HKAS 41

Agriculture: Bearer plants®

Amendments to HKAS 27 Equity method in separate
financial statements®
Investment entities: Applying the

consolidation exception®

Amendments to HKFRS 10,
HKFRS 12 and HKAS 28

Amendments to HKFRS 10

and HKAS 28

Sale or contribution of assets
between an investor and its

associate or joint venture’

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2018.
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2019.
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2016.
Effective for annual periods on or after a date to be determined.

Effective for first annual HKFRS financial statements beginning
on or after 1 January 2016.

Eminence Enterprise Limited 2015/16 Annual Report
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continueq)

mEMBEHRRMT )

For the year ended 31 March 2016
BZE2016 3 A 31 HILFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (continueq)

HKFRS 9 “Financial instruments”

HKFRS 9 issued in 2009 introduced new requirements for the
classification and measurement of financial assets. HKFRS 9
was subsequently amended in 2010 to include requirements
for the classification and measurement of financial liabilities
and for derecognition, and further amended in 2013 to include
the new requirements for general hedge accounting. Another
revised version of HKFRS 9 was issued in 2015 mainly to
include a) impairment requirements for financial assets and
b) limited amendments to the classification and measurement
requirements by introducing a ‘fair value through other
comprehensive income’ (“FVTOCI”) measurement category for
certain simple debt instruments.

Key requirements of HKFRS 9 are described below:

e All recognised financial assets that are within the scope
of HKAS 39 “Financial instruments: Recognition and
measurement” are subsequently measured at amortised
cost or fair value. Specifically, debt investments that
are held within a business model whose objective is
to collect the contractual cash flows, and that have
contractual cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal outstanding are
generally measured at amortised cost at the end of
subsequent accounting periods. Debt instruments that
are held within a business model whose objective is
achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows
and selling financial assets, and that have contractual
terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates
to cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest on the principal amount outstanding, are
measured at FVTOCI. All other debt investments and
equity investments are measured at their fair value at
the end of subsequent accounting periods. In addition,
under HKFRS 9, entities may make an irrevocable
election to present subsequent changes in the fair value
of an equity investment (that is not held for trading) in
other comprehensive income, with only dividend income
generally recognised in profit or loss.

2.

BERUBRELENFIFIERMIA

72009 FRMA KB BH RS LERNF 9K Y
TREENDERFERIMER - RN
2010 2Rl 2 B EM B HRERAF R H S
BRGNS BERFERBEERRLER
WR2013FH#— SEHER  WBE—K
e REZHRE - TRV BREER
FIRN20156FFREFTNEI R B &
BEERRERE D) BRHE THEER
TASIATEAFES AR C2E K ([
APEAEEEEE D ERR - B
BRETEREELARER -

BEEMBREENFEIRN T EE KA R
T~

o BREBESHEFEIRIEMTA:
ERALEIRENRMECRRASRE
ERRRBHEKAL DV EE - 755
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continueq)

mEMBHRRMT =)

For the year ended 31 March 2016
BZE2016 3 A 31 HILFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSSs”) (continueq)

HKFRS 9 “Financial instruments” (continued)

With regard to the measurement of financial liabilities
designated as at fair value through profit or loss, HKFRS
9 requires that the amount of change in the fair value
of the financial liability that is attributable to changes
in the credit risk of that liability is presented in other
comprehensive income, unless the recognition of the
effects of changes in the liability’s credit risk in other
comprehensive income would create or enlarge an
accounting mismatch in profit or loss. Changes in fair
value of financial liabilities attributable to changes in
the financial liabilities’ credit risk are not subsequently
reclassified to profit or loss. Under HKAS 39, the entire
amount of the change in the fair value of the financial
liability designated as fair value through profit or loss
was presented in profit or loss.

In relation to the impairment of financial assets, HKFRS 9
requires an expected credit loss model, as opposed to an
incurred credit loss model under HKAS 39. The expected
credit loss model requires an entity to account for
expected credit losses and changes in those expected
credit losses at each reporting date to reflect changes in
credit risk since initial recognition. In other words, it is
no longer necessary for a credit event to have occurred
before credit losses are recognised.

The new general hedge accounting requirements
retain the three types of hedge accounting. However,
greater flexibility has been introduced to the types of
transactions eligible for hedge accounting, specifically
broadening the types of instruments that qualify for
hedging instruments and the types of risk components
of non-financial items that are eligible for hedge
accounting. In addition, the effectiveness test has
been overhauled and replaced with the principle of an
“economic relationship”. Retrospective assessment
of hedge effectiveness is also no longer required.
Enhanced disclosure requirements about an entity’s risk
management activities have also been introduced.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continueq)

mEMBEHRRMT )

For the year ended 31 March 2016
BZE2016 3 A 31 HILFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (continueq)

HKFRS 15 “Revenue from contracts with customers”

HKFRS 15 was issued which establishes a single
comprehensive model for entities to use in accounting for
revenue arising from contracts with customers. HKFRS 15 will
supersede the current revenue recognition guidance including
HKAS 18 “Revenue”, HKAS 11 “Construction contracts” and
the related interpretations when it becomes effective.

The core principle of HKFRS 15 is that an entity should
recognise revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods
or services to customers in an amount that reflects the
consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled
in exchange for those goods or services. Specifically, the
standard introduces a 5-step approach to revenue recognition:

2.

175

=

o
frm
i

Sy
=X
DHAN
=~
SN
ST

I
=~ |\
“‘u:u?f'
N
/!
P

BERUBREENEISRIELREONE]

B EERERELENEGRHETE—2
HEA - HERBERAEFPANELNKE
AR - BB BIMEERFE15FKERR -
BREBHER BB G EE 18557 [t |
BERGHEANENRIEESN ] LEBH
REN WS RERES -

BEENBHREENEISRNRORARER
& 15 17 %5 PP 8 o v i B o S AR 7S O M e FE R
RARRZEERANRIBZFEMmARSE
AREEGHNNRE - FilZ - ZERIS AR
WA ESR

Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer F—F: BAEEPITIHNEL

Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in the contract FZH: BASHTNEART

Step 3: Determine the transaction price £F=¥: EERHE

Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the performance FEMF: BREEVEZANFHED
obligations in the contract ===

Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity satisfies a FRY: REBTRKEAERER ()
performance obligation R =

Under HKFRS 15, an entity recognises revenue when (or as)
a performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when ‘control’ of
the goods or services underlying the particular performance
obligation is transferred to the customer. Far more prescriptive
guidance has been added in HKFRS 15 to deal with specific
scenarios. Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required by
HKFRS 15.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSSs”) (continueq)

HKFRS 16 “Leases”

HKFRS 16, which upon the effective date will supersede
HKAS 17 “Leases”, introduces a single lessee accounting
model and requires a lessee to recognise assets and liabilities
for all leases with a term of more than 12 months, unless
the underlying asset is of low value. Specifically, under
HKFRS 16, a lessee is required to recognise a right-of-
use asset representing its right to use the underlying leased
asset and a lease liability representing its obligation to make
lease payments. Accordingly, a lessee should recognise
depreciation of the right-of-use asset and interest on the
lease liability, and also classifies cash repayments of the
lease liability into a principal portion and an interest portion
and presents them in the statement of cash flows. Also, the
right-of-use asset and the lease liability are initially measured
on a present value basis. The measurement includes non-
cancellable lease payments and also includes payments to be
made in optional periods if the lessee is reasonably certain
to exercise an option to extend the lease, or not to exercise
an option to terminate the lease. This accounting treatment
is significantly different from the lessee accounting for leases
that are classified as operating leases under the predecessor
standard, HKAS 17.

In respect of the lessor accounting, HKFRS 16 substantially
carries forward the lessor accounting requirements in HKAS
17. Accordingly, a lessor continues to classify its leases as
operating leases or finance leases, and to account for those
two types of leases differently.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the HKFRS 9,
HKFRS 15 and HKFRS 16 may have significant impact on
amounts reported in the consolidated financial statements.
However, it is not practicable to provide a reasonable estimate
of the effect until the Group performs a detailed review.

The directors do not anticipate that the application of the
other new and revised HKFRSs will have a material impact on
the Group’s consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

Yt B

For the year ended 31 March 2016

HE20165F3 31 HILFE
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. FEGHHEEK
Statement of compliance 18 5 % B

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In addition,
the consolidated financial statements include applicable
disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) and by
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (“CO”).

The disclosure requirements set out in the Listing Rules
regarding annual accounts have been amended with reference
to the new Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622)
regarding preparation of accounts and directors’ reports
and audits and to streamline with HKFRSs. Accordingly
the presentation and disclosure of information in the
consolidated financial statements for the financial year ended
31 March 2016 have been changed to comply with these
new requirements. Comparative information in respect of
the financial year ended 31 March 2015 are presented or
disclosed in the consolidated financial statements based on
the new requirements. Information previously required to be
disclosed under the predecessor CO or Listing Rules but not
under the new CO or amended Listing Rules are not disclosed
in these consolidated financial statements.

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on the historical cost basis except for investment properties
and certain financial instruments, which are measured at fair
values, at the end of the reporting period, as explained in the
accounting policies set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Basis of preparation (continued)

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date,
regardless of whether that price is directly observable or
estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating
the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into
account the characteristics of the asset or liability if market
participants would take those characteristics into account
when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date.
Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in
these consolidated financial statements is determined on such
a basis, except for share-based payment transactions that
are within the scope of HKFRS 2 “Share-based payments”,
leasing transactions that are within the scope of HKAS 17
“Leases”, and measurements that have some similarities to
fair value but are not fair value, such as net realisable value in
HKAS 2 “Inventories” or value in use in HKAS 36 “Impairment
of assets”.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on
the degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements
are observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair
value measurement in its entirety, which are described as
follows:

o Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity
can access at the measurement date;

e Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the asset
or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

e Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or
liability.

The significant accounting policies are set out below.

Eminence Enterprise Limited 2015/16 Annual Report
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 March 2016
BZE2016 3 A 31 HILFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. FEEFTHKR )

(continued)
Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the
Company and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the
Company:

e has power over the investee;

e s exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

e has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee
if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to
one or more of the three elements of control listed above.

When the Group has less than a majority of the voting rights
of an investee, it has power over the investee when the voting
rights are sufficient to give it the practical ability to direct
the relevant activities of the investee unilaterally. The Group
considers all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing
whether or not the Group’s voting rights in an investee are
sufficient to give it power, including:

e the size of the Group’s holding of voting rights relative
to the size and dispersion of holdings of the other vote
holders;

o potential voting rights held by the Group or other vote
holders;

o rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

e any additional facts and circumstances that indicate that
the Group has, or does not have, the current ability to
direct the relevant activities at the time that decisions
need to be made, including voting patterns at previous
shareholders’ meetings.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Basis of consolidation (continued)

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses
of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are
included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income from the date the Group gains
control until the date when the Group ceases to control the
subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income
are attributed to the owners of the Company and to the
non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of
subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the Company and
to the non-controlling interests even if this results in the non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies
into line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between members of
the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable and represents amounts receivable for
goods sold and services provided in the normal course of
business, net of discounts and sales related taxes.

Eminence Enterprise Limited 2015/16 Annual Report

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

Yt s B

For the year ended 31 March 2016
BZE2016 3 A 31 HILFE

3. FEGHHE 2

FANBA TN ARBEGESIMNB QAR
79 2 30 A AN 6% B Sk 25 P PR I8 R R R AR A o
ABME RERNKBREEMBLRZK
ALY e AKERGRGZAHNES
AEBRILEHNBARZ B RBEEES
BakEMEEKERA

ARBBRREFFEBEE D HEENAME
R BEE - AEERFERESRA
YRR - ARRIRR RIFRIE D & 216K
BRAIZEERALRE -

MEFE WEARZHBHRRSELH
B DNEESTRRENKERAZ R
B2

MARBASERERR I EENNEE
FEE - BRE - BA - AXEREREER

BARRB2EME -
KR
Wk iR B o B B 2 AT B R A B

BEGPZEREE MR RE Z MBI
FEBERRRAR I RREE -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

Yt B

For the year ended 31 March 2016

BZ2016 3531 HILFE
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. FEGTEKR#
(continued)
Revenue recognition (continued) SRR (E)
Sale of goods HELR

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the
goods are delivered and titles have passed, at which time all
the following conditions are satisfied:

e the Group has transferred to the buyer the significant
risks and rewards of ownership of the goods;

e the Group retains neither continuing managerial
involvement to the degree usually associated with
ownership nor effective control over the goods sold;

° the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;

o it is probable that the economic benefits associated with
the transaction will flow to the Group; and

e the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the
transaction can be measured reliably.

Dividend and interest income

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the
shareholders’ rights to receive payment have been established
(provided that it is probable that the economic benefits
will flow to the Group and the amount of revenue can be
measured reliably).

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when
it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
Group and the amount of income can be measured reliably.
Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference
to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest
rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts the
estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the
financial asset to that asset’s net carrying amount on initial
recognition.

Rental income

The Group’s policy for recognition of revenue from operating
leases is described in the accounting policy below.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised on a
straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease. Initial
direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating
lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset
and recognised on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term.

In the event that lease incentives are received to enter into
operating leases, such incentives are recognised as a liability.
The aggregate benefit of incentives is recognised as a
reduction of rental expense on a straight-line basis.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recorded in
the respective functional currency (i.e. the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity operates)
at the rates of exchange prevailing on the dates of the
transactions. At the end of the reporting period, monetary
items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items carried
at fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the rates prevailing on the date when the fair
value was determined. Non-monetary items that are measured
in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the retranslation of monetary items, are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.
Exchange differences arising on the retranslation of non-
monetary items carried at fair value are included in profit or
loss for the period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 March 2016

BIFZ2016 331 HILFE
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. FESHEKR#)
(continued)
Foreign currencies (continued) N (E)

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of
the Group (i.e. Hong Kong dollars) at the rate of exchange
prevailing at the end of the reporting period, and their income
and expenses are translated at the average exchange rates for
the period, unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly during
the period, in which case, the exchange rates prevailing at the
dates of transactions are used. Exchange differences arising,
if any, are recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity under the heading of exchange reserve.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs not attributable to qualifying assets are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they are
incurred.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

Current tax

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from “profit before taxation” as
reported in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income because of items of income
or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years
and items that are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s
current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Taxation (continued)
Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding tax
base used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for
all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against which
those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such
assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary
difference arises from goodwill or from the initial recognition
(other than in a business combination) of other assets and
liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit
nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries
except where the Group is able to control the reversal of the
temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred
tax assets arising from deductible temporary differences
associated with such investments are only recognised to
the extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient
taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits of the
temporary differences and they are expected to reverse in the
foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of the reporting period and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the
liability is settled or the asset is realised, based on tax
rate (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects
the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in
which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period,
to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and
liabilities.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Taxation (continued)
Deferred tax (continued)

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities or
deferred tax assets for investment properties that are
measured using the fair value model, the carrying amounts of
such properties are presumed to be recovered entirely through
sale, unless the presumption is rebutted. The presumption is
rebutted when the investment property is depreciable and is
held within a business model whose objective is to consume
substantially all of the economic benefits embodied in the
investment property over time, rather than through sale.

Current and deferred tax for the year

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case,
the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.
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Where current tax or deferred tax arises from the initial BAAEBKEHZERAE o

accounting for a business combination, the tax effect is

included in the accounting for the business combination.

Property, plant and equipment M- BEREE

Property, plant and equipment are stated in the consolidated Y BENKE DEXABREEZZZR

statement of financial position at cost less subsequent
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of
items of property, plant and equipment less their residual
values over their estimated useful lives, using the straight-
line method. The estimated useful lives, residual values and

AERZFREBE(WB)RNEGSE
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depreciation method are reviewed at the end of the reporting SIS 7 ST o

period, with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted

for on a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised —IEYE - BELRENLEENEERE

upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any
gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of
property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference
between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset and is recognised in profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals
and/or for capital appreciation (including properties under
development for such purposes).

Investment properties are initially measured at cost, including
transactions costs. Subsequent to initial recognition,
investment properties are measured at their fair values. Gains
or losses arising from changes in the fair value of investment
properties are included in profit or loss in the period in which
they arise.

Construction costs incurred for investment properties under
development are capitalised as part of the carrying amount
of the investment properties under development. Investment
properties under development are measured at fair value at
the end of the reporting period. Any difference between the
fair value of the investment properties under development and
their carrying amounts is recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they arise.

If an item of property, plant and equipment becomes
an investment property because its use has changed as
evidenced by end of owner-occupation, any difference
between the carrying amount and the fair value of that item is
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated
in property revaluation reserve. The carrying amount is arrived
at after taking into account the reversal of any previously
recognised accumulated impairment loss to profit or loss to
the extent that the carrying amount of the property, plant and
equipment at the date when impairment is reversed does not
exceed the carrying amount that would have been had the
impairment not been recognised. On the subsequent sale or
retirement of the asset, the relevant revaluation reserve will be
transferred directly to accumulated profits.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or
when the investment property is permanently withdrawn
from use and no future economic benefits are expected from
its disposals. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of
the property (calculated as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is
included in profit or loss in the period in which the item is
derecognised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 March 2016
BZE2016 3 A 31 HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Properties held for development for sale

Properties held for development for sale are classified
as current assets and stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value.

Costs relating to the development of properties, including
purchase costs of the properties for development and
development costs, are capitalised and included as
properties held for development until such time when they are
completed.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a
group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of
the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured
at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities (other than financial assets or financial liabilities at
fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted
from the fair value of the financial assets or financial
liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction
costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets
or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

3.
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Financial assets THEE
The Group’s financial assets are classified into three AEEZeREESR=MEER  BEER
categories including financial assets at fair value through FEFABE([ZATEFABR J)Ziﬁﬂ‘i

profit or loss (“FVTPL”), available-for-sale investments and
loans and receivables. The classification depends on the
nature and purpose of the financial assets and is determined

BE AHHERERERREKRIE
BRIGRMEECHERER ]IEM?J/ME
REET FMARREBECEREENRS

at the time of initial recognition. All regular way purchases BEEERARDUBRER - EREENIEEK
or sales of financial assets are recognised and derecognised TR BB IR ET 2 A ETTEER

on a trade date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are
purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery
of assets within the time frame established by regulation or
convention in the marketplace.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

Yt s B

For the year ended 31 March 2016
BZE2016 3 A 31 HILFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. FEEFHHKR )

(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)
Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset and of allocating interest
income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
(including all fees and points paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs
and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of
the financial asset, or, where appropriate, a shorter period to
the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis for
debt instruments other than those financial assets classified
as at FVTPL, of which interest income is excluded in net gains
or losses.

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets at FVTPL has two subcategories, including
financial assets held for trading and those designated as at
FVTPL on initial recognition.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

o it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling
in the near future; or

e on initial recognition it is a part of an identified portfolio
of financial instruments that the Group manages together
and has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-
taking; or

e it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a
hedging instrument.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 March 2016
BZE2016 3 A 31 HILFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. FEGHHE 2

(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)
Financial assets at FVTPL (continued)

A financial asset other than a financial asset held for trading
may be designated as at FVTPL upon initial recognition if:

e such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a
measurement or recognition inconsistency that would
otherwise arise; or

e the financial asset forms part of a group of financial
assets or financial liabilities or both, which is managed
and its performance is evaluated on a fair value basis,
in accordance with the Group’s documented risk
management or investment strategy, and information
about the grouping is provided internally on that basis;
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or

o it forms part of a contract containing one or more o HAEPE-BRZBRASTEIARZ
embedded derivatives, and HKAS 39 permits the entire ZEHn  REBGFERE IR LT
combined contract (asset or liability) to be designated as HEBOHAEHHE(EEXAR)RE AR
at FVTPL. DNFEFT AR

Financial assets at FVTPL are stated at fair value with any
gains or losses arising on remeasurement recognised in profit
or loss. The net gain or loss recognised in profit and loss
excludes any dividend or interest earned on the financial
assets.

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that
are either designated or not classified as financial assets at
FVTPL, loans and receivables or held-to-maturity investments.

Available-for-sale financial assets are measured at fair value
at the end of the reporting period. Changes in fair value are
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated
in investment revaluation reserve, until the financial asset is
disposed of or is determined to be impaired, at which time,
the cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated in the
investment revaluation reserve is reclassified to profit or
loss (see accounting policy on impairment of financial assets
below).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

Yt s B

For the year ended 31 March 2016
BZE2016 3 A 31 HILFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. FEGHHE 2

(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)
Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in
an active market. Loans and receivables (including trade and
other receivables, bills receivable, loans receivable and bank
balances and cash) are measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less any impairment (see accounting
policy on impairment of financial assets below).

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than financial assets at FVTPL, are
assessed for indicators of impairment at the end of the
reporting period. Financial assets are considered to be
impaired when there is objective evidence that, as a result of
one or more events that occurred after the initial recognition
of the financial asset, the estimated future cash flows of the
financial assets have been affected.

For available-for-sale equity investments, a significant or
prolonged decline in the fair value of the security below its
cost is considered to be objective evidence of impairment.

For all other financial assets, objective evidence of impairment
could include:

e significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
counterparty; or

e breach of contract, such as default or delinquency in
interest or principal payments; or

e it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation; or

e the disappearance of an active market for that financial
asset because of financial difficulties.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of
the impairment loss is recognised as the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the
estimated future cash flows discounted at the financial asset’s
original effective interest rate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 March 2016
BZE2016 3 A 31 HILFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. FEGHHE 2

(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by
the impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the
exception of trade and other receivables and loans receivable,
where the carrying amount is reduced through the use of an
allowance account. Changes in the carrying amount of the
allowance account are recognised in profit or loss. When an
item of trade and other receivables, or loans receivable is
considered uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance
account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written
off are credited against the allowance account. Changes in
the carrying amount of the allowance account are recognised
in profit or loss.

When an available-for-sale financial asset is considered to be
impaired, cumulative gains or losses previously recognised in
other comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss
in the period.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a
subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss decreases
and the decrease can be related objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment loss was recognised, the
previously recognised impairment loss is reversed through
profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount of the
asset at the date the impairment is reversed does not exceed
what the amortised cost would have been had the impairment
not been recognised.

Impairment losses on available-for-sale equity investments
previously recognised in profit or loss are not reversed
through profit or loss. Any increase in fair value subsequent
to an impairment loss is recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in investment revaluation reserve.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e M WRME )

For the year ended 31 March 2016

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity are
classified as either financial liabilities or as equity instruments
in accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and an
equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of the Group after deducting all of its
liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company are
recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

BZ2016 3831 HIEFE
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. TESHEKX®
(continued)
Financial instruments (continued) £RMIA(E)
Financial liabilities and equity instruments ZHEERKRATA
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Financial liabilities EHEE

Financial liabilities (including trade and other payables and SHEE(RIEES REMENZEREEKE
secured bank borrowings) are subsequently measured at BIEE)RERKAERA R EEEHRA
amortised cost, using the effective interest method. er% o

Convertible note containing liability and equity components

The component parts of compounds instruments (convertible
note) issued by the Company are classified separately as
financial liabilities and equity instruments in accordance
with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the
definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.
Conversion option that will be settled by the exchange of a
fixed amount of cash or another financial asset for a fixed
number of the Company’s own equity instruments is an equity
instrument.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 March 2016

BZ2016 3531 HILFE
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. FEEHH R
(continued)
Financial instruments (continued) ERMIA(E)
Financial liabilities and equity instruments (continued) THEERBRATA(E)

Convertible note containing liability and equity components
(continued)

At the date of issue, the fair value of the liability component
is estimated using the prevailing market interest rate for
similar non-convertible instruments. This amount is recorded
as a liability on an amortised cost basis using the effective
interest method until extinguished upon conversion or at the
instrument’s maturity date.

The conversion option classified as equity is determined
by deducting the amount of the liability component from
the fair value of the compound instrument as a whole. This
is recognised and included in equity, net of income tax
effects, and is not subsequently remeasured. In addition, the
conversion option classified as equity will remain in equity
until the conversion option is exercised, in which case, the
balance recognised in equity will be transferred to share
premium. Where the conversion option remains unexercised
at the maturity date of the convertible note, the balance
recognised in equity will be transferred to accumulated profits.
No gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss upon conversion
or expiration of the conversion option.

Transaction costs that relate to the issue of the convertible
note are allocated to the liability and equity components in
proportion to the allocation of the gross proceeds. Transaction
costs relating to the equity component are charged directly
to equity. Transaction costs relating to the liability component
are included in the carrying amount of the liability portion
and amortised over the lives of the convertible note using the
effective interest method.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments (continued)
Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate
is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
payments (including all fees and points paid or received that
form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction
costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected
life of the financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter
period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis.
Embedded derivatives

Derivatives embedded in non-derivative host contracts are
treated as separate derivatives when they meet the definition
of a derivative, their risks and characteristics are not closely
related to those of the host contracts and the host contracts
are not measured at FVTPL.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or
when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
sum of the consideration received and receivable and
the cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity is
recognised in profit or loss.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or
expire. The difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid and
payable is recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 March 2016

HE20165F3 31 HILFE
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. FEEFTHKR )
(continued)
Impairment H1E

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its assets to determine whether there is
any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment
loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of
the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the
impairment loss, if any. When it is not possible to estimate
the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Group
estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating
unit to which the asset belongs. Where a reasonable and
consistent basis of allocation can be identified, corporate
assets are also allocated to individual cash-generating units,
or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group of
cash-generating units for which a reasonable and consistent
allocation basis can be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific
to the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows have
not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating
unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is
reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is increased
to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that
the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had no impairment
loss been recognised for the asset (or a cash-generating unit)
in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continueq)

e KB RME

For the year ended 31 March 2016

Payments to the state-sponsored pension scheme operated
by the People’s Republic of China (“PRC”) government or the
Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme are recognised
as an expense when employees have rendered services
entitling them to the contribution.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which
are described in note 3, the directors of the Company are
required to make judgments, estimates and assumptions
about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are
not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and
associated assumptions are based on historical experience
and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual
results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if
the revision affects only that period or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects both current
and future periods.

Critical judgments in applying accounting policies

The following is the critical judgements, apart from those
involving estimations (see below), that the directors have
made in the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies and that have the most significant effect on the
amounts recognised in the consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continueq)
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For the year ended 31 March 2016
BZE2016 3 A 31 HILFE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

4.

TERHUER FREHT
Egmlﬁ\wﬁ/

Critical judgments in applying accounting policies FEREBR 2 EEHEZ)
(continued)
Deferred taxation on investment properties REYEWELEHE

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities or
deferred tax assets arising from investment properties that
are measured using the fair value model, the management
has reviewed the Group’s investment properties portfolios
and concluded that while the Group’s investment properties

HAERAATERAABNRENEES
E’JLL%RIE—'W HELHIBEEMS @ B8
E u ZKE.Z?X,%%%%E Iuﬂ?% ’ %&
%ﬁ%@ﬁ@%fﬁZ&ﬁ%%ﬁ%?ﬁ% B
HIYERBEXBERERBRERREY

located in Hong Kong are depreciable, they are not held under EMBEENRAMAKENRNRBEA T
a business model whose objective is to consume substantially oAl BEREAEBURBEEZIREY
all of the economic benefits embodied in the investment EREARIREHIER  EEEBRTEBE

properties over time. Therefore, in determining the Group’s
deferred taxation arising from investment properties located in
Hong Kong, the management determined that the presumption
that investment properties measured using the fair value
model are recovered through sale is not rebutted.

For the Group’s investment properties located in the PRC,
the management concluded that they are depreciable and
are being held under a business model whose objective is to
consume substantially all of the economic benefits embodied
in the investment properties over time, rather than through
sale. Therefore, in determining the Group’s deferred taxation

EREREATERXH B RENEZ B
8RR -

RARBURPRZREYENS  EEE
RREA FHERRERY B RERESREM
FEREERRRENEMBSWB/AED

REFZNEGEARE - Bt FREAR
SEURTENREMERELNELHE
B EEEREERHEREEAAFEE

arising from investment properties located in the PRC, the AT EZREYE 2 BRFHER
management determined that the presumption that investment

properties measured using the fair value model are recovered

through sale is rebutted.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty TREMTZEERER

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future, NTAEBARREERE - UARREBEH

and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of
the reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets within
the next financial year.

RZEMAREERT 2 TEHRR - ZFMha
FHEAEEHAMEECREAEN T — A
BEELREARBZEARR -
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)
Impairment allowance on loans receivable

The amount of the impairment of loans receivable is measured
as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and
the present value of estimated future cash flows discounted
at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate. A
considerable amount of judgment is required in estimating the
expected discounted future cash flows. If the actual future
cash flows are less than the original estimated cash flows of
loans receivable, additional allowances would be required. No
impairment allowance on loans receivable is made for both
years.

Impairment loss on properties held for development for
sale

Management reviews the recoverability of the Group’s
properties held for development for sale amounting to
HK$524,000,000 (2015: HK$560,914,000) with reference to
current market environment whenever events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of the
assets may exceed its net realisable value, as appropriate.
Appropriate write-down for estimated irrecoverable amounts
is recognised in profit or loss when the net realisable value is
below cost. The estimates of net realisable value are based
on the evidence available at the time the estimates are made,
and the amounts of the properties held for development
for sale are expected to realise or recover. Actual realised
amount may differ from estimates, resulting in a decrease
or an increase in the net realisable value of the properties
held for development for sale and additional write-down or
additional reversal of impairment loss previously recognised
may be required.
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For the year ended 31 March 2016
BZE2016 3 A 31 HILFE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continueq)

mEMBEHRRMT )

For the year ended 31 March 2016

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the
Group will be able to continue as a going concern while
maximising the return to shareholders through the optimisation
of the debt and equity balances. The Group’s overall strategy
remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debts,
which includes the borrowings and convertible notes disclosed
in notes 26 and 27, respectively, net of cash and cash
equivalents and equity attributable to owners of the Company,
comprising issued share capital, accumulated profits and
other reserves.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure on
a regular basis. As part of this review, the directors consider

BIFZ2016 331 HILFE
CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS 4. j ZEHAERTREMRSZ
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION 2R 2
UNCERTAINTY (continued)
Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued) TREMGTZEERR(E)
Investment properties BEYFE
Some of the Group’s assets are measured at fair value for AEBEHFHBEERMBERRM S ZAFET
financial reporting purposes. The Group has a designated E-ASBEEEEREN  UBRATETE
team to determine the appropriate valuation techniques and ETEEE NG ERM REASE -
inputs for fair value measurements.
In estimating the fair value of the Group’s investment G AEBREMEZ ATER  KEEFE
properties, the Group uses market-observable data to the RA SR MIZA SRR - W EE18
extent they are available. Where Level 1 inputs are not BAEE  AREZREE=F5ERMAERM
available, the Group engages third party qualified valuers to HAEEHEEMEETHE - RREH
perform the valuation of the Group’s investment properties. K BEEBESEBRINGHERZEYE E
At the end of the reporting period, the management works BERIBELATEFENEE HERTLE
closely with the qualified external valuers to establish and AR - WEEATERLEEAEZE 20
determine the appropriate valuation techniques and inputs for ARBESHRERDRE - EHECAEE
Level 3 fair value measurements. Where there is a material BEYE N TEFTBEERMN R EAZEN
change in the fair value of the assets, the causes of the BRI 17 35 -
fluctuations will be reported to the directors of the Company.
Information about the valuation techniques and inputs used
in determining the fair value of the Group’s investment
properties is disclosed in note 17.
CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT 5. EXEKRERE

AEEHHEAETERUNRRAEEET
ERUEESELE  BREERREAE
BRERREFENABRRFMERADE -
AEEZEREREAREFERFTE -

REBZEARBREERFHE  EFEE
DRIRAM 26 K27 HBEZEE R AT RKEE
B TR hERBEERBEEEHTR
K Bitaf R EAREE 2 A Q B REEN
FERS o

ARREFEHRIEARE  ERMT A
— M EEZRBEARAREANEER

the cost of capital and the risks associated with the capital. e REEZENEZ  AEEBEBRMNK
Based on recommendations of the directors, the Group will B BIHBRLREENERRITEE AT
balance its overall capital structure through the payment of m%&‘méa& R o

dividends, new share issues and raising or repayment of bank
borrowings.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 March 2016
BZE2016 3 A 31 HILFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

6. eMIA

a. Categories of financial instruments a. SRIAZES
2016 2015
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
Financial assets SHEE
Available-for-sale investments AEEERE 133,034 17,152
Fair value through profit or loss BATEG AER
— investments held for trading - BEEERE 5,944 91,557
Loans and receivables (including cash EREEEFE(BERS
and cash equivalents) RERBEE)
— Trade and other receivables — BZRHEMERFIA 34,720 8,256
— Bills receivable - BRZRE - 869
— Loans receivable — EWER 76,000 23,640
— Bank balances and cash — RITEBRERE 465,279 204,234
714,977 345,708
Financial liabilities cREE
Amortised cost AR
Trade and other payables B 5 R E MR IR 13,488 9,063
Convertible notes AR EE 87,084 11,153
Secured bank borrowings BERABITEE 100,087 293,925
200,659 314,141
b. Financial risk management objectives and policies b. MERBEBERRKRE

The Group’s major financial instruments include
available-for-sale investments, investments held for
trading, trade and other receivables, bills receivable,
loans receivable, bank balances and cash, trade and
other payables, convertible notes and secured bank
borrowings. Details of these financial instruments are
disclosed in respective notes. The risks associated with
these financial instruments and the policies on how to
mitigate these risks are set out below. The management
manages and monitors these exposures to ensure that
appropriate measures are implemented on a timely and
effective manner.
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PPN BT 0

For the year ended 31 March 2016
BZE2016 3 A 31 HILFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

b.

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)

Market risk

(i)

Currency risk

Certain subsidiaries of the Group have foreign
currency sales or purchases denominated in
currencies other than their functional currencies,
which expose the Group to foreign currency risk.
Approximately 86% (2015: 90%) of the Group’s
sales are denominated in currencies other than the
functional currency of the group entities making the
sale, whilst almost all purchases are denominated in
the group entities’ functional currency.

The carrying amount of the group entities’ foreign
currency denominated monetary assets and
monetary liabilities at the end of the reporting period
is as follows:

6. €I A
b. HEEAREERERIEZ)

iR o

(i)

E¥mE

HRAEEETHEAR  UE
T RE & B UGN 2 SNBSS 1T SH & Bk
B BEAEEASTINEE
% o #186% (20154 - 90%) 2
AEFHEERANEBTR 2T
EBNINEENE  ZET%HE
ZHRBANEEERE 2GR
kRS

RIEER - AINEFIEZ EE
ERVEBEEREBEEZER
EEWT :

Renminbi (“RMB”) ARE(TARE])
HKD BT
United States dollars (“USD”) Z=x([ZEx))

Liabilities Assets
=L BE

2016 2015 2016 2015
HK$°000 HK$’000  HK$’000 HK$°000
FEx &L FET & T
- - 12 29,400
- - 85 28
- 19 84,889 16,753
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 March 2016
BZE2016 3 A 31 HILFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

ERMITA®w

b. Financial risk management objectives and policies b. H¥XEAREEBEBEERBE(Z)
(continued)
Market risk (continued) TR (E)
(i) Currency risk (continued) () EEERE)
Sensitivity analysis BRRE DT
The Group is mainly exposed to the currencies of AEB ERREABREERAR
RMB, HKD and USD. % BIRET -
The following table details the group entities’ TRFJEEEEERB 2EE
sensitivity to a 5% increase and decrease in BHBBINEABREZES% 2
functional currency of the relevant group entities B[S © 5% (2015 F : 5%) BEHE
against the relevant foreign currencies. 5% (2015: EHERTESEEE 2T -
5%) represents management’s assessment of the FREIMEBTEUINEGTHE 2
reasonably possible change in foreign exchange MAFEEKIEE - IF&EKEH
rates. The sensitivity analysis includes only BEMRE P BRE R 7 5% &
outstanding foreign currency denominated monetary T EBRTEME @,\ﬁleﬂ
items and adjusts their translation at the year R EEHBINER(ES5% TEH
end for a 5% change in foreign currency rates. A E’],ﬁnﬂi*j]u%éﬂ;i;‘ﬁ!zy o HEE
positive number below indicates an increase in profit BRI EE LBBEINEAE
or a decrease in loss where functional currency of 5% @ HEHEEENESERER
the relevant group entities weaken 5% against the JEE MINRESE LA -
relevant foreign currency. For a 5% strengthening
of functional currency of the relevant group entities
against the relevant foreign currency, there would
be an equal and opposite impact on the profit or
loss, and the amounts below would be negative.
RMB impact HKD impact USD impact
AR¥zZE BreEg Ene¥e
2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$000 HKS$ 000
FET FET FET F/ET FET FET
Decrease in loss  Ji 31
(2015: increase (20154 :
in profit) pig b)) 1 1,227 4 1 3,544 699

The Group currently does not have a foreign
currency hedging policy to eliminate the currency
exposures. However, the management monitors
the related foreign currency exposure closely and
will consider hedging significant foreign currency
exposures should the need arise.
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For the year ended 31 March 2016
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

b.

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)

Market risk (continued)

(i)  Currency risk (continued)
Sensitivity analysis (continued)
In management’s opinion, the sensitivity analysis is
unrepresentative of the inherent foreign exchange
risk as the year end exposure does not reflect the
exposure during the year.

(i) Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk management

The Group’s primary interest rate risk relates to its
bank balances, financial assets designated as at
FVTPL and bank borrowings. The interest rates and
terms of repayment of the loans of the Group are
disclosed in note 26. The Group is also exposed to
fair value interest rate risk in relation to fixed-rate
loans receivable and convertible notes. The Group
has not used any derivative contracts to hedge its
exposure to such interest rate risk, however, the
management monitors interest rate exposure and
will consider other necessary action when significant
interest rate exposure is anticipated.

The Group’s exposure to interest rate risk on
financial liabilities is detailed in the liquidity risk
management section of this note. The Group’s cash
flow interest rate risk is mainly concentrated on the
fluctuation of Hong Kong Interbank Offered Rate
(“HIBOR?”) arising from bank borrowings.

6. R TR %)
HEAREERERIE(Z)

b.

S mEE (%)
() E¥mEEE)
BREDW(E)
EREERS  BHREIMALAK

(i)
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For the year ended 31 March 2016
BZE2016 3 A 31 HILFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

b.

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)

Market risk (continued)

(ii)

Interest rate risk (continued)
Interest rate sensitivity

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined
based on the exposure to interest rates for non-
derivative instruments as referred to above at the
end of the reporting period and the stipulated
change taking place at the beginning of the financial
year and held constant throughout the reporting
period in the case of instruments that have floating
rates. A 50 basis points increase or decrease is
used when reporting interest rate risk internally
to key management personnel and represents
management’s assessment of the reasonably
possible change in interest rates.

If interest rates had been 50 basis points higher or
lower and all other variables were held constant, the
Group’s post-tax loss for the year ended 31 March
2016 would decrease/increase by approximately
HK$1,077,000 (2015: post-tax profit increase/
decrease by HK$795,000). This is mainly attributable
to the Group’s exposure to interest rates on its
variable rate borrowings.

The bank balances and financial assets designated
as at FVTPL are excluded from the sensitivity
analysis as the management of the Group considers
that the interest rate fluctuation is not significant.

In management’s opinion, the sensitivity analysis is
unrepresentative of the inherent interest rate risk as
the year end exposure does not reflect the exposure
during the year.

Eminence Enterprise Limited 2015/16 Annual Report

. TMTAR

_~:tv-

b. HBEREERERIE(E)

T 4G

(i)  FIEmEE (&)

M =GR E

AT Z2@EEREDTIHERIA LT
MR ERARFIETET A ZA
KRR BEERIGE 2T X
%u&@blﬂﬁ&%%ﬁﬁ%

TEMETE o 50 {8 H % 238 hi sk
RORARAEIEEEABAZR
EE 3 ) 2K [ i &&%EEF&H
&z

1 ) R = 7 5 1K R 50 8 & & B
MABEMAZRERTE A&
BRE 220163 A31 8 [t F
EZHEBEBRD N4
1,077,000 70 (2015 & © #i 184
A0 795,000 7T) © A
SEMAZZAZRABREERE

FEEE -

BOIBEBRRERFEFABRLZ
TREETEREHBREDINA

RAEBERERANE RS
PFEA o
EBERA  RBBEHWLA

RRAREBEMNXER EREH
RERTERREFEARR o



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 March 2016
BZE2016 3 A 31 HILFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

b. Financial risk management objectives and policies

(continued)
Market risk (continued)

(iii)  Equity price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price risk through
its investments in listed equity securities. The
management manages this exposure by maintaining
a portfolio of investments with different risks. The
Group’s equity price risk is mainly concentrated on
equity instruments quoted in the Stock Exchange
of issuers operating in banking and finance industry
sector. In addition, the Group has appointed a
special team to monitor the price risk and will
consider hedging the risk exposure should the need
arise.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been
determined based on the exposure to equity price
risk at the reporting date.

If the prices of the listed equity securities classified
as investments held for trading had been 5%
(2015: 5%) higher/lower, post-tax loss for the year
ended 31 March 2016 would decrease/increase by
approximately HK$248,000 (2015: decrease/increase
in post-tax profit by HK$3,823,000) as a result of
the changes in fair value of investments held for
trading and financial assets designated as at fvipl.

If the prices of the listed equity securities classified
as available-for-sale investments had been 5%
(2015: 5%) higher/lower, investment revaluation
reserve would increase/decrease by approximately
HK$6,652,000 (2015: HK$858,000) as a result
of the changes in fair value of available-for-sale
investments.

6. R TR %)
HEAREERERIE(Z)

b.

S mEE (%)

(iii)  RAEE AR
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For the year ended 31 March 2016
BZE2016 3 A 31 HILFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

b.

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)

Credit risk

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in the
event of the counterparties’ failure to perform their
obligations as at 31 March 2016 in relation to each
class of recognised financial assets is the carrying
amount of those assets as stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position. In view of the nature
of business, the Group targets on a focused market.
As at 31 March 2016, the Group has concentration of
credit risk in the trade receivables balance amounting
to approximately HK$901,000 (2015: HK$4,686,000)
derived from the five largest customers with good credit
history in garment industry and property investment.
There is also concentration risk in respect of the
Group’s turnover during the year ended 31 March 2016
amounting to approximately HK$67,075,000 (2015:
HK$129,888,000) out of total turnover of approximately
HK$103,439,000 (2015: HK$192,489,000) which was
made to one single customer. In order to minimise the
credit risk, the management of the Group has reviewed
the financial position, liquidity and recoverable amount of
each individual trade receivable regularly to ensure that
adequate impairment losses are made for irrecoverable
amounts. In this regard, the directors of the Company
consider that the Group’s credit risk is significantly
reduced.

The Group also had concentration of credit risk in
relation to loans receivable from a few borrowers
amounting to approximately HK$76,000,000 at 31 March
2016 (2015: HK$23,640,000). The largest borrower of
the Group by itself accounted for approximately 13%
(2015: 42%) of the Group’s loans receivable at 31 March
2016. At 31 March 2016, all loans receivable are neither
past due nor impaired and the borrowers are assessed
to have satisfactory credit quality with reference to
financial background and creditability of individual
borrowers, subsequent settlement and payment history
of the borrowers. In order to minimise the credit risk, the
management has reviewed the recoverable amounts of
the loans receivable regularly to ensure that adequate
impairment losses are made for irrecoverable amounts. In
this regard, the directors of the Company consider that
the Group’s credit risk on loans receivable is significantly
reduced.
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For the year ended 31 March 2016
BZE2016 3 A 31 HILFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

b.

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)

Credit risk (continued)

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the
credit risk on liquid funds is limited because majority
of the counterparties are banks with high credit-ratings
assigned by international credit-rating agencies and
banks with good reputation.

Liquidity risk

In the management of liquidity risk, the Group monitors
and maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents
deemed adequate by the management to finance the
Group’s operations. The management monitors the
utilisation of borrowings and ensures compliance with
loan covenants.

As at 31 March 2016, the Group has available
unutilised bank loan facilities of HK$415,000,000 (2015:
HK$60,000,000).

The following table details the Group’s remaining
contractual maturity for its financial liabilities. The table
has been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash
flows of financial liabilities based on the earliest date
on which the Group can be required to pay. The table
includes both interest and principal cash flows.

6. R TR %)

b.

HBRBREERERBGK(E)

EEmAE(E)

ARREERR  RPEEZFERR
BR - AABIRST BEEREEF
TREFAREEIRIRT  TRE
RIFEBZRT

MEEZ R

RRBEEREREEMS  AREER
PHEFEEBRARAKFZRERF
RREAEAREZELHRT BE
EEREEZDRABREETERE

=
A °

A2016E3A31H " KEEE K&
FA 85 77 & 3 8 € /& 415,000,000 % 7T
(20154 : 60,000,000 ETT) °

TRANAREZ ERABIFBREH
BIEHR  WRDIRARE R KB R
FERPHBEZERABRTARS
REITR  RABBFNERAERER

=
= °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continueq)
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For the year ended 31 March 2016

BE2016 46331 ALFE
6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continueq) 6. €M I A
b. Financial risk management objectives and policies b. H¥XEAREEBEBEERBE(Z)
(continued)
Liquidity risk (continued) REEZEE(E)
Liquidity tables REELZ
More than
3 months but Total
Effective Less than less than undiscounted Carrying
interest rate 3 months 1year Overiyear  cash flows amount
BB3ER AfERE
BRAI% HR3ER BHR1E BB1E MEAH REE
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT TET TET FHT AT
2016 20164
Non-derivative financial 34744 B ER
liabilities
Trade and other B S REMER
payables FE - 13,488 - - 13,488 13,488
Convertible notes ARRE 11,65 87,720 - 20,400 108,120 87,084
Secured bank BERROEE
borrowings 2.75 1,916 5,748 116,271 123,935 100,087
103,124 5,748 136,671 245,543 200,659
2015 20154
Non-derivative financial 34744 RER
liabilities
Trade and other B REMER
payables B - 9,063 - - 9,063 9,063
Convertible note TARFE 13.01 - - 20,400 20,400 11,153
Secured bank BERROEE
borrowings 2.69 3,786 149,692 183,172 336,650 293,925
12,849 149,692 203,572 366,113 314,141
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For the year ended 31 March 2016
BZE2016 3 A 31 HILFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

6. R TR %)

c. Fair value c. AY{E
(i)  Fair value of the Group’s financial assets that are () FEERBEEZMEELLFE
measured at fair value on a recurring basis STEZEBEEZ NFE
Some of the Group’s financial assets are measured AEEB P EBMEERREHR
at fair value at the end of the reporting period. The BRAFEAE TRELBEHZ
following table gives information about how the MAEEAZEEMEERTEL
fair values of these financial assets are determined ERFAZHEERMN k& AH
(in particular, the valuation techniques and inputs B) e
used).
Fair value Valuation techniques
Financial assets Fair value hierarchy  and key inputs
SREE AYE ATERE RHERKREIZRARE
2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$'000
FAT FAT
Available-for-sale investments 133,034 17,152 Level 1 Quoted bid prices in an active market
EHERE F14 WEBTBMR B
Investments held for trading 5,944 91,557  Level 1 Quoted bid prices in an active market
FIEEERE F14 NER: IR el

There were no transfers between Levels 1, 2 and 3
in both years.

(i) Fair value of financial assets and financial
liabilities that are not measured at fair value on
recurring basis

The fair value of other financial assets and financial
liabilities is determined in accordance with generally
accepted pricing models based on discounted cash
flow analysis.

The directors of the Company consider that the
carrying amounts of financial assets and financial
liabilities recorded at amortised costs in the
consolidated financial statements approximate to
their fair values.

(i)

it

FR - F2RRFIR2HALR
BRMEFEEE -

RERBEZMEEL L FE
BZeREERZBERZAF
2}

HteBEERERBGBEZAY
EREEEXZEBERN W
BREFRREREDNMERE

ARREZRE  NBHEMKAT
BREEMBRELEREER
TREECREEREMAB IR
FEMEE
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For the year ended 31 March 2016
BZE2016 3 A 31 HILFE

7. TURNOVER 7.

Turnover represents the aggregate of the amounts received
or receivable for goods sold, net of discounts and sales
related taxes, rental income from property leasing and interest
income from loan financing during the year. An analysis of the
Group’s turnover is as follows:

EXE

LERFHEFAARIT AR EHERBARIAR
ZEMEEZEWHEKRERE  KELEY
R2HeWARKEESBE ZMBUAR
B ARBZEXZEAMMT ¢

2016 2015

HK$’000 HK$°000

FHET FET

Sales of goods EmiHE 75,208 172,082

Rental income AN 23,786 19,256

Interest income from loan financing REEHEE 2 FB KA 4,445 1,151

103,439 192,489

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION 8. SEEH

Information reported to the Group’s chief executive officer, REBRDEERDBRRIGEMES - EFREAN

being the chief operating decision maker (“CODM”), for the
purposes of resource allocation and assessment of segment
performance focuses on types of goods delivered or services
provided. This is also the basis of organisation, whereby
the management has chosen to organise the Group around
differences in products and services.

The Group’s operating and reportable segments under
HKFRS 8 “Operating segments” are: (a) garment sourcing and
exporting, (b) property investment, (c) property development,
(d) investment in securities and (e) loan financing.

Eminence Enterprise Limited 2015/16 Annual Report
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continueq)
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For the year ended 31 March 2016
BZE2016 3 A 31 HILFE

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 8. 7EER =

Segment revenue and results PHEEEBERES
The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and REERERDDBAMAEE 2 EERBRE
results by operating and reportable segment: BT
For the year ended 31 March 2016 BE2016F3H31 HILFE
Garment
sourcing and Property Property  Investment Loan
exporting  investment  development i securities financing  Eliminations  Consolidated
RER
HARK NERE NEER R5RE EXHE s &4
HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAr FAr FAr FAr FAr FAr FEr
Turnover EXE
External R 75,208 23,786 - - 4,445 - 103,439
Segment (loss) profit A (1) 87 (8,067) (16,257) (15,306) (11,354) 4,32 - (46,660)
Other income HflA 7,933
Other gains and losses Atz R 572
Other expenses RARS (985)
Finance costs BEKA (15,099)
Unallocated corporate ~ EAEZ AFRY
expenses (6,999)
Loss before taxation ~ FHiAIEE (61,238)
For the year ended 31 March 2015 HZ2015F3H31 HILFE
Garment
sourcing and Property Property Investment Loan
exporting investment  development in securities financing  Eliminations  Consolidated
RER
AKX ESE VESE EFrlRE BHRE fisH e
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FAT AT FAT FAT FAT FAT
Turnover EXH
External VS 172,082 19,256 - - 1,151 - 192,489
Segment (loss) profit  H3E(E#R) A (3,660) 3,998 (704) 43,853 1,051 = 44,538
Other income EAlA 5,194
Other gains and losses ~ EtlA L EE 176
Other expenses % (1,609)
Finance costs HEARAK (6,541)
Unallocated corporate A ZAFFX
expenses (7,240)
Profit before taxation ~ FiAI7 35,118

it
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For the year ended 31 March 2016
BZE2016 3 A 31 HILFE

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

Segment revenue and results (continued)

The accounting policies of the operating and reportable
segments are the same as the Group’s accounting policies
described in note 3. Segment (loss) profit represents the result
incurred by each segment without allocation of other income,
other gains and losses, other expenses, finance costs and
unallocated corporate expenses. This is the measure reported
to the Group’s CODM for the purposes of resource allocation

and performance assessment.

Segment assets and liabilities

The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets and

5BEB
PEERBRER(E)

BERZW|MN 2 Gt BEREEH TN KIS
AKBZ e BRMER - D B(EE)EF T
ENHZEE  BEFRAEDEREMEA - H
tRE L EE EAX  BERARES
RO - AMFAERAEEz TELE
RREZR  FRERIERRBAFEZZ

Z o

P HEERREE

REERZBABOIMAREZEERAR

liabilities by operating and reportable segment: N

2016 2015
HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET

Segment assets DEEE
Garment sourcing and exporting B R ORK 1,993 8,387
Property investment MR E 1,438,830 1,070,635
Property development MEER 524,257 568,120
Investment in securities BHEE 140,021 108,714
Loan financing ﬁ?ﬂrgﬂﬁf 76,513 23,720
Total segment assets Db EERTE 2,181,614 1,779,576
Unallocated bank balances and cash EHRIRTEREIRE 392,290 139,389
Others HA 182 216
Consolidated assets TR BE 2,574,086 1,919,181

Segment liabilities PEEE
Garment sourcing and exporting R R AR K 620 3,413
Property investment MERE 15,414 15,999
Property development MEER 6,128 462
Investment in securities BHEE 50 =
Loan financing EREE 85 -
Total segment liabilities DB ELAE 22,297 19,874
Secured bank borrowings BHBERTEE 100,087 293,925
Convertible notes AR 87,084 11,153
Unallocated SN 40,174 31,584
Consolidated liabilities meEaE 249,642 356,536
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For the year ended 31 March 2016
BZE2016 3 A 31 HILFE

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

Segment assets and liabilities (continued)

For the purposes of monitoring segment performances and

allocating resources between segments:

— all assets are allocated to operating and reportable
segments other than unallocated bank balances and
cash and assets used jointly by operating and reportable

segments.

— all liabilities are allocated to operating and reportable
segments other than tax payable, deferred tax liabilities,
liability portion of convertible notes, secured bank
borrowings and liabilities for which operating and
reportable segments are jointly liable.

Other segment information

For the year ended 31 March 2016

Amounts included in the measure of segment profit or loss or

segment assets:

Capital additions BARE
Depreciation ik
Loss on fair value change #{EEERE 7 A TE
of investments held for ~ EE&iE
trading
Loss on fair value change REAAEH 7 A TR

of equity linked notes ~ £HEE

Loss on change in fair ~ BHFZATEEHEE
value of bonds

Loss on change in fair ~ REMEZATE

value of investment  EE)ESE
properties
Impairment loss on
properties held for
development for sale

BIELERRNEL
HERR

PRER @)
AWEERAEE)

<ot

mnk

BRED
’D‘%BéiﬂﬁﬁZéF@l\'
REge

7"*|3i€iﬁﬁf? Rt o abfEz ER D B M

CRITAEBLIF S REERER
BEECD
EREHRNE

- BRENHE BEHESE  TRRE
BEaESdy  FEMRTEERLER
EBRHHBARAELBEN EERE
EORELERZWRDE -
Hittp HEH
BE2016 F3H31 HILFE
BEEAENBERINBEEL € H
Garment
sourcing and Property Property Investment Loan
exporting  investment  development in securities financing  Unallocated Total
RBR
BRHiA NERE NRER #ERE LEE EAR Az
HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAr FAr FAr FAr FAr FAr FAr
76 447,764 - - - - 447,840
Il 108 - - - - 179
- - - 2,540 = - 2,540
- - - 8,296 - - 8,296
- - - 2,193 - - 2,193
- 38,399 - - - - 33,399
- - 15,511 - - - 15,511

it
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For the year ended 31 March 2016

BZ2016 3831 HIEFE
8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continuea) 8. 7HER#®
Other segment information (continued) HthpBEN(E)
For the year ended 31 March 2015 BIZ2015F3 531 HILFE
Amounts included in the measure of segment profit or loss or EREEMEN BRI HEELERE

segment assets:

Garment
sourcing and Property Property [nvestment Loan
exporting investment  development in securities financing  Unallocated Total
RER
G NxiRE ESE ERiRE SR S g
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FAT FAT FAT FAT AT AT
Capital addtions BARE 79 291623 33758 - - - 64560
Depreciation i 44 108 - - - - 152
Gain on fair value change HEEERE
of investments held for ~ ATFEZELE
trading - - - (40,040) - - (40,040)
Gain on fair value change AT &zt A2
of financial assets SHAEZATE
designated as at bollen
FVTPL - - - #11) - - #11)
Loss on change in fair ~ F&YE 7 ATE
value of investment  £HER
properties - 8,155 - - - - 8,155

Eminence Enterprise Limited 2015/16 Annual Report



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continueq)

mEMBEHRRMT )

For the year ended 31 March 2016

HBE2016 E3 531 AILEE
8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 8. 7EER®
Geographical information 35 B
The Group’s operations are located in Hong Kong and the KEFZEBEVAEANTEH -
PRC.
The Group’s revenue from external customers based on the RREIREFEFMFE D 2 AER 2 &
shipment location of customers and information about its EANREEZEMBE D ZETRBEE
non-current assets (excluding financial instruments and loans (TEEEeRTAREWER)FBOT :
receivable) by geographical location of the assets are detailed
below:
Revenue from external
customers Non-current assets
REIREFZEXE FRBEE
2016 2015 2016 2015
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET FET FET
Hong Kong BB 14,675 12,635 921,694 678,896
PRC Y 10,378 7,772 272,187 246,251
The United States of America EE 73,732 137,592 = —
Europe BUM 1,379 34,490 - -
Singapore == 1b3 3,179 - 139,966 —
Mexico = 96 — - —
103,439 192,489 1,333,847 925,147
Information about major customers FEEXEER
Revenue from customers of the corresponding years BENEBHEEATEI0ON A L BEZRE
contributing over 10% of the total sales of the Group are as EREENT :
follows:
2016 2015
HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET
Customer A’ EPA 67,075 129,888
! Revenue from garment sourcing and exporting. ! RERBREOKKZ %5 -
9. OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES 9. Hittlhm K E#E
2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FET
Net exchange gain B 5 W e 5 B 572 176

Wi ¥ERAT 2015/16 FiR 113

it



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continueq)

mEMBHRRMT =)

For the year ended 31 March 2016
BZE2016 3 A 31 HILFE

10. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’
EMOLUMENTS

10.EEREEZHE

(a) Information regarding directors’ emoluments

(a) EEEEmMEzEH
HZE2016 F3 A1 AILFEALNAE

Details of emoluments to the directors of the Company

for the year ended 31 March 2016 are as follows: EMEEFIIT :
Executive directors Non-executive directors  Independent non-executive directors
#1Es FifES BufgnEs
Kwong Koon Tse
Jimmy Lui HoYan ~ Wing Chiu Lai Kan Lau Foo
Cheung Tim ~ Yuk Chu Candy Ricky  Law Kau KaHon  SinMing  Tak Ching Total

BRF  BI%  ETR M@ HEX  EE®  BER  MRK 28
HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'00  HKSO00  HKSO00  HKSOO0  HKSO00  HKS000  HKS000
fé&n  fEn fEn TEn TEn TEn fEn FEn FEX

Fees ek - - - 130 130 130 130 130 650
Other emoluments Eftie
—Salariesandother ~ — EARA
benefits 900 1,560 312 - - - - - 2,172
— Contributions to - RivERIF B
retirement benefit
schemes - 18 16 - - - - - 34
Total directors’ emoluments EZH& 4% 900 1578 328 130 130 130 130 130 3,456

BZE2015F3 A BIEFEARAAE
EMEHIIMT :

Details of emoluments to the directors of the Company
for the year ended 31 March 2015 are as follows:

Executive directors Non-executive directors Independent non-executive directors
g FIES BUFINES
Kwong Koon Tse
Jimmy Lui HoYan ~ Wing Chiu Lai Kan Lau Foo
Cheung Tim ~ Yuk Chu Candy Ricky  Law Kau KaHon  SinMing  Tak Ching Total

BRF  EER BUR @B BER  ERR HER  BRK 4]
HKSO00  HKSOOD  HKSOOD  HKSOOD  HKSOOD  HKSO00  HKSO00  HKS000  HK$000
TAT  TEr TR TEr fEr TET TEr TET TEn

114

Fees e = - - 130 130 130 130 130 650
Other emoluments Eftie
- Saleries and other - E4RA{EA
benefits 900 1,560 32 - - - - - 2,112
— Contributions to - RIFEE AR
retirement benefit
schemes - 18 15 - - - - - 3
Total directors’ emoluments EZA2 4% 900 1578 31 130 130 130 130 130 3,455
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For the year ended 31 March 2016
BZE2016 3 A 31 HILFE

10. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’
EMOLUMENTS (continued)

(a)

(b)

Information regarding directors’ emoluments
(continued)

Mr. Kwong Jimmy Cheung Tim is also the Chief Executive
of the Company and his emoluments disclosed above
include those for services rendered by him as the Chief
Executive.

The executive directors’ emoluments shown above were
mainly for their services in connection with the affairs of
the Company and the Group.

The non-executive directors’ emoluments shown above
were mainly for their services as directors’ of the
Company'’s subsidiaries.

The independent non-executive directors’ emoluments
shown above were mainly for their services as directors
of the Company.

Information regarding employees’ emoluments

The five highest paid individuals of the Group included
two directors whose emoluments were included above
for both years. The emoluments of the remaining three
highest paid individuals, not being directors, are as
follows:

Salaries and other benefits
Contribution to retirement benefits
schemes

e REMEF
RIREFIE B4R

10.EEREEZME )

(a)

(b)

THEEME2ER(E)

BEREENBARE Z EFTHRAE
RENEREZ M BRERIERERTT
BB PRI 2 IRTS

TRBRZHTESHEERREEFR
AARB RAEEER 2 RTE

TRBRZFRTEETMEEEREF
ERARAIMBARESZRE -

LlBRZBUIFATESHEEER
REERADTEZTZR -

FHEEMEEN

rEATEABREHEATREREE
£ REARMEFEsHECREEL
XA HE#B=% UFEE Hafe
ATHHOT

2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FET
3,302 3,174
59 59
3,361 3,233

it
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For the year ended 31 March 2016

BIFZ2016 331 HILFE
10. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ 10.EEREEZME &)
EMOLUMENTS (continued)
(b) Information regarding employees’ emoluments (b) EBREEMEER(E)
(continued)
Their emoluments were within the following bands: BEZHMEN T T &E :
2016 2015
Number of Number of
individuals individuals
ESAE EAZ
Nil to HK$1,000,000 £ % 1,000,000/ 7T 2 2
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 % 7T.% 2,000,000 % 7T 1 1
3 3
During both years, no emoluments were paid by the RAEEE  AEEIELHHETE
Group to the directors and the other three (2015: three) EREM=L(2015F =28
highest paid individuals as an inducement to join or upon (ﬁz;\\i TT’E?%?JW@JZ@?JE)\ZF%@E%
joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office. Zﬁﬁbﬁ%iﬁﬁﬁz%ﬁg o AN ¢ AT
In addition, during both periods, no director waived any AR iﬁ*ﬁ%%ﬁﬁlﬁéﬁ%@ .
emoluments. ’
11. FINANCE COSTS 1. BERAE
2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET T8
Interest on bank borrowings RITEEFE 6,809 5,111
Effective interest expense on convertible ARREE 2 BEREF B MAX
notes 8,290 1,430
15,099 6,541
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For the year ended 31 March 2016

BE2016F3 831 HILFE

12. TAXATION

The charge comprises:

Current tax:
Hong Kong
Deferred tax (note 28)

Financial Statements (continued)

FIx BEE -

WITHE
&5
BB (AL 28)

12. %A

2016 2015
HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FAET
2,021 -
6,009 4,032
8,030 4,032

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the estimated

assessable profit for 2016.

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made as the
Group has no assessable profit for 2015.

Under the Law of the People’s Republic of China on Enterprise
Income Tax (the “EIT Law”) and Implementation Regulation of
the EIT Law, the tax rate of the PRC subsidiaries is 25% from

1 January 2008 onwards.

No provision for PRC Enterprise Income Tax has been made
as assessable profits is wholly absorbed by tax losses

brought forward for both years.

2016 FH/EF SR IR ERTEF 2
16.5% =t & o

REBN 20155 I BERBILN - B
REBHGH R -

BEAEARAMEAGLEMESHR A
EMBEHREDRCEMSHEZERHED
PRz K EBARE2008F1 81 BEZH
KE25% o

R AR At M) 70 7 ] 4F 2 939 4 A AT B TR U
B2EHE WA RTECEMERER -

Wi ¥ERAT 2015/16 FiR
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For the year ended 31 March 2016
BZE2016 3 A 31 HILFE

12. TAXATION (continued) 12. MIE (%)

AFEERARY BREBa A2 E KA

Tax charge for the year can be reconciled to the results

118

per the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other REEZHEMT :
comprehensive income as follows:
2016 2015
HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET
(Loss) profit before taxation BRTAT (518 ) & A (61,238) 35,118
Tax (credit) charge at the applicable rate of % iEBH % 16.5% (20154 :
16.5% (2015: 16.5%) 16.5% )T E 2 MIBE(GFA)AX (10,104) 5,794
Tax effect of income not taxable for tax BARBIRAZTIBYZ
purposes (5,478) (8,453)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for TEMFRAST 2 HEL 2
tax purposes 11,824 4,695
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised AERTIBEE 2T BT E 14,973 2,862
Tax effect of utilisation of tax losses HABARERTIBEBE
previously not recognised HIEZE (5,273) (2,833)
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries 2 ERHMAEZHBATZ
operating in other jurisdictions MEZER 728 3,180 1,886
Others Hil (1,092) 81
Tax charge for the year REFERIERT 8,030 4,032
13.(LOSS) PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 13. X FE (F5E) B
2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
(Loss) profit for the year has been arrived — ZN4Z (518 ) E M MK
at after charging:
Directors’ remuneration (note 10(a)) EEME (A 10(@) 3,456 3,455
Other staff costs, including retirement HbETA - 8RR
benefits costs BRI 13,045 12,527
Total staff costs BTk A sEzE 16,501 15,982
Auditor’s remuneration %R & 2,080 1,385
Cost of inventories recognised as an ERRABRAI 2 FEKAE
expense 67,001 155,172
Depreciation e 179 152
and after crediting to other income: RAREAMBAGTA
Bank interest income |RITHEWMA 4,869 5,565
Dividend income from listed investments EiiRE ZBREWA 4,115 3,447
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BZE2016 3 A 31 HILFE

14. BASIC (LOSS) EARNINGS PER SHARE 14. BREX(EE)BF

The calculation of the basic (loss) earnings per share
attributable to owners of the Company is based on the
following data:

ARAREME 2 SRER(BE) AN DR
BATERIE

2016 2015
HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET
(Loss) earnings (B8) &
(Loss) earnings for the purpose of basic HRERER(ER)BImME 2
(loss) earnings per share (B18) &M (69,268) 31,086
2016 2015
’000 000
FET FET
(Restated)
(&%)
Number of shares BRGHEE
Weighted average number of ordinary HERER(ER) B S
shares for the purpose of basic (loss) ZINEFE T B (D &
earnings per share 481,467 310

The computation of diluted loss (2015: earnings) per share does not
assume the exercise of the Company’s outstanding convertible notes
because the conversion prices of these convertible notes were higher
than the average market price of shares for the year.

The weighted average number of ordinary shares for the purpose
of basic (loss) earnings per share has been adjusted for rights
issues on 14 November 2014, 22 April 2015, 3 November 2015 and
consolidation of shares on 21 October 2014, 25 March 2015 and 8
October 2015.

A ESREEERE(2015F : BF)EIR
ABRRITEARRHAL B ZATRKRRE
FtEaRRE s A RESBAFEFY
mHEEZRE

SRERENEER(RA)ME 2 MEFHLER
PR BZ 1D & B 2 R 2014411 A14 3 - 2015
F4H22H8 2015F11 A3 2 # & &
20144108218 - 201563258 &
2015610 A8 B 2 &{nA BHEH A «

Wi ¥ERAT 2015/16 FiR
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mEMBHRRMT =)

For the year ended 31 March 2016
BZE2016 3 A 31 HILFE

15. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS/
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

(@) During the year, the Group had the following related
party transactions which also constituted continuing
connected transactions with wholly-owned subsidiaries

of Easyknit International:

Rental expense

HEHX

7

15.BEANTRE BEXS

(a)

F7 0 AEERXEARZ 2ENEA
AABKBEERERSCBEALRS
NN

2016 2015
HK$’°000 HK$°000
FET FET
2,496 2,496

Ms. Lui Yuk Chu, a director of the Company, is also one
of the beneficiaries under a family trust holding 36.74%
(2015: 36.74%) equity interest of Easyknit International at
31 March 2016. She also holds 21.95% (2015: 21.95%)
equity interest of Easyknit International through an entity

wholly-owned by her.

(b) In January 2011, the Company entered into an
employment agreement with Mr. Koon Wing Yee, the
spouse of Ms. Lui Yuk Chu, to act as general manager
of the Company for a salary of HK$50,000 per month
which is adjusted to HK$150,000 per month with effect
from 1 April 2013. The employment agreement, which
constitutes a connected transaction, commenced on
21 February 2011 but may be terminated by either party
at any time by three months’ notice. The remuneration
of Mr. Koon Wing Yee as general manager of the
Company during the year ended 31 March 2016 was
HK$1,950,000 (2015: HK$1,950,000) and was included in
the “compensation of key management personnel” in (d)

below.

(c) Details of convertible note issued to Easyknit

International are set out in note 27.

Eminence Enterprise Limited 2015/16 Annual Report

RARBIZEFELIHRZ L R2016%F
3H3TB M AR A k& BIFE36.74%
(20154 : 36.74% ) ER R R
AZ— R BR—HEZERBZE
BEMiEA K E B 21.95% (20154 :
21.95% )#Ex ©

R2011F1 A ARRBEEER LT
ZEBEXBELELETLEAGZ N
F $:50,0007% ;T E B & & AR a2
KIBH2013F4A1BREAZREE A
150,00087C - ZBEK —BBRERXF 2
ERA%ER2011F2821 B/ K ' B
IRERREREREN—FET=
B ABAME L - B ZE20164F3 A 31
HEFABKELEEAERRARRAR
7 B4 41,950,000 7T (2015 4 ¢
1,950,000/8 ) RE BIELEA T (d) B
ZIEZEBABZHMIR -

1T Tk E R 2 AR EE 2
B AHIE 27 ©



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continueq)

mEMBEHRRMT )

For the year ended 31 March 2016

HE2016 4331 HILFE
15. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS/ 15.BEBEALTRE BERS @)
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)
(d) Compensation of key management personnel d) F=ZBEEABZHH
The remuneration of directors and other members of key EENEMTEEREAERFAZIE
management during the year was as follows: I
2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FET
Short-term employee benefits S HEERTFE REMET
Salaries and other benefits 6,073 5,946
Contributions to retirement benefit BRI FT B 3R
schemes 92 95
6,165 6,041
The remuneration of directors and key executives are SERTETHAE ZE D B =B
determined by the remuneration committee and executive ZEeRHTESRRENALTZRER
directors respectively having regard to the performance M@ mEE -

of individuals and market trends.

During the year ended 31 March 2016, the Group () HZE201653A31BILFR  AEE
received rental income totalling HK$270,000 from certain WBAAGIEERTEREEET LT
close relatives of Ms. Lui Yuk Chu and Ms. Koon Ho FEAMRZT2ETFEH2BE WA
Yan Candy, directors and substantial shareholders of the 270,000/ T °

Company.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continueq)

mEMBHRRMT =)

For the year ended 31 March 2016
BZE2016 3 A 31 HILFE

16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 16. Y% - BMERZRE

Furniture,
fixtures and Motor
equipment vehicles Total
&M
RERRE RE B
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
T T FET
COST %
At 1 April 2014 R2014F4 A1 H 608 2,576 3,184
Exchange adjustments b 5 SR & = 2 2
Additions NE 183 - 183
Disposals HE = (199) (199)
At 31 March 2015 R 2015%3 A31H 791 2,379 3,170
Exchange adjustments b i FH (5) (37) (42)
Additions NE 90 - 90
Disposals HE (235) (994) (1,229)
At 31 March 2016 R2016 3 A 31H 641 1,348 1,989
DEPRECIATION AND IMPAIRMENT & RB{E
At 1 April 2014 1N2014F 4 A1H 503 2,076 2,579
Exchange adjustments BEE 5 38 B - 1 1
Provided for the year REZ 52 100 152
Eliminated on disposals A B i 8 - (199) (199)
At 31 March 2015 1201543 A31H 595 1,978 2,533
Exchange adjustments B X, 2 4) (21) (25)
Provided for the year REERE 81 98 179
Eliminated on disposals A 65 B 3 8 (235) (994) (1,229)
At 31 March 2016 7420163 A 318 397 1,061 1,458
CARRYING VALUES BREE
At 31 March 2016 M2016 3 A31H 244 287 531
At 31 March 2015 R 201543 4318 236 401 637

The above items of property, plant and equipment are
depreciated on a straight-line basis over to the following

LTRERYE - BERREGANERERE
WT 2 A ERERENE

useful lives:
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 3 to 10 years R HENEE 3E104F
Motor vehicles 5 to 10 years B 5Z& 104

122 Eminence Enterprise Limited 2015/16 Annual Report



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

Yt B

For the year ended 31 March 2016

HE2016 4331 HILFE
17.INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 17. REW*

Investment

Completed properties

investment under
properties development Total
ERRRENE BRTREVE RG]
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
BT FET T

FAIR VALUE DNFRE

At 1 April 2014 R20146 4 A1H 587,553 53,016 640,569
Exchange adjustments b i 358 119 477
Additions NE 273,629 17,990 291,619
Reclassification ES bR 70,764 (70,764) -
Decrease in fair value NEERAD (7,794) (361) (8,155)
At 31 March 2015 201543 A31H 924,510 - 924,510
Exchange adjustments b i (5,242) (303) (5,545)
Additions NE 206,593 8,343 214,936
On acquisition of subsidiaries G E= NG 232,814 - 232,814
(Decrease) increase in fair value NEECRD ) (55,698) 22,299 (33,399)
At 31 March 2016 R 201643 A31H 1,302,977 30,339 1,333,316

The fair values of the Group’s completed investment
properties in Hong Kong at 31 March 2016 and 31 March
2015 were arrived at on the basis of a valuation carried out
as at those dates by Vigers Appraisal & Consulting Limited
(“Vigers”), a firm of independent qualified professional
property valuers not connected with the Group. Vigers
is member of the Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors. The
valuation of completed investment properties in Hong Kong
was arrived at by reference to market evidence of recent
transaction prices for similar properties.

The fair values of the Group’s completed investment
properties and investment properties under development in
the PRC at 31 March 2016 and 31 March 2015 have been
arrived at on the basis of a valuation carried out as at those
dates by Knight Frank Petty Limited (“Knight Frank”), a firm
of independent qualified professional property valuers not
connected with the Group. Knight Frank is member of the
Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors.

7201643 A31 H 201543 A31H * &
SEMNREBZERKIEMEAFETIER
EAEEREHEZBUAEREEMER
ERMTER T EETEEMAER DR (ES
HDRZEBMETHEIEEET - Big
HAERBHEMBee8 - REEETHE
EMEZHBENSZERERMETRRE
RSB RETE °

REER201643 A31 H K% 201543 A 31
AZHRBEEERIRENERERETRRENE
ZAFEDREAEBSAMEZBIAE
REEYEGEMITRGAMITERAR
(IR RZERPETHEZEEETE -
K hAEBIEMESES -

I ERAT 2015/16 FiR
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17.INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continueq)

The fair value of the Group’s completed investment properties
in Singapore at 31 March 2016 was arrived at on the basis
of a valuation carried out at those dates by DTZ Debenham
Tie Leung (SEA) Pte Ltd, a firm of independent qualified
professional property valuers not connected with the Group.
The valuation of completed investment properties in Singapore
was arrived at by reference to market evidence of recent
transaction prices for similar properties.

During the year ended 31 March 2015, the Group completed
the construction of certain investment properties under
development in the PRC and these properties were leased
out immediately for rental income. Hence the directors of
the Company decided to reclassify the relevant properties
amounting to RMB57,000,000 (equivalent to HK$70,764,000)
from investment properties under development to completed
investment properties. No reclassification of investment
properties for the year ended 31 March 2016.

The loss arising on changes in fair value of investment
properties of HK$33,399,000 was recognised in profit
or loss for the year ended 31 March 2016 (2015: loss of
HK$8,155,000).

All of the Group’s leasehold interests in land held under
operating leases to earn rentals are measured using the
fair value model and are classified and accounted for as
investment properties.

Eminence Enterprise Limited 2015/16 Annual Report

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

Yt s B

For the year ended 31 March 2016
BZE2016 3 A 31 HILFE

17. REWME )

REER201643 A31 8 K% 201543 A 31
A2 g ETRIRENE L AT EIRE
REBARBERBEZE UG EREENERE
§1DTZ Debenham Tie Leung (SEA) Pte
LtdRZEBHETHEZEEET - RN
MFEETREEMEZGETIZZERERY
ERHHRER 2 TIHBERERE

HZE2015F3A31BIEFERN KEE
ESREEETURFBEAIERFEEY
XVERALEZSEWENGRES
WA Bt AR EEREEHNHELE
A AR 57,000,000 7T (8% K 70,764,000
BIL)Z R ERERPRENEZE TR
BEME - HE2016F3831BIEFEW
BENDEREYE -

HZE2016F3A31BIIFEZREMEZ
A B B E518 33,399,000 75 7. (2015 4F
518 8,155,000 /870 ) ER B R o

AEEFAREEEOETHRIAS 2 +ib
ROBRTUATEERHBRAEARA
W58 -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

PPN BT 0

For the year ended 31 March 2016
BZE2016 3 A 31 HILFE

17.INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continueq)

The following table gives information about how the fair values
of the investment properties are determined (in particular,
the valuation techniques and inputs used), as well as the fair
value hierarchy into which the fair value measurements are
categorised (Levels 1 to 3) based on the degree to which the
inputs to the fair value measurements is observable.

17. REWHE #)

TRINBEREERENENRAFELER
(BRIRFERZEETDERBABE) - K
EREGABBZABREEEDNAFE
FR(F1EFIR) 2 AFEFE -

Investment Valuation Significant
properties Fair value at  Fair value techniques unobservable
held by the Group 31 March 2016  hierarchy and key inputs inputs Sensitivity
#2016 5
RREREL 3A31A fhERER EXTABE
REmx ZAYE DYESER TERARE L DN ¢ $RE
HK$'000
AT
Commercial units in 821,356 Level 3  Direct comparison method  Price per square foot, The higher the price per
Hong Kong — based on market using market direct square foot, the higher the
£3%  observable transactions comparables and taking fair value.
REBZ BEERL of similar properties and into account of location
adjusted to reflect the and other individual factors SFHREBRS -
locations and conditions of ~ such as road frontage, size AFERS
the subject property of property etc., which is
ranged from HK$40,000
ERERE - HREETE  to HK$721,333 per square
ZTEABERS  UFHERE  foot.
NRBARYEZERER
RATSEETHEREZR
fr &5 R At fERIR Z ERETE
B MEXNEZETARE
& BFARNT40,000%7T
£721,333 587
Industrial units in 56,622 Level 3  Direct comparison method  Price per square foot, The higher the price per
Hong Kong — based on market using market direct square foot, the higher the
£3%  observable transactions comparables and taking fair value.
WEBZ TEEN of similar properties and into account of location

adjusted to reflect the
locations and conditions of
the subject property

ERHBE ERFARNEL
MATRERS - WARE
URBEEMEZNER
fB

0|

and other individual factors ST HFREERR  ATERR
such as road frontage, size

of property etc., which is

ranged from HK$3,545 to

HK$4,086 per square foot.

FREMGERINBRREENL
ENREMERRZMEEE
¥ MERNNEZBTRRE
B BEARNTS 5458 LE
4,086/

SILEEAMRAT 2015/16 FiR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continueq)

mEMBHRRMT =)

For the year ended 31 March 2016

BIE2016F 3831 HILFE

17.INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continueq)

17. REWZE #)

Investment Valuation Significant
properties Fair value at  Fair value techniques unobservable
held by the Group 31 March 2016  hierarchy and key inputs inputs Sensitivity
#2016 F
rEEREZ 3A31H HERER EXTABE
RENE ZAYE NHEZR TERARE BARE HRE
HK$'000
AT
Residential units in 43,510 Level 3  Direct comparison method  Price per square foot, The higher the price per
Hong Kong — based on market using market direct square foot, the higher the
3% observable transactions comparables and taking fair value.
BB FEEfL of similar properties and into account of location
adjusted to reflect the and other individual factors &F¥FREERR W AFERR
locations and conditions of  such as road frontage, size
the subject property of property etc., which
is ranged from HK$6,852
EREEE EREENELZ  to HK$15,207 per square
MEABRERS  WEHEL  foot.
RBEENEZMNERER
RETREETHENRER
fir & A R 2 A 8 R B Z e
B% NEXNEZBTAR
£E 8TARNT6,852%
215,207 BT
Residential units in 139,966 Level 3  Direct comparison method  Price per square foot, The higher the price per
Singapore — based on market using market direct square foot, the higher the
Z3#4  observable transactions comparables and taking fair value.
I 2 EEEN of similar properties and into account of location

adjusted to reflect the
locations and conditions of
the subject property

ERNEE ERRENEL
MEABER S - LEHRIL
RRBENFE M ERER

Eminence Enterprise Limited 2015/16 Annual Report

and other individual factors
such as road frontage, size
of property etc., which is
ranged from HK$16,238

to HK$16,874 per square
foot.

REMSERINBAREE
frEARELERRR DS
EE - NENNEZEERR
£ FFARNT 16,238
BITE16,874 75T

)
i

BYAREERS  ATEER

Ijo|



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continueq)

mEMBEHRRMT )

For the year ended 31 March 2016

BE2016F3 831 HILFE

17.INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continueq)

17. REWZE #)

Investment Valuation Significant
properties Fair value at  Fair value techniques unobservable
held by the Group 31 March 2016  hierarchy and key inputs inputs Sensitivity
#2016 F
rEEREL 3A31A HERER EXTABE
REME ZAYE NHEZHR TERARE BARE HRE
HK$'000
AT
Industrial units in the 241,523 Level 3 Income capitalisation of Capitalisation rate, which  The higher the capitalisation
PRC net income with provisions is 4.91% per annum. rate, the lower the fair value.
34 for reversionary income
R Bz TEEf potential BRE - BERAN% EXEERS  ATHERE
WAFEFEZMABRIE  Market monthly rental rate,  The higher the market
FHBAENG REE which is RMB13 per square monthly rental rate, the higher
metre. the fair value.
58 ARE  §YAK M58 ARERS A TERS
RAR®137T
Properties under 30,339 Level 3 Income capitalisation of Capitalisation rate, which  The higher the capitalisation
development in the net income with provisions is 4.91% per annum. rate, the lower the fair value.
PRC F34  for reversionary income
potential ERLE  BEARAN% EALERR - RTEAE
RABZEREPNE

WAFBE 2 RABAILE
THBAENRRR

Market monthly rental rate,
which is RMB13 per square
metre.

58 ARE - 8K
RARE13T

it

The higher the market
monthly rental rate, the higher
the fair value.

miEEARERS  ATEDRR
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17.INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continueq)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continueq)

mEMBHRRMT =)

For the year ended 31 March 2016
BZE2016 3 A 31 HILFE

17. REWZE #)

Investment Valuation Significant
properties Fair value at  Fair value techniques unobservable
held by the Group 31 March 2016  hierarchy and key inputs inputs Sensitivity
#2016 %
rEEREZ 3A31H hERER EXFUBE
REMx ZDVE NYESH TERANE BABE $RE
HK$'000
TET
Commercial units in 678,700 Level 3  Direct comparison method  Price per square foot, The higher the price per
Hong Kong — based on market using market direct square foot, the higher the
£34  observable transactions comparables and taking fair value.
REBZBREN of similar properties and into account of location
adjusted to reflect the and other individual factors STHIREERE  AFE
locations and conditions of  such as road frontage, size TR
the subject property of property etc., which is
ranged from HK$102,381
BERLEZE - BERABNE 1o HK$361,143 per square
JTEUBERS  UEFE oo
IRIREBME G ERER
RATSEETHRRERI
ENREMERIRZMEEE
B 0EANNEZEIHRE
& §EFRNT102,3817%
TE 361,143 %87
Completed properties 245,810 Level 3 Income capitalisation of Capitalisation rate, which  The higher the capitalisation
in the PRC net income with provisions  is 4.6% per annum. rate, the lower the fair value.
3 for reversionary income
RPBEZERRIE potential BRIL%  BERA6% EXtEas  ATEBE

WAFEHEZRABRILE
YHBAENGERRE

Eminence Enterprise Limited 2015/16 Annual Report

Market monthly rental rate,
which is RMB12.13 per
square metre.

mESAHEE  8LkKA
AR% 12137

The higher the market
monthly rental rate, the higher
the fair value.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continueq)

mEMBEHRRMT )

For the year ended 31 March 2016

HE2016453A31 AUt FE
18. LOANS RECEIVABLE 18. EIE X
2016 2015
HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET
Unsecured Eigdivd
— guaranteed by outside parties and - HE=HERK
bearing interest at a fixed rate of 5% EEEFEE%TE
per annum 54,000 8,640
— bearing interest at a fixed rate of 5% - BEFEFERER5%TE
per annum 22,000 15,000
76,000 23,640
Less: Amount due from borrowers B BTIRREBEEL
repayable within one year shown —FREHEREY
under current assets JEWERA R (18,500) (12,140)
Amount due from borrowers repayable BTRIERBEEZ —F& 5 H
after one year shown under non-current ~ EEZEKRERALHE
assets 57,500 11,500
The management closely monitors the credit quality of loans EEEZRERRWER EEEERESR
receivable and considers loans receivable that are neither past EEAMERAZHBERREE &EAH
due nor impaired to be of good credit quality with reference to B EFRRERAZBEEERS  RRR
financial background and creditability of individual borrowers, ERBRBECRERRERAERIEEE
subsequent settlement and payment history of the borrowers. £ o NIREARTELBPEKER -
No loans receivable is past due at the end of the reporting
period.
All loans receivable are denominated in HKD, functional FTAERWRESFRREMRHUAEEE TR
currency of the relevant group entity, at the end of the 2L EEABTTIIE -

reporting period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continueq)

e KB RME

For the year ended 31 March 2016
BZE2016 3 A 31 HILFE

19.

20.

21.

AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS

Equity securities listed in Hong Kong, at RTERES FTY
market value RRS 2

19. I HERE
2016 2015
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET T8
133,034 17,152

PROPERTIES HELD FOR DEVELOPMENT 20.F{EHEXREYWE

FOR SALE

At 31 March 2016, the whole amount of properties held for
development for sale is included in the Group’s current assets
in the consolidated statement of financial position as it is
expected that the properties will be realised in the Group’s
normal operating cycle for properties development.

At 31 March 2016, the Group performed impairment
assessment on its properties held for development to assess
their recoverable amounts with reference to valuations made
by independent qualified professional property valuers not
connected to the Group. The valuations were arriving at by
using the residual method. As the recoverable amounts of
the properties held for development are lower than their
carrying amounts as at the end of the reporting period, the
directors of the Company are of the opinion that the amount
of approximately HK$15,511,000 of impairment loss was
provided is considered necessary.

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

Trade receivables 2 5 e W5 IE
Prepayments B RIA
Interest receivable e F B
Refundable stamp duty R ENTER
Other receivables Hfth & Ui RIE

Deposits paid to suppliers to be realised
within one year

HERRE

21.

BR—FRER 2T

R2016F3A31 8 REHMWELRAE
BMERRCEFEERBANES - HED
ERRVEZZHEBREGE T BMRET
EREB 2 REEE -

R2016 F3 A31H  AEEERFEERE
MEETRENG  2EHEREELEBE
ZBUABREEYEGEMT A ENT
HEAkEEE ZEHENREREES
e ARFIEEEME 2 IREEEENE
RBREHRZEEE  ARAIEERAT:T
124915,511,000 & JTmEE1E ©

B R HAMERRIE
2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FET
3,179 7,455
1,262 564
1,544 134
28,463 —
1,534 667
- 2,000
35,982 10,820

Eminence Enterprise Limited 2015/16 Annual Report



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 March 2016
BZE2016 3 A 31 HILFE

21. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

(continued)

The Group allows an average credit period of up to 90 days to
its customers. The aged analysis of trade receivables, based
on the invoice date which approximate revenue recognition
date, at the end of the reporting period is as follows:

0 — 60 days 0-60H
61 — 90 days 61-90H
Over 90 days #3890 H

2. EGRHEMEWFEIE 2

ARERTEEPZFHRELZEWAR - R
BROIRSRIADPZEREY  BEHEK
FTERBEMR KRBT

2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAET
2,930 7,009
170 236

79 210
3,179 7,455

The management closely monitors the credit quality of
trade and other receivables and considers trade and other
receivables that are neither past due nor impaired to be of
good credit quality.

Included in the Group’s trade receivable balances are debtors
with aggregate carrying amount of HK$758,000 (2015:
HK$922,000) which are past due at the reporting date for
which the Group has not provided for allowance. The Group
does not hold any collateral over these balances.

The following is an aged analysis of trade receivables which
are past due but not impaired:

Overdue by 1 to 60 days EiBE1ZE60H
Overdue by 61 to 90 days EiBHI61% 90 H
Overdue by over 90 days BiEH@ER90 B

ERERRERE I NAMRUFRZEE
BERARLBRYMIAEZES REME
BRBERERIFEEEER -

RNREBH AEE 28 5 EKFIELE %
o BREEA H£4758,00078 7T (20154 ¢
922,000/87T) BE BHE R BT IRREME - K
SEWEARRELSFTHTMER -

EBMERREZE 5 EWRFIEAZ Kk DT
mE

2016 2015
HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET
509 476

170 236

79 210

758 922

Based on the historical experience of the Group, trade
receivables that are past due are generally recoverable and as
a result, no allowance was made for trade receivables at the
end of the reporting period.

ARERERAERLR BHZEHRUKE
—RRE AT AYE - Bt - RBEHR - B8
B E HRUGOR R -

I ERAT 2015/16 FiR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continueq)

mEMBHRRMT =)

For the year ended 31 March 2016
BZE2016 3 A 31 HILFE

21.

22,

23.

24,

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

(continued)

The Group’s trade and other receivables that are denominated
in currencies other than the functional currencies of the
relevant group entities are set out below:

usD XL
RMB AEHE

21.

EZREMERFZE S

ARENERSEERNEEH U ZE
SIEZE S REMERFREIINT

2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAET
1,342 4,583

- 3

BILLS RECEIVABLE

At 31 March 2015, the bills receivable were aged within 60
days and were denominated in USD.

INVESTMENTS HELD FOR TRADING

The investments held for trading comprise equity securities
listed in Hong Kong and are stated at fair value which
are based on the quoted market bid prices on the Stock
Exchange.

BANK BALANCES AND CASH

The bank balances and cash held by the Group comprise
short-term bank deposits with an original maturity of three
months or less, at prevailing market interest rates ranging
from 0.001% to 4.3% (2015: 0.001% to 4.8%) per annum.

Cash and cash equivalents represent cash and bank balances.
As at 31 March 2015, the Group placed time deposits,
amounted to approximately RMB48,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$59,606,000), with a financial institution
in the PRC with original maturity of three months. The time
deposits contained embedded derivative, the interest rate of
which was determined with reference to the exchange rate of
USD against HKD and ranges from 2.8% to 4.8% per annum.
The embedded derivative was considered closely related to
the host contract as it would not double the Group’s initial
return on the host contract when comparing to the host
contract without embedded derivative. Therefore it had not
been accounted for separately in the consolidated financial
statements and was included in “bank balances and cash” as
at 31 March 2015. There is no time deposit as at 31 March
2016.

Eminence Enterprise Limited 2015/16 Annual Report

22,

23.

24,

EURE

201563 A31 8 @ [EREE 7 BRE A60
HRAKRIAEITTTIE °

BIFEERE

RIFEEREABRRBE LT ZEFLER
MR cHE LR HEZAFEZY -

BITEBRERE

REERABITEHEIRSBERETT
IBEFIRIE0.001% = 4.3% 2 8 (2015 F :
0.001% =4.8%) 72 =A Ak zal 28 2 &
HASRITTE AN o

BeMERRBEANRBERETESR - B
201543 A31H ASEE—HHPESH
T 2% A R 448,000,000 7T (48 & 1
#159,606,0007%5 ) 2 = A A BBz EHiF
R THEREEANSITEEE  BXE
EN2EXETRBILZABERFF EH
28%ZE4.8% KBS BERNETEBEZE
BAY BRTENEALEEREEANZ
MIaER - AETEHEWE AEEEEA
NEBREEE - AT ENEREMBREA
BUERBREDEENR2015E3 A31 B 2[R
THEHNES IR - 12016463 A31 BT &
EEER -
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mEMBEHRRMT )

For the year ended 31 March 2016
BZE2016 3 A 31 HILFE

24. BANK BALANCES AND CASH (continueq)

The Group’s bank balances and cash that are denominated in
currencies other than the functional currencies of the relevant
group entities are set out below:

24, RITHEBR KRB € %)

ARBENRREBEERY

BIASN B

B RITHEBR IR EHIMT

2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$°000

FET FET

HKD BT 85 28
RMB AR 12 29,397
uUsD e 83,547 11,301

25. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

The aged analysis of trade payables, based on the invoice

25.E5 R EMEMRTKE

REZZEH  EHRMNFEARBSHRZ

date, at the end of the reporting period is as follows: REDITANT
2016 2015
HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET
Trade payables: B2 RENIE
0 — 60 days 0-60H 3,766 2,805
61 — 90 days 61 -90H 206 -
Over 90 days #1890 H 130 145
4,102 2,950
Construction costs payable ENpEE JEN 12 3,933
Rental deposits received and rental B eke REKHES
received in advance 10,681 8,211
Accruals TEIRE R 5,832 5,374
Other taxes payable HAth eI HE 18 4,639 4,822
Other payables H At & 14 5778 1,842 982
27,108 26,272

The average credit period on purchases of goods is 30 days.
The Group’s trade and other payables that are denominated

in currency other than the functional currencies of the relevant
group entities are set out below:

usb eI

BEZVHRESE/I0A -

AEBNEBRERERNEEB NI ER

NEZESREMENTERAT :

2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET T/

- 19

it
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For the year ended 31 March 2016
BZE2016 3 A 31 HILFE

26. SECURED BANK BORROWINGS

Carrying amount repayable: FEBAEFIE 2 ARE(E
— within one year - —FA
— between one to two years - —EMF
— between two to five years - MERF
— after five years — BARF

Less: Amount due within one year shown i - RAEEE IETZ £330
28

under current liabilities

Amount due after one year R—FREH 88

/= Ji
26. 5K HBITEE

2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
4,993 146,140
5,131 7,353
16,255 23,295
73,708 117,137
100,087 293,925
(4,993) (146,140)
95,094 147,785

At 31 March 2016, the Group’s secured bank borrowings
carried interest at HIBOR plus 2.5%, with effective interest
ranging from 2.73% to 2.75% per annum (2015: 2.66%
to 2.73% per annum), and are repayable by 240 monthly
instalments. The loans are secured by investment properties
of the Group with an aggregate carrying amount of
approximately HK$208,196,000 (2015: HK$377,000,000) and
properties held for development for sale of the Group with
carrying amount of nil (2015: HK$336,027,000). The proceeds
were used for acquisition of investment properties.

All bank borrowings are denominated in HKD, functional

currencies of the relevant group entities, at the end of the
reporting period.
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R2016 53 A31 0 "&EBz GHEMERT
EEBRRABARTRAEREM25% 2
FFE EEBRFFNEH2.73% £2.75%
(20154 : EHE266%Z2.73%) * K5
0B AME - ERUAEEZREME
BR H {5 A& £ 49208,196,000% 7T (2015 £ :
377,000,000 7t ) R FEHEERMEER
E{E (20154 : 336,027,000 7T ) {E A K
o FEAERBRENEZBE -
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For the year ended 31 March 2016
BZE2016 3 A 31 HILFE

27. CONVERTIBLE NOTES CONTAINING
LIABILITY AND EQUITY COMPONENTS

(@)

On 27 March 2014, the Company issued 2% convertible
note due 2019 at an aggregate principal amount of
HK$100,000,000 to Easyknit International (hereinafter
referred to as “2014 Convertible Note”).

The 2014 Convertible Note is denominated in HKD. The
note entitles the holder to convert it into ordinary shares
of the Company at any time between the date of issue
of the 2014 Convertible Note on 27 March 2014 and its
settlement date on 27 March 2019 at a conversion price
of HK$0.68 per conversion share (subject to anti-dilutive
adjustments). On 3 April 2014 and 29 August 2014, the
conversion rights attaching to the 2014 Convertible Note
have been partially exercised for HK$20,000,000 and
HK$60,000,000 respectively, and a total of 122,869,707
conversion shares were issued upon conversion.
Pursuant to the adjustment provisions in the terms and
conditions of the 2014 Convertible Note, (i) adjustment
has been made to the conversion price of the 2014
Convertible Note from HK$0.68 per share to HK$0.66 per
share with effect from 18 June 2014 as a result of the
completion of the placing of 65,200,000 placing shares
on 18 June 2014; (ii) further adjustment has been made
to the conversion price of the 2014 Convertible Note from
HK$0.66 per share to HK$0.642 per share with effect
from 22 August 2014 as a result of the completion of the
placing of 78,000,000 placing shares on 22 August 2014;
(iii) further adjustment has been made to the conversion
price of the 2014 Convertible Note from HK$0.642
per share to HK$2.498 per share with effect from 25
October 2014 as a result of capital reorganisation
and rights issue; and (iv) further adjustment has been
made to the conversion price of the 2014 Convertible
Note from HK$2.498 per share to HK$10.65 per share
with effect from 31 March 2015 as a result of capital
reorganisation and rights issue; (v) adjustment has been
made to the conversion price of the 2014 Convertible
Note from HK$10.65 per share to HK$22.72 per share
with effect from 14 October 2015 as a result of capital
reorganisation and rights issue. Assuming full conversion
of the convertible note at a conversion price of HK$22.72
at the date of issue of the 2014 Convertible Note, the
2014 Convertible Note will be convertible into 880,281
new ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each in the share capital
of the Company.

27. TRRFERAE AWM
]

(a)

MN2014E3 A27H » KRRIUKRS &
%100,000,000 % Jt % 17 7 2019 4 £
Bz 2% AR EE FkEBE(AT
BAM2014FRBREE]) -

2014 FR[ B EZEE ABTIIE - ZiE
BREAZEUNERABK7D0.685 T
ZRBEBE(FERBEARKE) »©
201443 B 27 HZ 2014 Fr[#2 B2k
BFTHZ2019F3 27 HZ £ E A H
B2 EERE RBRZEBRZEAQG2E
AR - W201454 A3H k2014
F8H29H + % 5l £20,000,000% 7T
160,000,000 7% 7T K A5 72 2014 & A 2
BREEZHBBRECEDHITE LB
f¥ 48 20122,869,707 % 5 2 Ik p B &
R RIFE2014F AR EHE RN Z 8
Bl BB & I A 2 TR AKX ¢ (i)2014 F 1]
BREE 2 RBEER2014F6 A 18
B 52 A Fi % 65,200,000 A% BE & A& 15
H201446 418 HE A EK0.685 T
AEZER0.66/8 7T ; (ii)2014 F 7] &
CZE 7 R BEN2014F8 A 22 H
52 BX Bt 3% 78,000,000 IR R &€ BX 15+
201458 A22 Hi A &A% 0.66/8 i
—HABREEFR0.6428 7T ¢ (iii)2014
FaRBREE 7 A BREERBRAEEAR
A% - H2014F10 258 £ B &R
0.6428 Tt — A B EER2.498%
T R (iv)2014 FRIRKREE 2 HIRE
ERBRANEHERMER - B2015F3 A
S1HHEHFM2498B THE —FAX
= F1%10.65/8 7T 5 (v)2014 F A] #2 %
SRZABEENBAERRHERK - A
201510 A14 BB AFN%10.65F T
E—FHABREEI22.728B T  RR
BRo2 2B L RIRE REERET
H2H #2014 F /2R ZE1 - 2014
FaRRERE ABRARARBRER
{80.01/8 7T 2 880,281 % #1 & @ f% i%
e

I ERAT 2015/16 FiR
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For the year ended 31 March 2016
BZE2016 3 A 31 HILFE

27. CONVERTIBLE NOTES CONTAINING
LIABILITY AND EQUITY COMPONENTS

(continued)

(@)

(continued)

The conversion shares will be allotted and issued upon
exercise of the conversion rights. If the 2014 Convertible
Note is not converted during the conversion period up
to the maturity date, it will be redeemed on the maturity
date at par with outstanding accrued interest. Interest of
2% per annum will be paid semi-annually in arrears up
until the settlement date.

The convertible notes contain two components, liability
and equity elements. The equity component is presented
in equity heading “convertible note equity reserve”. The
effective interest rate of the liability component of the
2014 Convertible Note is 12.72% per annum at the date
of initial recognition.

On 12 June 2015, the Company issued 2% convertible
note due 2017 at an aggregate principal amount of
HK$86,000,000 to Madian Star Limited, an independent
third party (hereinafter referred to as “2015 Convertible
Note”).
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27. TRREHE LB ERES

LN /=
JI (%)

(%)

TR LR ER S S R % R BT AR
e 2014 AR RIE RN L BRI 2
FHMBARE I - RIBREIENUR
HEER E AN Z BN SER -
FRE2% 2 F B RIEHF AT A
B HEHEEAARL-

MR EESSmEND - aERE
mD o KD I AT R R
HEEE 2R o 2014 F R REEE
BERDNNIEERR 2 BERRAFR
REA2.72% °

B2015F6 A12H * KRR A K&
48 %.86,000,000% Jt % 17 122017 &
HE 2% AR EBTRELE=FR
Madian Star Limited (VA T~ 4[2015
FAMBERE]) °



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

Yt B

For the year ended 31 March 2016
BZE2016 3 A 31 HILFE

27. CONVERTIBLE NOTES CONTAINING
LIABILITY AND EQUITY COMPONENTS

(continued)

(b)

(continued)

The 2015 Convertible Note is denominated in HKD. The
note entitles the holder to convert it into ordinary shares
of the Company at any time between the date of issue
of the 2015 Convertible Note on 12 June 2015 and its
settlement date on 12 June 2017 at a conversion price
of HK$0.85 per conversion share (subject to anti-dilutive
adjustments). The holder may redeem the convertible
note, at any time three months after the grant date, at
100% of the principal amount outstanding together with
all interest accrued thereon up to and including the date
of redemption. The Company may redeem the convertible
note on any business day prior to the maturity date at
100% of the principal amount outstanding together with
all interest accrued thereon up to and including the date
of redemption. Pursuant to the adjustment provisions in
the terms and conditions of the 2015 Convertible Note,
(i) adjustment has been made to the conversion price
of the 2015 Convertible Note from HK$0.85 per share
to HK$1.81 per share with effect from 14 October 2015
as a result of capital reorganisation and rights issue; (ii)
further adjustment was made to the conversion price
of the 2015 Convertible Note from HK$1.81 per share
to HK$0.33 per share with effect from 7 January 2016
and was approved by shareholders on 7 January 2016.
Assuming full conversion of the convertible note at a
conversion price of HK$0.33 at the date of issue of the
2015 Convertible Note, the 2015 Convertible Note will
be convertible into 260,606,060 new ordinary shares of
HK$0.01 each in the share capital of the Company.

The conversion shares will be allotted and issued upon
exercise of the conversion rights. If the 2015 Convertible
Note is not converted during the conversion period up
to the maturity date, it will be redeemed on the maturity
date at par with outstanding accrued interest. Interest of
2% per annum will be paid on the settlement date.

The convertible notes contain liability, equity, holder and
issuer early redemption options. As the early redemption
options are closely related to the host contract, they
are not treated as separate derivatives. The equity
component is presented in equity heading “convertible
note equity reserve”. The effective interest rate of the
liability component of the 2015 Convertible Note is
12.13% per annum, respectively at the date of initial
recognition.

27, TRRERDE AWM

N )
JJ (78

(%)

2015 F A BB EBANBTLIE - B
%EA;ﬁuih%%hQO%%ﬁ
ZREBE(EERWEARKE)

2m5¢6ﬂ12522m5¢7%hm
BITHZE2017F6 128 2 &E A H
B2 EAERE RREBERQRZE
BB D - FEATER FTEEBEB =
B2 EARBA - LA100% KEEARE
CHERNEELBREN AR ZEMNR
SFIB T UABE O A i 45 o AN A A
FEEHBRER=BHA - 2A100%
RAEEA e REREERBREERA
7 ENRMF S FAERABRRE
o BIE2015F A R EH R 2R Al

BEIGHIN 2 BEER UmwiTﬁ
BREZ A ABENBRAEARR R

m2m5¢1oﬁ14aifﬂth0ﬁ5%
THEZFA.818 T ¢ (i)2015F 7]
BREEHBEEARRER20164F
17884 H2016F1A7HEH
BR1.81 BT —FTHEEZE0.33
BT RRAER0IZB L Z KB
B R2015F AR EREITHZMA
Rl =i - 2015 F A AR Z 18
ARMARAGRBREREN BT
2 260,606,060 [ 37 178 1% Bk 7

AT R S @ Bo 3k R 1T S R
o (2015 F AT AR FE R KRB
EIHBELRA AL AIBREHA
NEEBEERRRXNZEFREME
F@oi%%Z%Zﬂ%%Eﬁ”Eﬁ
fif o

THREREEESEE  #x BEAR
BITAREBELE - AR IREEDER
TRANEREME  WNMEBLITET
EF@ R DHR ARk EEE
WiEE | 2R - 2015 F R EE v
,\LEX E/\\%)]ﬁAﬁEWb\H?IZ,\ /\f”$/§l\:—\;‘1¢
S8R A512.13% °
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BZE2016F3 531 HLLFE
27. CONVERTIBLE NOTES CONTAINING 27. R EEESAERER
LIABILITY AND EQUITY COMPONENTS 7
(continued)
The movement of the liability component of both the 2014 and 2014 F 22015 2 MEA AT MR 2R & B
2015 Convertible Note is set out below: DZEEHHMT
HK$’000
FE7T
Carrying amount at 1 April 2014 R2014F4 A1 B Z2RHEE 54,047
Conversion during the year RER K (43,401)
Accretion of interest FEZBAEE 1,430
Interest paid FERAZ (923)
Carrying amount at 31 March 2015 R201543 A31 B ZKHEE 11,153
Issue of 2015 Convertible Note during the year FRE1T2015 FAl AR ZE 67,661
Transfer to equity component on change of RERE HIAERER TSN D
conversion price 1,766
Accretion of interest Bz BREE 8,290
Interest paid BERFE (401)
Interest payable FERTH & (1,385)
Carrying amount at 31 March 2016 R 201643 A31 B ZKHEE 87,084
Less: Amount due within one year shown under & - BRARBEE, —EREEHLHE
current liabilities (74,705)
Amount due after one year shown under non- BTIRFERBEEL —FRINEE
current liabilities 12,379
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For the year ended 31 March 2016

BE2016 43631 AILFE
28. DEFERRED TAXATION 28. R IE
The followings are the major deferred tax liabilities recognised REARBEFEERRRBEEZRLERIE
and movements thereon during the current and prior years: BEUREZEHNOT
Revaluation of Convertible
properties notes Total
MEER ARREE RG]
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FETT T
At 1 April 2014 20144 A1 8 (12,668) (7,586) (20,254)
Release upon issue of BT RREBRRRR
convertible note — 6,039 6,039
Charge to profit or loss for the —RAFEZEEFHK
year (3,044) (88) (4,032)
Exchange adjustments PE i 5% (30) - (30)
At 31 March 2015 7201543 318 (16,642) (1,635) (18,277)
Recognition upon issue of BT R EREER
convertible note — (3,026) (3,026)
Recognition upon change REE AR R R H IR E
of conversion price of R e R
convertible note — 291 291
(Charge) credit to profit or loss RAFERZEF (M%)
for the year A (7,082) 1,073 (6,009)
Exchange adjustments EH AR 789 - 789
At 31 March 2016 #2016 43 318 (22,935) (3,297) (26,232)

M20164F3A31H A&EBE A K& B
B & 1B #186,457,000/8 (20154 :
94,304,000/ 7T) + A AYEH SR AORF ©
BT IEEE4166,518,00078 T (2015
73,802,000 4 T ) A] &R B 4548 - HRT 1A
B 1R 1 2016 & £ 2020 4 (2015 & : 2015
FE2019F) 2 H - AR KREETEF AR & A
WA IR B SRR IA B EEREME
HIRERIBEE ©

At 31 March 2016, the Group has unused tax losses of
approximately HK$186,457,000 (2015: HK$94,304,000)
available for offset against future profits. The Hong Kong
tax losses of approximately HK$166,518,000 (2015:
HK$73,802,000) can be carried forward indefinitely and the
remaining tax losses will expire from 2016 to 2020 (2015:
2015 to 2019). No deferred tax asset has been recognised
in respect of the unrecognised tax losses due to the
unpredictability of future profit streams.
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it



Notes to the Consolidated

mEMBHRRMT =)

For the year ended 31 March 2016
BZE2016 3 A 31 HILFE

29. SHARE CAPITAL

Authorised:
At 1 April 2014
Consolidation of shares

Reduction of share capital
Increase in consolidated shares
Consolidation of shares
Reduction of share capital
Increase in consolidated shares
At 31 March 2015
Consolidation of shares

Reduction of share capital

Increase in consolidated shares

At 31 March 2016

EE

201454 A1H

B4 bt

RARIR

HMAaptRmEm

Bin & b

B

Ui

R2015%€3 A31H

cth & b

B

CR R

720163 A 318

Financial Statements (continued)

29. IR AR (#)
Nominal
value per Number

Notes share of shares Amount
i3 SREE REAHE am
HK$ HK$’000

BT FAT

0.01  20,000,000,000 200,000

(e) (18,000,000,000) -
0.10 2,000,000,000 200,000

(e) - (180,000)
0.01 2,000,000,000 20,000

() 0.01  18,000,000,000 180,000
0.01  20,000,000,000 200,000

(9 (19,000,000,000) =
0.20 1,000,000,000 200,000

(©) - (190,000)
0.01 1,000,000,000 10,000

() 0.01  19,000,000,000 190,000
0.01  20,000,000,000 200,000

0] (18,000,000,000) -
0.10 2,000,000,000 200,000

0] - (180,000)
0.01 2,000,000,000 20,000

(i) 0.01  18,000,000,000 180,000
0.01  20,000,000,000 200,000
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For the year ended 31 March 2016

BZ2016 3831 HIEFE
29. SHARE CAPITAL (continued) 29. A& #)
Nominal
value per Number
Notes share of shares Amount
ki3 SRAE RAEE e
HK$ HK$’000
BT FHET
Issued and fully paid: ERTRME

At 1 April 2014 R201454 18 296,595,900 2,966
Conversion of convertible note L IARAIRRZE (@) 0.01 29,411,764 294
Issue of new shares T BT (b) 0.01 65,200,000 652
Issue of new shares TR ET () 0.01 78,000,000 780
Conversion of convertible note ~ HARAKRERE (d) 0.01 93,457,943 935
562,665,607 5,627

Consolidation of shares and BRI E bF R AR A H A
reduction of share capital (e) (506,399,048) (5,064)
0.01 56,266,559 563
Rights issue of shares AR AR5 (f) 0.01 450,132,472 4,501
506,399,031 5,064

Consolidation of shares and R 1A b KRR AH A
reduction of share capital (9) (481,079,080) (4,811)
At 31 March 2015 7201543 A 318 0.01 25,319,951 253
Rights issue of shares HEAR AR5 (h) 0.01 506,399,020 5,064
531,718,971 5,317

Consolidation of shares and R1DE b R AR A H A
reduction of share capital (i) 0.01 (478,547,074) (4,785)
53,171,897 532
Rights issue of shares AR AR (D () 0.01 1,063,437,940 10,634
At 31 March 2016 20163 A31H 1,116,609,837 11,166

it
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For the year ended 31 March 2016
BZE2016 3 A 31 HILFE

29. SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

(@)

On 3 April 2014, convertible note with a principal amount
of HK$20,000,000 were converted in shares of HK$0.01
each in the Company at the conversion price of HK$0.68
per share. Accordingly, a total of 29,411,764 ordinary
shares of HK$0.01 each were allotted and issued by
conversion of the convertible note.

On 18 June 2014, the Company allotted 65,200,000
ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each by placing to six
placees at a placing price of HK$0.35 per share. The
Company raised HK$22,500,000 (net of expenses)
with the intention at the time of placing to be used
for the general working capital of the Group. The new
placing shares were issued pursuant to the general
mandate granted to the directors by a resolution of the
shareholders of the Company passed at the special
general meeting held on 20 May 2014.

On 22 August 2014, the Company allotted 78,000,000
ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each by placing to six
placees at a placing price of HK$0.30 per share. The
Company raised HK$23,100,000 (net of expenses)
with the intention at the time of placing to be used
for the general working capital of the Group. The new
placing shares were issued pursuant to the general
mandate granted to the directors by a resolution of the
shareholders of the Company passed at the special
general meeting held on 7 August 2014.

On 29 August 2014, convertible note with a principal
amount of HK$60,000,000 were converted in shares of
HK$0.01 each in the Company at the conversion price of
HK$0.642 per share. Accordingly, a total of 93,457,943
ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each were allotted and
issued by conversion of the convertible note.

Eminence Enterprise Limited 2015/16 Annual Report

29. R A&

(a)

R/

N2014F4/838 &KX & & #H
20,000,000 T 2 AT 2 fk 15 LA B ik
0.68 BT HIMEBEHMARNNRER
0.01 B2l - Bt - BRNBRAR
BREE - &HEE RE1729,411,764
BREH%0.01 8Tz ERBD -

7201456 A18H * AQ A AFKRE
% 8 0.358 it & 65,200,000 iz & I%
0.01 Bz EBBIMD FARBEBA °
AR B)1%15 22,500,000 7 7T (FBR B 52
%) ERITEERAEE Z —KREE
e HTEERMDIIEZ2014F5 A 20
BEAIBEAS EBBZRERRGT
EEZMIRERT

R2014468 A22H » AR A AFKRE
#{80.307% o i & 78,000,000 % & i%
0.01 8Lz MW FRBAEA ©
ARA 715 23,100,000 75 7T (2 K% F
X)) BRITEEAAEE, —MREE
Bd o SR 1% 2014F8 A7 H
FRIREAE FRBIBREAR L TE
B2 MIEEET

201448 A 29 H » A4 %860,000,000
VB TL 2 AR E 5 A E X 0.642 8 T 2
RBERXBAEADBEFR.01BTL
Bt o Eilt - BREBRABREREAH
fid & K2 %17 93,457,943 [% F X 0.01 8
T2 TR °



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

SA B EREMEE )

For the year ended 31 March 2016
BZE2016 3 A 31 HILFE

29. SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

(e

The Company underwent a capital reorganisation which
involved, among others, consolidation of issued and
unissued shares, reduction of nominal value of paid up
capital of consolidated shares, reduction of nominal value
of all shares in the authorised share capital and increase
of the authorised share capital. The capital reorganisation
became effective on 21 October 2014, as a result of
which (i) every ten issued and unissued then existing
shares of HK$0.01 each were consolidated into one
consolidated share of HK$0.10 each; (ii) par value per
share of the Company’s share capital was reduced from
HK$0.10 to HK$0.01; (iii) increase of the authorised share
capital of the Company from HK$20,000,000 divided
into 2,000,000,000 shares of par value of HK$0.01 each
to HK$200,000,000 divided into 20,000,000,000 shares
of par value of HK$0.01 each; and (iv) issued and fully
paid share capital was changed from HK$5,627,000
comprising 562,665,607 shares of HK$0.01 each to
HK$563,000 comprising 56,266,559 shares of HK$0.01
each.

On 14 November 2014, the Company allotted
450,132,472 rights shares of HK$0.01 each at a
subscription price of HK$0.70 per rights share on the
basis of eight rights shares for every one then existing
ordinary share held. The Company raised approximately
HK$313,225,000 (net of expenses) with the intention
at the time of rights issue to finance potential property
investments.

The Company underwent a capital reorganisation which
involved, among others, consolidation of issued and
unissued shares, reduction of nominal value of paid up
capital of consolidated shares, reduction of nominal value
of all shares in the authorised share capital and increase
of the authorised share capital. The capital reorganisation
became effective on 25 March 2015, as a result of
which (i) every twenty issued and unissued then existing
shares of HK$0.01 each were consolidated into one
consolidated share of HK$0.20 each; (ii) par value per
share of the Company’s share capital was reduced from
HK$0.20 to HK$0.01; (iii) increase of the authorised share
capital of the Company from HK$10,000,000 divided
into 1,000,000,000 shares of par value of HK$0.01 each
to HK$200,000,000 divided into 20,000,000,000 shares
of par value of HK$0.01 each; and (iv) issued and fully
paid share capital was changed from HK$5,064,000
comprising 506,399,031 shares of HK$0.01 each to
HK$253,000 comprising 25,319,951 shares of HK$0.01
each.

(e)

29. RA& (#)

AABDETRAZH ESREE
BRIRRBETRMDEN  BERAE
ZAEHBRMEEZERE EEREZ
FrE R mEEZER R E AT &
ANo B K E 4 R2014F10821H
EW G BROSTRERETRREND
BROVIEBTLERRERGEHA
— & & i%0.1058 T 2 & 6 I 15 ; (i)
HIRSRARARBKRANZEMEHOIO0
¥ 7T R £0.015 7T (i) A& 2 A
Z & T B& 7K }120,000,0008 7T D A
2,000,000,000 i & f% M 1E0.01%5 T
2 B% {7 1% 50 = 200,000,000 j& 7T 2 A
20,000,000,000 % & % ® {E£0.018
TG R(VEZETREREK AR
5,627,000% 7t £ & 562,665,607 X &
[%0.018 7T 2 & 17 & ¥ £ 563,000 %8
JL 8 5 56,266,559 % & % 0.01 %8 T 2
Bt

R2014E11 B148 » KR GRS
F—RERRE LT ERROER N\
Mt 2 % - & RERE%0.70
BILZREEE - BL# 450,132,472 &
B%0.01 8 T 2 AR D - KARER
#)313,225,000 8 T (kA< %) « #
WREFTEERBEENEREZRE -

RRARBETKRAER  EFS KR
BRIRRBEITRNDAEN  BEBRAE
ZAMBRNEEZER EEREZ
FTE R mEE 2 ER & E A E R
Ko BRAREHR2015F3 8250 4+
M ERONEBE_TREETRARES
SROVNBTERRERDEHA
— & & 1% 0.20% T 2 & BB 5 s (i)
B R = B AR R Bk AN 2 E{E B 0.20
B 7T Hl R E£0.018 T (i) A 2 Al
2 % T Bk 7 B10,000,0008 7T 5 A
1,000,000,000 /% & % ™ {50.015 7T
2 % {7 1% 0 = 200,000,000 T 5 A
20,000,000,000 f% & A% M 20.017%5
TG R(v)B %7 R R RAH
5,064,000 7t £ & 506,399,031 ik &
}%0.018 T 2 & 17 & & = 253,000 %
L& 25,319,951 R F % 0.01 BT 2
B o
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29. SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

(h)

On 22 April 2015, the Company allotted 506,399,020
rights shares of HK$0.01 each at a subscription price of
HK$0.65 per rights share on the basis of twenty rights
shares for every one then existing ordinary share held.
The Company raised approximately HK$327,209,000 (net
of expenses) with the intention at the time of rights issue
to finance potential property investments and for general
corporate purposes.

The Company underwent a capital reorganisation which
involved, among others, consolidation of issued and
unissued shares, reduction of nominal value of paid up
capital of consolidated shares, reduction of nominal value
of all shares in the authorised share capital and increased
of the authorised share capital. The capital reorganisation
became effective on 8 October 2015, as a result of
which (i) every ten issued and unissued then existing
shares of HK$0.01 each were consolidated into one
consolidated share of HK$0.10 each, (ii) par value per
share of the Company’s share capital was reduced from
HK$0.10 to HK$0.01; (iii) the authorised share capital of
the Company be reduced by reducing the par value of
all consolidated shares in the authorised share capital
of the Company from HK$0.10 each to HK$0.01 each,
resulting in the reduction of the authorised share capital
of the Company from HK$200,000,000 divided into
2,000,000,000 consolidated shares to HK$20,000,000
divided into 2,000,000,000 ordinary shares of par value
HK$0.01 each; (iv) the authorised share capital of the
Company be increased from HK$20,000,000 divided
into 2,000,000,000 adjusted shares to HK$200,000,000
divided into 20,000,000,000 adjusted shares; and (v)
issued and fully paid share capital was changed from
HK$5,317,000 comprising 531,718,971 shares of HK$0.01
each to HK$532,000 comprising 53,171,897 shares of
HK$0.01 each.

On 3 November 2015, The Company allotted
1,063,437,940 right shares of HK$0.01 each at a
subscription price of HK$0.48 per rights share on the
basis of twenty rights share for every one then existing
ordinary share held. The Company raised approximately
HK$507,429,000 (net of expenses) with the intention at
the time of rights issue to purchase of the sale shares
and sale loan of the properties group, for the repayment
of bank loans, to finance potential property investments,
to finance listed securities investments and loan financing
and as general working capital.
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29. R A&

(h)

R/

M2015F4 A22H  ARRKEEHA
—RERRE LRARROER =+
R RS0 2 B - DA B 4t A A 49 0.65
BT REEE © B3 506,399,020 K &
B 0.01 B T 2 R - ARRIES
#)327,209,000 8 T (kAT E) - #
REFTEERBEMERE 2B E R IE
B—ROERR -

ARBDETRASZHE  EFSREEE
BUIRRBEITRMHEH BRBAZE
B EEZHIR  EEREZ AR
MHEEZEERIEIEERAE - RAE
HAMR2015F10 A8 H AN - B ()&
TREEITEARETEROOIATE
BRAERGOEHE—RER010E T
ZABRMD (i) BURE R AR AR A
ZHERO010ETAIFE0.01E T
(i) RRARZEERARNZ 1B E R
2 EERER0.10E TEIRE TR
0.01 BT AHIB AR R 2 & E A
S| BN R F] 2 % TE B AN B 200,000,000
¥ 7T 9 42,000,000,000 % & #f AR {5
Hl 35 420,000,000 7T 5 & F IR EE
0.013% 7£.2,000,000,000 % & 3@ % A%
17 (iv) A" 2 8] 2 7% TE # 48 B5 20,000,000
% 7T 9 /2,000,000,000 3% A% 1
# 3% 4 % 200,000,000 T D A
20,000,000,000 f% & D A% & (v)E
BT R B RIRANE 5,317,000/ TS
531,718,971 &M% 0.01 & T2 P fn &
% %532,000/%8 T © & 53,171,897 %
H%0.01 BTzl -

MN2015%E11 A3R AR RIKLEESR
—RERIRE L BRI ER =+ E®
Rt 2 B2 - LA R AR A% 19 0.48
B IT 2 RER{E » Bl 1,063,437,940 %
BRR0.01 BT 2 BB G - AR AE
5#1507,429,000 78 T (HIBRFX &)
HEREITEREBADEEBHER D
LIHEER  BEEBTER  BEDE
REZBE LHEFBRERERRE
REAR—MEEES -
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30. SHARE OPTION SCHEME 30. B T2

The 2012 Share Option Scheme

On 29 June 2012, a new share option scheme (the “2012
Share Option Scheme”) was approved by the shareholders
of the Company. Under the terms of the 2012 Share Option
Scheme, the board of directors of the Company may, at its
absolute discretion, offer options to any full-time employee,
director or consultant of any member of the Group (including
associated companies) to subscribe for shares in the
Company subject to the terms and conditions stipulated
therein. The 2012 Share Option Scheme is valid during
the period of ten years commencing 29 June 2012, unless
otherwise cancelled or amended.

The purposes of the 2012 Share Option Scheme are to
encourage eligible participants to work towards enhancing
the value of the Company and its shares for the benefit of the
Company and its shareholders as a whole.

The maximum number of shares which may be issued under
the 2012 Share Option Scheme must not (when aggregate
with any shares to be issued under any other share option
schemes of the Company) exceed 10% of the shares in issue
at the date of adoption of the 2012 Share Option Scheme.

The maximum number of shares issuable upon the exercise
of the share options granted to each eligible participant of
the 2012 Share Option Scheme within any 12-month period,
is limited to 1% of the shares of the Company in issue.
Any further grant of share options in excess of this limit is
subject to shareholders’ approval in a general meeting of the
Company with such grantee and his associate(s) abstaining
from voting.

The exercise period of the share options under 2012 Share
Option Scheme is determined by the board of directors of
the Company and shall end on a date which is not later than
ten years from the date of grant of the options. At the time
of grant of the share options, the Company must (a) specify
the minimum period(s), if any, for which a share option must
be held before it can be exercised in whole or in part, and
(b) specify the minimum performance target(s), if any, which
must be achieved before the share options can be exercised
in whole or in past. The amount payable on acceptance of an
offer for grant of share options is HK$1.

2012 B RRETE

120126 A29H © AR AR R E—IE
B EEI([2012 B A AERT L ) - RIE
2012 MR IERTEI 2 6 - ARRIEZ AR
HEHBERE REZTEMBTEZERE
BKERAEETMAKE AR (BEHEQR)
ZEMZBES  EZEMKELTRBEAR
NRARG 2 B - 2012 BB R E T 2% 3E
AE A A EEE B © BRIR 2012466 A
29 HBET 10 FHMA—E A °

2012 BB B E AR TR ERBEEY
NRBARRARERN 2 BEAFEAAT
REBRZ FlE -

RiF2012BRE B AT REHTT 2R RD
Y B NG (BEBBEARD B 2 M H AR
8 T RIT 2 EMBRHD &M E) BERNRMR
2012 BT BIE A 22 #TBRD 2 10% °

REMA12ME A BER - 220128 K&
ZEABRBBETREMER T 2 BRE
B BTETZESBROHE - UARFE
BOBRNDZ1%BR - £—FRHBBUR
BBRE AGRRRARABRRAS £
BOETAIEE - MAKAREBE AER

RRE -

RiZ2012 B MRGTE c BRETEHAR
NREFQRE  BATERRLBERER
REFT10FZ AER - RIEHBRER - K
RAIHE () ERBIREE XA ITEZ A
RACREHR(ME) k(o) EHELRER
HAMOITEZ AL BT Z RERBRER
(I%E) - EARHBREZBHNAM
AT
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30. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continueq)

31.

The 2012 Share Option Scheme (continued)

The exercise price in respect of any particular option of the
2012 Share Option Scheme may be determined by the board
of directors of the Company in its absolute discretion and
notified to each offeree but may not be less than the highest
of (i) the closing price of the Company’s shares on the Stock
Exchange as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations
sheets on the date of offer, which must be a business day;
(ii) the average closing price of the Company’s shares on
the Stock Exchange as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily
quotations sheets for the five business days immediately
preceding the date of offer; and (iii) the nominal value of the
Company’s shares on the date of offer.

No share option was granted under the 2012 Share Option
Scheme or exercised during both years.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

At the end of the reporting period, the following assets of
the Group were pledged to a bank to secure credit facilities
granted to the Group:

REME
BELREERME

Investment properties
Properties held for development for sale

30. B AERTE2)

31.

2012 R AEEEI(Z)

ARNRIEZ SR IREBHEBE - B 2012
BREAE IS EEREZTER X
NEEZBOA  EEBITEERELR()
NELBH(NELELER ) RBERMZEAR
WERIIAR R RD R ET 2 WH{E
(NBEZHHYMAEEER - REQHZ
FHHRERMIAR ARG RE R ZFH
WHE: REG)ARARKRORELHBHZ
HEURSEAE) -

R E S E A ERE2012BRE 2K
BRI R D RITEE -

EEHRA

RMERKR  ARBERT-HERTERY
FTAKEREEERZEEDNT -

2016 2015
HK$°000 HK$°000
FET T/ET
208,196 377,000
- 336,027
208,196 713,027
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32. ACQUISITION OF ASSETS AND
LIABILITIES THROUGH ACQUISITION OF
SUBSIDIARIES

(@)

On 11 November 2015, the Group completed to acquire
100% equity interest in five subsidiaries, from Easyknit
International for a consideration of HK$240,000,000. The
principal assets of these subsidiaries are investment

32. (BB B 4 A

properties. The assets and liabilities acquired were as

R2015F 11 A11 B » REETKFIXEEH
BRUEARRHEBARZ100% E5 - B1
{E /240,000,000 T - ZEMB AR ZE
ZEERKRENE - WEEERBEBENT :

follows:
HK$’000
FET
Investment properties REMF 232,814
Trade and other receivables B2 R E M EKFRIA 186
Bank balances and cash RITHEBRRAS 8,651
Deposits received and accruals BliE S RIERFIE (1,459)
Tax payable e FiIE (192)
Net assets assumed BEAETRE 240,000
Net cash outflow on acquisition: WiE 2 IR E L FE
Consideration paid TRRE (240,000)
Cash and cash equivalents acquired WEReRERK S 8,651
Net off with issue of rights shares by the BN B B AT (R AR AR 10 55
Company 209,065
(22,284)

i
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i
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32. ACQUISITION OF ASSETS AND 32. BRI 2 Bl )
LIABILITIES THROUGH ACQUISITION OF
SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

(b) On 21 November 2014, the Group completed to acquire (b) M2014F11 A21 8 ' KNARTHKUKE
of 100% equity interest in a subsidiary from Easyknit k& Bz — KB AR 2 100% #
International for a consideration of HK$340,000,000. The @ ' # 1 {€ 5340,000,0008 7T ° %
principal assets of the subsidiary are properties held for MBARZzEBEEARBIELHERREY
development for sale. The assets and liabilities acquired XoWEEERBENAT :
were as follows:

HK$’000
FE7T
Properties held for development for sale RIELEZRERYE 332,758
Prepayments for acquisition of properties WERELEERME
held for development for sale Z IR 7,123
Deposits and prepayments e LB 75
Bank balances and cash RITEHREES 69
Accruals FERFIA (25)
Net assets assumed BEAETSE 340,000
Net cash outflow on acquisition: WiE < IR & FE
Consideration paid T RRE (340,000)
Cash and cash equivalents acquired WEReRERRS 69
(339,931)
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33. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS 33. REHIRH

The Group as lessee REBERAREA
2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Minimum lease payments recognised in FARERTRER
profit or loss during the year ZEERESAR 1,087 2,627
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had RIEER - REERATEHEE 2 A
commitments for future minimum lease payments under non- B LM O 2 KRR KER S [ 502 A IE
cancellable operating leases which fall due as follows: =
2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Within one year —&R 2,540 1,084
In the second to fifth year inclusive F_FEFRF(DEEEMRSE) 1,040 -
3,580 1,084
Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the IREFR e R EE Y ET R AT E S
Group for certain of its office premises. Leases are negotiated ERTES - M4 2 S A —E=ZME(2015
for lease terms ranging from one year to two years (2015: FE—fF)o
one year).
Under the leases entered into by the Group, the lease BEARETT 7 BY  BEaNSEEER
payments are fixed and no arrangements have been entered WL SRS [ Z 2k -

into for contingent rental payments.

Wi ¥ERAT 2015/16 FiR
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33. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS 3. REMARH =

(continued)

The Group as lessor FEBERABEA
2016 2015
HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET
Property rental income earned during the FARRZMERS
year WA 23,786 19,256
Less: Outgoings ;A e (727) (237)
Net rental income e WA FE 23,059 19,019
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had contracted RBEMER  AEFHEBLFT LU TRRE
with tenants for the following future minimum lease payments: R AR
2016 2015
HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET
Within one year —F R 27,278 16,861
In the second to fifth year inclusive E_EERF(BEEEMF) 45,561 29,835
Over five years HiRHF 9,981 9,627
82,820 56,323
Under the leases entered into by the Group, the lease TM%K%5132%36@;$ﬂ%@1¢%\j%iﬁ
payments are fixed and no arrangements have been entered ﬂﬁﬂiﬁ%*ﬁtﬁﬁﬂﬁm - RBENEZE
into for contingent rental payments. The properties held have BB HNAH—FELF(2015F ¢
committed tenants for terms of one year to seven years (2015: —FELF)-
one year to seven years).
34.CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 34. EXRAIE
2016 2015
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
Capital expenditure contracted for but not =& 4I{E 1 R 4R & B 7
provided in the consolidated financial BRPEBEIERRX
statements in respect of investment TR B3
properties 5,241 764
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35. RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES 35. RIKFERIGTE

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefits scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance. Under the MPF Scheme, the employees
are required to contribute 5% of their monthly salaries or up
to a maximum of HK$1,500 and they can choose to make
additional contributions. The employer’s monthly contributions
are calculated at 5% of the employee’s monthly salaries or up
to a maximum of HK$1,500 (the “mandatory contributions”).
The employees are entitled to 100% of the employer’s
mandatory contributions upon their retirement at the age of
65, death or total incapacity.

Employees of the subsidiaries in the PRC are members of
the state-sponsored pension scheme operated by the PRC
government. The subsidiaries are required to contribute a
certain percentage of their payroll to the pension scheme
to fund the benefits. The only obligation of the Group with
respect to the pension scheme is to make the required
contributions.

There were no forfeited contributions utilised to offset
employers’ contributions for the year. The employers’
contributions which have been dealt with in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
were as follows:

REBRBEEBRHM AL 2GR - &
VAREHFEHEATEL ERBR (%
BestaEll) - RBRELHET EBEEAR
BEAFSMR5% %% A1,5008 T
EEWAEEEHEIMER - BEE AHK
AREEZEBRHSEEISNIRE A
1,500/ ([l MEHTR]) - B B R 655K
KB AT R T2 RRTAENR  IFF
BERFIEE-KZ100% °

RPBZHBAR 2 EERFERMRLL
BREERASTEKE - HEBRRALRE
SRTAESLAERAEEIHER - AEEZ
BEEEARRASIEELAMRE B -

AERWRA RN BIEEHEE M
Ho BRGABREREMEEKERTRE
ZEEHFWOT

2016 2015
HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET
Employers’ contributions recognised in REZFHERZEEHR
profit or loss 387 439

At the end of the reporting period, there were no forfeited
contributions available to reduce the contributions payable in
the future years.

R#|EHR - WA ZWEK A BAERER
RERZBMERK -
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36. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at 31
March 2016 and 31 March 2015 are as follows:

Nominal value
of issued share

36. TENB AR ZFH1E

720163 A31 H&2015F3 A31H » &
REEZHBRAIZFBMOT

Proportion of
nominal value

Place of capital/paid-up of issued share
incorporation/ registered capital/paid-up
establishment capital/stated registered capital held
Name of subsidiary and operations capital by the Company
LNUNGIESZ ]
BRITRE/ BRITRA/
TMRL BREMBAE BREMBE
il PG B AR B BRHRAEE HEBEDHR
2016 2015
Directly held:
BERE
Land Bloom Holdings British Virgin Islands Ordinary US$1 100% 100%
Limited (“BVI”)/Hong Kong LRk 1ET
RHZRER AR EERAHE([HERER
#e1)/E%
Glory Link Investment Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 100% =
Limited 0 LERk1BT
RERERRAR
Cherry Sky Investments BVI/Hong Kong Ordinary US$1 100% -
Limited RERUESE/BE ERR1ET
Fanju Investments BVI/Hong Kong Ordinary US$1 100% -
Limited RBRLES /AR ERR1ET
RHRERRAR
Indirectly held:
BERE -
Chancemore Limited BVI/Hong Kong Ordinary US$1 100% 100%
RBRELHES/BA TRk ET
City China International Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 100% 100%
Limited BB LER1BT
WA B AR AR
Clever Wise Holdings BVI/Hong Kong Ordinary US$1 100% 100%
Limited RBRLHE /A% LaR1ET
ERERAR AR

Eminence Enterprise Limited 2015/16 Annual Report

Principal activity

FEXK

Property development

NEER

Investment in securities
BHRE

Loan financing
ERRE

Investment in securities

B

Property investment

NERE
Loan financing

ERRE

Property investment

ESIE
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36. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL

SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Place of
incorporation/
establishment

Name of subsidiary and operations

EMRI,/

WEARAR B REE

Indirectly held: (continued)
FERE - (&)

Easy Garment Hong Kong
International Limited ~ &&
KK B AR AR

Easyknit Worldwide Hong Kong
Company Limited E3

Gainever Corporation Hong Kong
Limited BE
KEEFRAT

Main Lucky Enterprises  Hong Kong
Limited BA

RAECEERAA

Top Channel Enterprises Hong Kong
Limited BR

BHERERRA

Total Expect Limited BVI/Hong Kong

KBRS/ BB

Grow Well Profits BVI/Singapore
Limited RERLES,/ K

Janson Properties Hong Kong
Limited BA

RBEEXBRAA

Nominal value
of issued share
capital/paid-up

registered
capital/stated
capital

BRORE/
BREMBRE,
BERRAEE

Ordinary HK$1
a1 AT

Ordinary HK$2
LRk 2 AT
Ordinary HK$2

BRK2ET

Ordinary HK$1
LEk1BT

Ordinary HK$1
LER1ET

Ordinary US$1
LTAERAIET

Ordinary US$1
E@R1ET

Ordinary HK$2
LTmR2ET

36. TEMBA A 2B #)

Proportion of
nominal value
of issued share
capital/paid-up
registered capital held
by the Company
EUNCTES 2
BRIRE/
BREMBE
HERSYL

2016 2015

100% 100%

100% 100%

100% 100%

100% 100%

100% 100%

100% 100%

100% -
(note)
(Hiit)

100% -
(note)
(Hiit)

it

Principal activity

FEXK

Trading of garments
KKEE

Trading of garments
MKEE
Investment in securities

EHRE

Property investment

MERE

Property investment

NERE
Property development

NEER

Property investment

NERE

Property investment

NERE
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36. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL

SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Place of
incorporation/
establishment

Name of subsidiary and operations

ML,
HEDE L B RE&
Indirectly held: (continued)
FIERE - (&)
Golden Top Properties  Hong Kong

Limited 5
SEEXERAH

Goldchamp International Hong Kong

Limited i
S BIE AR AR
XEBX(HINER PRC

)
(ﬁﬁﬂd‘l‘\fﬁf%J)(Easykmt B
Enterprises (Huzhou)

Co., Ltd.) (“Enterprises
Huzhou”)*

14 December 2054.

Nominal value
of issued share
capital/paid-up

registered
capital/stated
capital

BRORE/
HREMBRE,
BRRAEE

Ordinary HK$2
TR 2 BT

Ordinary HK$2
LRR2ET

Registered
US$25,544,206
A AR AR
25,544,206 37T

Enterprises Huzhou is a wholly foreign owned enterprise
established in the PRC, to be operated for 50 years up to

Note: This is a newly acquired subsidiary in current year.

36. TENB AR ZFHE#)

Proportion of
nominal value
of issued share
capital/paid-up
registered capital held

by the Company Principal activity

EYNGEEE ]
BITRE/
Bramps,/
HERSEL TEER
2016 2015
100% - Property investment
(note) MERE
(Hiit)
100% - Property investment
(note) MERE
(Hiit)
100% 100% Property investment
NERE
* MMEXR—BRPBKILZINER
BhE  KEHR50F  EF2054F
124148 -

Wiz WDAFEHREMEATR -

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company, which,
in the opinion of the directors of the Company, principally
affected the results of the year or constituted a substantial
portion of the assets of the Group. To give details of other
subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors of the
Company result in particulars of excessive length.
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36.

37.

PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

At the end of the reporting period, the Company has other
subsidiaries that are not material to the Group. Majority
of these subsidiaries operate in Hong Kong. The principal
activities of these subsidiaries are summarised as follows:

Principal
Principal activity place of business
TEEK TEEENH
Investment holding Hong Kong
REER A
Inactive Hong Kong
JEE R BB
Inactive PRC
FEE R H

36.

EEHEA A2

RBEHER  ARRHBEMHAEET S
VAREEZHWBAR - WEKBARKID
DREBLE - WEWNBARIZ EBEKH
WO

Number of subsidiaries

MEAREE

2016 2015
12 8
6 4
2 2
20 14

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at 31
March 2016 or 31 March 2015.

SIGNIFICANT EVENTS AFTER THE END
OF THE REPORTING PERIOD

On 13 June 2016, Skill Master Investments Limited (the
“purchaser”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company
and Mr. Ng (the “seller”) entered into the sale and purchase
agreement. Pursuant to which the purchaser has conditionally
agreed to acquire and the seller has conditionally agreed to
sell the entire issued share capital and shareholder’s loan
of Treasure Arts International Group Limited (the “Target
Company”) at an aggregate consideration of HK$45,214,900.
Upon completion, the Target Company will become a
subsidiary of the Company.

On 20 June 2016, the Target Company has entered into
two more provisional agreements with two property vendors
for the acquisition of properties. Therefore, a supplemental
agreement was signed for the additional consideration of
HK$6,767,000 regarding to the newly acquired properties.

37.

RAME QAR 201643 A 31 H 2015 4
3 A 31 BBITEMERES -

BERRBREAEE

R2016F6 4130 ' KRR —MZ2EHA
ff$ /8 A &) Skill Master Investments Limited
(TEF NBEREE(TER L EE R -
Bt EFEREREWERE G GKER
= H & A4 X (845,214,900 7T Treasure
Arts International Group Limited ([ B1Z2
ANz 2HEBTRARBEER - REK
K BEARBKARAGZHBATE -

12016 F6 A20H * BIZEARIEEMEZY
EEFFIMOBEESOAKREDE -
it - BB B E 2 EIMLE 6,767,000
BILTERIERRZ
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OF THE COMPANY

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continueq)

e KB RME

For the year ended 31 March 2016
BZE2016 3 A 31 HILFE

38. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 38. A QB 2 BB MR &

2016 2015
HK$°000 HK$°000
FEx FETT

Non-current asset EREEE
Interests in subsidiaries RIFE R AR 2,110,933 1,183,526

Current assets MBBEE
Other receivables H i fe U kIR 170 204
Bank balances SRITHE R 25,550 97,694
25,720 97,898
Current liabilities TEAE

Other payables Hfth fE { 7RI8 3,560 2,712
Convertible note RRER 74,705 =
78,265 2,712
Net current (liabilities) assets MEEE(BE)FE (52,545) 95,186
Total assets less current liabilities BEERTBARE 2,058,388 1,278,712

Non-current liabilities FEREBEE
Convertible note B ES 12,379 11,153
Deferred tax liabilities EEFIEEE 3,298 1,636
15,677 12,789
2,042,711 1,265,923

Capital and reserves BRI
Share capital SN 11,166 253
Reserves (note) & (H7at) 2,031,545 1,265,670
2,042,711 1,265,923

Eminence Enterprise Limited 2015/16 Annual Report



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continueq)

mEMBEHRRMT )

For the year ended 31 March 2016

BE2016F3 831 HILFE

38. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

OF THE COMPANY (continued)

Note:

i

38. A AT ZHBRR R

ARARIZBENFARBEFEZZHNT :

Movements of the Company’s reserves during the current and prior

year are as follows:

At 1 April 2014

Total comprehensive expense
for the year

Issue of new shares

Transaction costs attributable
to issue of new shares

Issue of shares on conversion
of convertible note

Reduction of share
capital upon capital
reorganisation

Set-off contributed surplus
against accumulated
losses

Deferred tax liability on
recognition of equity
component of convertible
note

At 31 March 2015

Total comprehensive expense
for the year

Issue of rights shares

Transaction costs attributable
to issue of rights shares

Issue of shares on conversion
of convertible note

Reduction of share
capital upon capital
reorganisation

Set-off contributed surplus
against accumulated
losses

Deferred tax liability on
recognition of equity
component of convertible
note

At 31 March 2016

20144 A1 R

TEEERAMY
Fake

BTN

BB 22
BEA

RO A ES
ki

BRAERR 2 KA
HIA

A RBREH
i

B BREE
ERN D ZIBIE
AR

R 201543 A31H

AFEEEAY
nE

BATHRRAAD

BORBROZR
SHA

RATAREER
IR

R B AR 7 R A
B

NBARBEH
RitER

BRI BRRER
EZM D 2 IBIE
BARE

720163 A31H

Convertible
Share note equity Capital Contributed Accumulated
premium reserve reserve surplus losses Total
ARREE

R R E EnfEE RAGE AR 2t E#R k]
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000
631,701 37,903 53,194 294,027 (41,344) 975,481
- - - - (120,946) (120,946)
355,379 - - - - 355,379
(2,330) - - - - (2,330)
78,771 (36,599) — - - 42,172

- - - 9,875 - 9,875

- - - (42,776) 42,776 -

- 6,039 - - - 6,039
1,063,521 7,343 53,194 261,126 (119,514) 1,265,670
— — - - (71,688) (71,688)
823,911 - - - - 823,911
(4,971) - - - - (4,971)

- 16,573 - - - 16,573

- — — 4,785 - 4,785

- — — (4,785) 4,785 -
- (2,735) — - - (2,735)
1,882,461 21,181 53,194 261,126 (186,417) 2,031,545

it
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Financial Summary
HEERHE

RESULTS ¥E
Year ended 31 March
HZESHASIHLFE
2012 2013 2014 2015 2016
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET FET FET FET
Turnover e 286,916 223,756 156,940 192,489 103,439
(Loss) profit before taxation K#iAT(E51E)EF (40,670) (1,138) (2,752) 35,118 (61,238)
Taxation credit (charge) FIEET A (FX) 5,908 5,833 211 (4,032) (8,030)
(Loss) profit for the year KRR EEIERFE
attributable to owners of (FE58) R F
the Company (34,762) 4,695 (2,541) 31,086 (69,268
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEREE
At 31 March
R3A31H
2012 2013 2014 2015 2016
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET FET FET FET
Total assets BEE 662,136 1,003,979 1,389,502 1,919,181 2,574,086
Total liabilities ®|aE (53,900) (206,100) (266,408) (356,536) (249,642)
Equity attributable to AR B RRE(S s
owners of the Company 608,236 797,879 1,123,094 1,562,645 2,324,444

Eminence Enterprise Limited 2015/16 Annual Report



Summary of Properties
e

At 81 March 2016

R2016 3831 H
A. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES A. REWE
Approximate
gross floor/
saleable/site
area
Purpose (sq.ft.) Lease-term
BLEE,/
Bl /tEERE
Location i3t R# (FFR) BHEH
1. Ground Floor B Ef Commercial 580 Long
No.148 Johnston Road H+3cE e R
Wanchai 148 513 T~
Hong Kong
2. Ground Floor and Cockloft &5 i Commercial 1,232 Long
No.13 Matheson Street NE 1355 S e
Causeway Bay T R EE
Hong Kong
3. Ground Floor — 5th Floor R e Commercial/ 4,440 Long
No.15 Matheson Street T AT 155% Residential RE
Causeway Bay WTESE CEYeRs
Hong Kong
4. Ground Floor 7 Vo o Commercial 472 Long
No.6 Cannon Road SEA6 5% e 311
Causeway Bay b
Hong Kong
5. Sixth Floor JLEE Industrial 8,514 Medium
Nos. 650-652 BB Ix FH
Castle Peak Road, and 650 — 6525% ' 612X
No. 18A Wing Hong Street K BEAT 18A R
Kowloon
6. Second Floor JLEE Industrial 2,997 Medium
Nos. 790, 792 and 794 R EE I HE
Cheung Sha Wan Road 79057 ~ 79257 [ 794 9%
Kowloon 212
7. Unit B on First Floor NEEEILE 6465 - 64855 Industrial 1,937 Medium
Fung Wah Factory Building RBG4BASREETEARE T1% el
Nos. 646, 648, 648A —ETB
Castle Peak Road,
Kowloon
8. Roof, 20 Wing Hong Street NEEKEA 205 KA Industrial 2,657 Medium
Kowloon I F 5
9. Fifth Floor NEEKRE 205 Aig Industrial 2,637 Medium
No. 20 Wing Hong Street T% th H
Kowloon
10.  House 9, Villa Castell HAANBEERE205% Residential 2,358 Medium
No. 20 Yau King Lane HRNFIRFRE EE HE

Tai Po
New Territories

it
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Summary of Properties (continued)
MEBE(E)

At 31 March 2016
R2016 3531 A

A. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

A. REWH# &)

Approximate
gross floor/
saleable/site

area
Purpose (sq.ft.) Lease-term
#wHeE,/
BR/MEER
Location ik Jitk=3 (EAR) BAEH
11.  Units 1 and 2 on Seventh Floor ¥RV HEARE ALK B80035  Residential 2,086 Medium
Block D and Car Parking Space > M{EE D FEE-HIE 1 341 F=® m A
No. 46 on Lower Ground Floor 25 B RIK B H T fir
Shatin Heights £ 465
No. 8003 Tai Po Road
Shatin, Kowloon
12.  Third Floor AEERBE161R=E Residential 781 Medium
No. 161 Wong Nai Chung Road F= b
Hong Kong
13. 15 Ardmore Park #04-03 15 Ardmore Park #04-03 Residential 2,885 Freehold
Singapore 259959 HTI0%% 259959 E= gyl
14. 15 Ardmore Park # 06-04 15 Ardmore Park #06-04 Residential 2,885 Freehold
Singapore 259959 HTI0% 259959 E= gyl
15. 15 Ardmore Park #18-02 15 Ardmore Park #18-02 Residential 2,885 Freehold
Singapore 259959 HTI0% 259959 E= gyl
16.  Two parcels of land MIREATEMMi2 T Industrial 1,805,534 Medium
at an industrial site located at EARENIARMNE IT# b
the South of Hengtang Harbour, 2 (% 4% B $E /R 2 3% LA 7A
the West of Dongliang Road, BB - B BT
Zhili Town, Wuxing District, BB 2 BEY K
Huzhou City, Zhejiang Province ~— =IRHEBRED 2 E2EY)
of the People’s Republic of China
with a total of twelve building
blocks being built and three
building blocks under construction
B. PROPERTIES HELD FOR DEVELOPMENT B. B{EHEREWHE
FOR SALE
Approximate
saleable area Stage of
Location Purpose (sq.ft.) Lease-term completion
BAERHEE
b A& (FAR) HAOFH THRER
1. Nos. 14-20 Inverness Road Residential 27,811 Medium Under
Kowloon Tong £ RE  development
Kowloon RSP
Hong Kong
BB NENEE

160
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